
CITY Of 

~ EiL 

AGENDA 
RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M. 
TUESDAY, JUNE 7, 2016 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
675 WILDWOOD AVENUE 

WELCOME . .. By your presence in the City Council Chambers,you are participating in the process of 
representative government Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City 
Council are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hal/, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City Government 
welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell City Council meetings often. 

In compliance with the American with Disobilities Act, if you need special assistance to porticipate in this 
meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ossure accessibility to the meeting. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLLCALL 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

I. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

This time is for persons who wish to oddress the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over 
which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Council or staff is not intended. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for 
consideration if the Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the Council that the 
item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring immediate actian. 
Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes. 

J. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Council action will be enocted with one vote. 
The Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Council embers if there is anyone who wishes to 
address any matter on the Consent Calendar. The matters removed from the Consent Calendar will be 
considered individually in the next section, "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS". 

1) 2016/0607.01- Approve Minutes of the May 17, 2016 Regular Meeting 
(ACTION) 1 



2) 2016/0607.02 - Approve Minutes of the May 23, 2016 Study Session 
(ACTION) 19 

3) 2016/0607.03 - Approve Minutes of the May 24,2016 Special Meeting 
(ACTION) 32 

4) 2016/0607.04 - Approve Letter of Endorsement for Appointment of 
Mayor Pro Tern Johnson as City Representative to Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFco) (ACTION) 50 

5) 2016/0607.05 - Approve Annual Garbage Rate Adjustment with Eel River 
Disposal and Accept it as an Amendment to the Solid 
Waste and Recycling Franchise Agreement (ACTION) 52 

K. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

L. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/STUDY SESSIONS 

1) 2016/0607.06 - Discussion on Medical Cannabis in General and Possible 
Local Tax Measure (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 62 

M. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

1) 2016/0607.07 - Authorize the Mayor to Sign Letter Opposing S8 1069 
Second Units and Removal of Local Land Use Authority 
(DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 63 

2) 2016/0607.08 - Continued Public Hearing on Dispensaries and Testing 
Laboratories and Discussion on Medical Cannabis 
Commercial Land Use Regulations, Section 17.30.195 
of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE 
ACTION) 87 

N. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1) 2016/0607.09 - Adopt Resolution No. 1288-2016 Approving Operating 
and Capital Budget for FY 2016-2017 (DiSCUSSION/ 
POSSIBLE ACTION) 97 

O. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 



P. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

A Special meeting afthe City Council is scheduled for 
Tuesday, june 14, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. 

The next regular City Council meeting is scheduled for 
Tuesday, june 21, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. 



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 
MAY 17,2016 
MINUTES 

The regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor 
Wilson. 

ROLL CALL: Present: 

Absent: 

Others Present: 

Present: 

Others Present: 

Absent: 

(Closed Session) Mayor Wilson, Mayor Pro Tern Johnson, 
Councilmembers Marks and Thompson 

Council member Garnes 

City Manager Knopp and City Attorney Gans 

(Regular Meeting) Mayor Wilson, Mayor Pro Tern Johnson, 
Councilmembers Garnes, Marks and Thompson 

City Manager Knopp, Finance Director Woodcox, Community 
Development Director Caldwell, Chief of Police Hill and City 
Clerk Dunham 

Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen and Wastewater 
Superintendent Chicora (excused) 

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS FOLLOWS: 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT Title: Wastewater Superintendent 
(pursuant to Gov't Code Section 54957) 
The City Council recessed into closed session at 6:00 p.m. with City Manager Knopp and 
City Attorney Gans. 

The Council reconvened into open session at 6:30 p.m. 

Mayor Wilson announced there was no reportable action taken in closed session. 

CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

Proclamation in Recognition of Red Nose 
Council member Garnes distributed red noses to council and staff to put on before reading 
the proclamation in recognition of Red Nose Day. 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

Sharon Wolff reiterated that it is really hard to hear the city council members when they 
speak She said the audio is not good and for the most part they either don't speak into the 

1 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 2 

microphones or don't turn them on. She noted that she has four microphones around the 
room just so she can pick up what they are saying. She asked them to speak up and asked 
the Council at some point to look at upgrading the sound system as recommended in the 
past. 

Mayor Wilson stated that the Council will make every effort to do that. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Motion was made by Johnson/Thompson to approve the consent calendar including 
approval of minutes of the May 3, 2016 regular meeting; approval of minutes of the May 10. 
2016 special meeting; approval of Resolution No. 1297-2016 Authorizing the Submittal of 
an Application for Payment Programs and Related Authorizations with Department of 
Resources Recycling and Recovery (CaIRecycle); approval of Resolution No. 1295-2016 
Adopting the Gann Appropriations Limit for FY 2016-2017; and approving Resolution No. 
1296-2016 Approving Billable Rates for Staff Time for FY 2016-2017. Motion carried 5-0. 

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

Review and Approval of Chamber of Commerce Signage on City Property 
Mayor Wilson announced this item would be tabled and placed on a subsequent agenda as 
there was no representative from the Chamber in attendance at this time. 

City Manager Knopp stated that moving the item to the June 7. 2016 regular meeting will 
allow staff to provide a better report. 

Manufacturing Recommendations - Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulations, 
Section 17.30.195 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 
Community Development Director Caldwell began by stating that this is the third meeting 
of the City Council discussing the Medical Cannabis Land Use Regulations. 

He continued with a power point presentation and said at this meeting there will be 
discussion on Manufacturing Provisions including Manufacturing Levell. concentrates 
using non-volatile solvents. and Manufacturing Level 2 using volatile solvents with butane. 
hexane and ethanol. He noted this process will be regulated at a higher level by the 
Department of Public Health and the state will also be limiting the number of licenses they 
will be issuing. 

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that also included tonight will be 
discussion on Cannabis Commercial Kitchens that produce edibles. 

He referred to the supplemental information he provided regarding background checks 
and disqualifying felonies and he said that staff met with representatives from the Bureau 

2 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 3 

of Medical Marijuana Regulation (BMMR) last week and based on that meeting, 
incorporated the Background Check and Disqualifying Felony provisions of the Act into the 
City's ordinance. 

Staff continued with review of proposed definitions for Manufactured cannabis and 
Manufacturing Facility. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that there has been a lot of interest in 
Cannabis Manufacturing and in many states across the country they have recognized 
medicinal marijuana, a lot of which is now being sold in a concentrate or edible form rather 
than in flower form. He said it is apparently a healthier way of delivering the medicine to 
patients. 

He explained that the state has designated two types of Manufacturing licenses; Type 6 
which utilizes non-volatile solvents and Type 7 which utilizes volatile solvents such as 
butane, hexane or ethanol. 

He commented that experts in the field of manufacturing were present and available to 
provide information and answer questions regarding the concentrate manufacturing 
process. 

Staff further stated that the Planning Commission has recommended Manufacturing of 
Concentrates be conditionally permitted like all associated cannabis activities in the 
Industrial Commercial (IC) zone which is the Eel River Industrial Park and a small portion 
of the Eeloa neighborhood. Also, the Planning Commission did discuss allowing 
manufacturing in other zones but in the end decided that based on the nature of the 
process and limited availability of commercial land, to limit the extraction process to just 
the IC zone. 

Community Development Director Caldwell pOinted out that the County of Humboldt 
actually allows the manufacturing of concentrates in a number of commercial zones 
including the Business Park at the Arcata Airport. 

He noted that there has been a lot of interest in the Manufacturing process here; people 
from up and down the state as well as out of the state have approached the city and are 
looking for facilities or land where they can develop manufacturing facilities. He said as the 
City Council is aware, the Eel River Industrial Park has a lot of constraints associated with 
development there such as being located in the flood zone, no sewer services on site, 
having a 10,000 sq. ft. cap on new development without triggering a traffic study and 
potential highway 101 improvements, and having a Brownsfield site on a portion of the 
site. He also pointed out that the Eeloa Ave. zone is basically built out with very little 
development opportunity there. 

3 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 4 

Community Development Director Caldwell said given that information, the Council may 
want to possibly consider allowing the non-volatile process in the Community Commercial 
(CC) zone. He said if it were to be considered or allowed, staff would recommend some 
performance standards that it be located in the rear of the commercial building and that it 
occupy no more than 20% of the building. He said the idea is to make sure the majority of 
the building is available for retail commercial uses and said it actually may be a way to 
facilitate some commercial development. 

He said the other Manufacturing process is Commercial Kitchens which are basically 
restaurant type facilities where they use either butter or oil concentrates as part of their 
recipes that infuse the edibles. 

He noted that the Planning Commission recommended allowing Commercial Kitchens in 
the three (3) commercial zones and said they would be subject to inspection and approval 
by the County Health Department like other restaurants before they could obtain a city 
business license to operate. He stated that the Planning Commission has also 
recommended manufacturing processes be contained in basically spark-proof, bomb-proof 
rooms. 

Community Development Director Caldwell ended his presentation with review of the state 
labeling requirements for edibles and said there are experts in the audience who can 
address questions the Councilor the public may have. 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson asked if CBO is a hallucinogenic and how much area an average 
manufacturing facility typically needs. 

Steve Dizaiy from Oiza-Biotech said CBO is not a hallucinogenic and provided a handout 
with pictures of biopharma rooms they design for the biomanufacturing industry. He said 
the square footage needed depends on the amount of biomass processed. He explained the 
various layers of protection with regard to their manufacturing facilities and encouraged 
the city to work with companies or industries and review their overall business plan as far 
as consumption and disposition of their products. 

Mayor Wilson asked what the end product is and what they do with it after it's processed. 

Steve Dizaiy explained that they produce the bulk concentrate ingredients at a specific 
rate of concentration which is one product they produce and can sell to commercial 
kitchens. He said they also do formulations such as capsules, sprays or ointments at very 
precise dosing and that is the end product. He said those products are then sold to other 
dispensaries and to care givers. 

Mayor Wilson asked how specifically, the customer will consume the products 
manufactured. 

4 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
PageS 

Steve Dizaiy gave an example of one of their products which is a I-to-l ratio of an oral 
spray with extraction from a specific plant and formulated to a spray that delivers exactly 3 
milligrams ofTHC and 3 milligrams ofCBD for every dose. He noted that this particular 
product is used primarily for mUltiple sclerosis (MS). 

He said they also produce sublingual capsules that have various levels ofTHC and CBD's 
which is simply another delivery method for medical cannabis. He explained that 
individuals that have hyperactive tendencies gravitate toward THC because it helps people 
to focus. 

He said this method, as opposed to smoking marijuana allows them to meter it, dose it and 
more importantly trace it so they know who gets what. 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson asked if the state has determined the number of Level 2 
Manufacturing licenses (using volatile solvents) they will be approving. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that it has not yet been determined. 

Steve Dizaiy encouraged the Council to consider allowing both Levell and Level 2 
manufacturing processes and said if Level 2 is done correctly and the process is contained 
in a proper environment, it's quite safe. 

Council member Thompson asked for clarification that anyone purchasing their products 
needs to have a 215 card from their primary physician. 

Steve Dizaiy explained that they will cater more to dispensaries and that dispensaries will 
have a better understanding of the patient's needs. He reiterated that they are a 
pharmaceutical company that manufactures specific compounds that are effective for 
specific medical conditions. He explained that anytime a facility goes through a forensic 
audit they have to be able to track every lot number to every patient; more importantly 
where the biomass came from. He said the information will be entered into a database 
with an assigned lot number that city officials and other agencies have access to. 

Councilmember Thompson questioned the level of controls related to the dosage a patient 
should have. 

Steve explained the state is moving toward tighter controls and with the track and trace 
programs it will be strictly regulated. He added that as a conscience manufacturer, they 
minimize the amount of content they put into compounds. 

Council member Thompson then asked when they expect the various agencies to have firm 
guidelines and said he is hearing it could be two or three years. He questioned how 
companies can become operational without specific guidelines. 

5 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 6 

David Bridge, CEO of Lost Coast Research said he currently provides consulting and best 
practices systems and in 6 weeks is hoping to have the equipment to start testing cannabis. 

He explained the Bureau of Medical Marijuana Management will be created in 2018 and by 
2020 will have regulations in place to require that all medical marijuana is organic. He said 
this particular discussion is related to cannabinoids which is only one class of chemical 
noting that there are lots of other chemicals such as turbines that are involved in cannabis 
that are not being discussed. He said after cannabinoids are distracted what is left over is 
the rest of the plants turbines. He explained certain ratios of turbines is what gives the 
chemical effect and that turbines have flavor and can be mixed with food. He noted that it 
can then also be smoked although he wouldn't recommend it and it would not make a 
patient high in a psychoactive way. 

He explained the process of decarboxylation and how the control of the ratio of that 
process gives patients different effects. He noted that THC-A has been proven to be 
effective before decarboxylation and is non-psychoactive. He pointed out that it can be 
eaten without a patient getting high and can be effective for things such as back spasms. 

'ack Hay addressed the Council and stated that everyone is calling this medical marijuana 
and questioned the number of people that actually need it medically. He said everyone 
knows this is going to lead to legalization of recreational marijuana and parents are going 
to be smoking it, then before long kids will be smoking it then using cocaine, or meth and 
there will be nothing but a bunch of"drugies" running around. 

He said the Council thinks the city is going to get all this money but questioned how these 
businesses are going to be able to payout all these taxes. 

Glen White, a principal partner with Diza Biotech said if people want to believe that 
marijuana will lead to meth use, they are looking beyond reality. He said the truth of the 
matter is that if this substance is not controlled, it will continue to be a problem. He 
commented that as the industry changes in Humboldt County, it will allow cultivation so 
the city can gain economically by taxing it. Also, law enforcement will know where it is 
being cultivated and be able to control it as opposed to people just doing it because they 
will do it anyway. 

He said he came to this area in 1982 and bought property just outside Garberville and in 
those days no one in Rio Dell wanted anything to do with the marijuana industry. He said 
the rural areas like Garberville and Redway boomed from it. The point he wanted to make 
is that if the city is going to legalize it and allow it to be cultivated, they will profit from it. 
He pointed out that for every pound of cannabis cultivated there will be two pounds of 
byproduct from that trim and if the City doesn't control where that goes, they will basically 
be turning their backs and pushing it through the black market. He said the fact is that it 
will then be turned into concentrates and will get out to kids and destroy the youth. 

6 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 7 

He stated that their idea is to do everything by the book including following Cal Osha 
standards, to have local law enforcement control everything and build a facility that will be 
able to control completely, the cannabis cultivated in this region; not just Rio Dell but in 
central Humboldt County. He said they are going to need a big facility and depending on 
the amount of product processed, the proper tools to do that. He noted that it all has to be 
done by FDA standards until such time the State develops standards. 

He said for the City Council to turn their back and say they don't want the marijuana 
industry here is only going to provide more opportunity for others to do it because they 
already are doing it, but not safely or legally. He added that the reason there are so many 
honeyoil explosions is because there are no controls and they are either drunk or on meth 
when they are doing it so it blows up. He said this is what will happen if the Council doesn't 
grasp it and control it. 

He said if the city can allow it in a facility that is governed and permitted through the 
appropriate agencies and monitor it, it will be better for everyone concerned. 

Council member Thompson commented that for the past 40 years, Garberville has pretty 
much been given free rein and asked why now they are asking for the sherifrs department 
to come in and enforce the law. 

Glen White said along with the economic benefits comes crime and without law 
enforcement the crime will run ramped. He commented that he has seen these legal 
businesses boom and as the industry explodes and as the money flows freely, so does 
crime. He noted that it is easier for law enforcement to control what is happening in Rio 
Dell because of local law enforcement but in Garberville you have people coming in from all 
over with lots of cash buying materials to cultivate and other things which sometimes 
causes problems. 

Councilmember Thompson commented that the city is presumably going to collect an 
unknown amount of tax money from the marijuana industry if approved but in turn will 
have to double the police force to control the associated crime the industry will potentially 
bring. He expressed concern about the decay of the school system and said kids are already 
out of control and parents come to school high to pick up their kids. He said a police officer 
will need to be sitting at school to arrest parents when they come to school high to get their 
kids. He pointed out that this is child abuse. 

Glen White said although he is not an expert on the subject, he doesn't believe cannabis is 
the cause for the drug problems in many families. 

Tom Bertain read a statement which he presented to the City Clerk for the record stating 
his opposition to the Medical Marijuana Ordinance. He said the City Council and those 

7 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 8 

serving since the city's inception have worked hard under difficult circumstance and 
conditions to make Rio Dell a great place to live and to raise children. Without this 
ordinance the city of Rio Dell will continue to progress and the future looks good. 

He went on to say that the study and research of the benefits of medical marijuana is 
incomplete and by endorsing this ordinance, the City Council is venturing into a premature 
affirmation of the unknown adding that the Golden Goose may be a cull. He said before 
approving the ordinance, there needs to be more understanding and thought put into it to 
determine the social and cultural impacts and changes that will occur. He mentioned the 
need for wisdom and foresight before the city gets into a situation that might spin out of 
control providing no exit strategy and leaving its citizens demoralized and bewildered. 

Alonzo Bradford commented that he is confused about the whole discussion of 
Manufacturing and his concern is why the Town Center (TC) and other zones haven't been 
added to the ordinance. He asked if the Council could take a vote to allow manufacturing, 
dispensaries and nurseries in other areas besides the Industrial Commercial (IC) zone. He 
said it doesn't feel like the Council is accepting the industry or the community's opinions 
and are just dealing with them but not listening to what they want. 

Mayor Wilson said he personally is adamantly opposed to the use of recreational marijuana 
and that it comes from a personal background 40 years ago when it wasn't the same 
potency as it is today. He said he knows the affects it has had on families and has caused 
considerable damage. He noted that the idea he is coming to is that it does have medical 
benefits. However, if the City Council does decide to allow it, and based on the discussion 
at the last meeting. he feels the Council is moving too fast. His personal opinion is also that 
it should only be allowed at the Industrial Commercial zone across the river. 

He pointed out that there is a large segment of the City that has not come to these meetings 
and most of the people in attendance are those interested in getting licensed or opening a 
business in an area they believe is profitable to provide medical marijuana to patients. He 
added that citizens are starting to wake up to the idea that this is a really big issue and he 
thinks more citizens need to get involved so the Council can hear other opinions. He noted 
that many people probably don't even know these meetings are taking place but once it 
becomes known, there is a very vocal community out there. He said essentially what he is 
saying is that he is kind of back-peddling on what he is now understanding. He said what 
he is hearing is that it could be something that is viable to everyone as a society as far as it 
being a medicine if used properly. He commented that he doesn't want to jump ahead just 
to try and solve the City's financial problems and in doing 50, create a bigger problem. 

Councilmember Thompson said he agreed if the ordinance is approved that cannabis 
related activities should be restricted to the Industrial Commercial (IC) zone across the 
river. He pointed out that the City Council has the responsibility to represent the citizens of 
Rio Dell and make decisions based on the will of the people. He said out of the 3,400 
citizens it is 

8 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 9 

unknown what percentage of those people use drugs but if it were 20%, that means there 
are about 2,800 citizens that he represents. He commented that if the Council approves 
marijuana activities and the associated smell is not totally controlled, there will be a lot of 
upset residents and the City Council will have to answer to those people. He added that the 
City Council has an obligation to provide a clean, healthy lifestyle to its citizens which 
means they should not have to tolerate a smell they find offensive. 

He also questioned staffs opinion that an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is not 
required or necessary for cannabis related activities. 

James Bidwell addressed the Council and said they circulated a survey around town and 
gathered 70 - 80 signatures in a period of 2 hours from people in support of medical 
cannabis activities in the City and said there were only 10 people who would not sign it. 

He pointed out that the industry is already here and if the ordinance is not adopted, the 
black market will continue to flourish. He said they only want to open a small nursery in 
the Town Center and sell baby plants which have no smell or negative impact. 

Kathleen Kemp pointed out the Council members have a horrible job and that she 
personally believes in the benefits of medical marijuana. She said she doesn't know what's 
right or wrong as far as growing marijuana and noted that there was a robbery at her 
neighbor's house related to marijuana when no one was home and said the police probably 
can't do anything without probably cause. She said she doesn't use marijuana personally 
but the way it is now, it seems to be out of control. 

Jack Hay asked how many dispensaries are being proposed and how many of those are 
actually related to medical cannabis. 

David Bridge pointed out that what is being discussed is medical cannabis and not adult 
recreational cannabis although it will probably become legalized in November. He said the 
focus needs to stay on medical cannabis. He said there is a direct correlation between 
marijuana facilities being located in places with high crime so there will be that aspect to 
deal with. He said he had passed that research on to the Community Development Director. 

Jackie Wilson stated that she works in Redway but lives in Rio Dell because the marijuana 
atmosphere is terrible there. Also, she said she has three kids and was told the school here 
is excellent. She said she works at the pharmacy so understands the benefits of medical 
marijuana however; it has truly become recreational down there. 

James Cortazar commented that for the first time in years, there are people interested in 
either leasing or purchasing his properties in the Town Center. He said just the rumor of 
Rio Dell passing a medical marijuana ordinance has sparked interest. He said it is time for 
the City Council to embrace the opportunity and said he is totally in support of the 

9 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 10 

ordinance and hopes the Council doesn't limit the number of cannabis related businesses in 
town. He expressed the desire for the industry to help support the schools. 

Jomra Kan expressed support of the proposed ordinance and said it is pretty far-fetched to 
say Rio Dell will become a drug crazed town if they allow establishment of cannabis related 
businesses. He pointed out that the dispensary in Arcata actually received the Business of 
the Year Award. He said it is a complete myth to say children will become addicted to 
drugs if their parents use cannabis and said children with problems are victims of bad 
parenting. 

Steve Dizaiy responded to the comment that was made regarding the Council moving too 
fast and said he thinks this is where the Council has the opportunity to work with 
businesses effectively by having open dialog and reviewing proposed business plans. He 
said when he went through med school; there was one lesson on cannabinoids; now it 
includes a 6-week course. 

Melissa Marks commented that she would like to hear from citizens regarding their views 
on cultivation and expressed concern associated with trimigrants coming into town and 
hanging around between jobs. 

Larry Arsenol commented that there is crime associated with the black market but once 
cannabis activities are regulated, the crime will go down noting that the black market will 
suffer with legal operations coming into town. 

Jack Steeves stated that there are people here that have ranches where cultivation could 
occur rather than in the City of Rio Dell. He said when he gets sick, he goes to the doctor 
then to the drug store to get a prescription and asked why the marijuana industry has to 
converse to one little town and ruin it. 

There being no further public comment, the public hearing was closed. 

Mayor Wilson stated that the purpose of the meeting is to gather information and that the 
Council would not be making any decisions at this time. He said the next meeting, 
scheduled for May 24, 2016 will be to discuss the track and trace program and taxes. He 
encouraged people from both sides of the issue to come and voice their opinions. He noted 
that the Council is still open to discuss whatever issues citizens may have and their goal is 
to do what is best for the community as a whole. He reiterated the need for citizens to 
come to the meetings and provide feedback to the Council. 

Council member Garnes commented that she would like everyone who is worried about 
what the cannabis industry will do to the City to look around at what's going on already. 
She said only a delusional person doesn't smell it all around them. She noted that she lives 

10 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 11 

in the upper part of Rio Dell and in the winter she can see down on the roofs that are not 
frosted over and see where indoor grows are going on. She said it is damaging to the City 
the way it is now and the Council is simply trying to reel it in and get it regulated. 

She referred to the three bills passed by the legislature regulating medical cannabis and 
one of the problems has been that basically anyone with $200 can get a 215 card and grow. 
The new laws will eliminate that since 215 cards can only be issued by a person's primary 
doctor. 

She noted that a dispensary, processing or manufacturing facility won't have pot leaves 
painted all over the building. it will look like any other legitimate business with proper 
security. She said what she is hoping the city can do, is to take the 215 law which has 
literally been a joke and rein it in and allow people that actually need medical cannabis to 
get it legitimately. 

Council member Garnes added that education plays a huge part in the review process and 
for people to allow the correct information to come into their heads without putting up a 
mental block because they simply don't like the word is unreasonable. She said if the 
industry is done within the confines of the law, everyone should promote it and take 
advantage of the economic benefit it will bring to the city and community. More 
importantly, medical cannabis is a medicinal product and should not be feared. 

She said if this City Council does not take a stand now, other areas will take advantage of 
the opportunity and the black market in Rio Dell will continue. Not moving ahead to create 
a legal foundation is only harming the city. She pointed out that every operation will 
require a Conditional Use permit (CUP) through the Planning Commission so the city is not 
taking this issue light-hearted. She said the City Council and city staff cares about the 
welfare of children and the only way to help them is to get it right and control it. 

Mayor Wilson called for a 5 minutes recess. 

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Adopt Resolution No. 1288-2016 Approving Operating and Capital Budget for FY 2016-
2017 
Finance Director Woodcox provided a power point presentation on the proposed 2016-
2017 Fiscal Year Operating and Capital Budget. 

She reviewed the changes to the budget since it was first presented to the Council at their 
May 3, 2016 meeting and explained the majority of the changes were related to the Capital 
Projects Budget. 

11 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 12 

She reported an overall increase in expenditures of $423,000 with no change in overall 
revenues. She said total expenditures reported at the May 3, 2016 council meeting were 
$4.2 million reflecting a surplus; with changes, expenditures now are $4.6 million which 
results in a deficit. 

She showed a graph representing the increases in expenditures by department and noted 
there was an increase in operational expenditures in the City Manager's budget with 
$8,000 budgeted for replacement of computers and computer equipment, and $10,000 
moved from Capital Projects to the City Manager's budget for Economic Development. She 
noted that the $10,000 should have been included in the City Manager's budget in the sense 
that it is not a capital expenditure but a service. 

Finance Director Woodcox continued with a review of the proposed Capital Projects and 
noted a total of$45,OOO was removed which included the $10,000 for Economic 
Development and $35,000 for a generator in the water department because it will be 
purchased and used for the Wells Project and part of matching funds for the project. 

Capital Projects added included: 

)- $ 45,000 
)- $ 6,132 
)- $ 40,000 
)- $ 38,000 
)- $ 6,500 
)- $ 45,000 

)- $ 20,000 
)- $ 8,000 
)- $ 35,000 
> $ 40,000 
)- $160,000 

Belleview/Ogle Drainage Repairs 
Downtown Parking Lot completion carry over 
50% USDA Grant match for two new police vehicles 
Subsidy for Streets maintenance and repairs 
Council Chambers upgrade to audio system 
Ditch Witch Vactor Trailer - split equally between water, 
sewer and streets 
Water system spot repairs 
Water filter recoating 
Repairs to Old Ranch Road water line 
Repairs to sewer lines on Second, Third and Dixie 
City Hall ADA Upgrades - CDBG Program Income 

She reported the proposed changes represent an overall decrease in the Fund Balance, 
going from an overall surplus of $246,000 to a deficit citywide of $176,822. 

She pointed out that while looking at a $176,000 deficit, $160,000 of that is actually CDSG 
Program Income money and there aren't any revenues coming in exc-ept for a few thousand 
dollars per year. Also, the city must spend the Program Income under the CDBG gUidelines. 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson asked what the chances are of getting the $40,000 USDA grant for 
police vehicles. 

12 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 13 

Finance Director Woodcox responded that the chances are pretty good and the funds are 
available until they are used up. She noted that the City of Fortuna submitted an 
application and got funding for two new police vehicles and was kind enough to share a 
copy of their grant proposal with staff. 

Council member Garnes asked if the ending fund balance was projected to have a surplus or 
deficit. 

Finance Director Woodcox said in Reserves, the estimated ending fund balance in the 
General Fund is $941,273. 

Council member Garnes stated that she was hoping to be able to take some money from 
General Fund Reserves and put it toward street repairs. She said with the recent water rate 
increase she would like to be able to show the community that the city is trying to make 
some notable improvements to the city's streets. Even though it's not water related she 
said it would be an overall improvement to the city. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson referred to the water fund portion of the proposed capital projects 
including spot repairs, filter recoating, and Old Ranch Road Repairs totaling over $60,000 
to improve the city. 

Council member Garnes commented that the $35,000 budgeted for repairs to the Old Ranch 
Road water line is a separate issue as it doesn't benefit the residents inside the city. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson reminded everyone that the highest maintenance water line is the 
Old Ranch Road line and if the city doesn't tackle the repairs this year the cost will only go 
up. 

Council member Garnes agreed but in addition to those repairs she would like to show 
citizens that the additional revenue the city is receiving is doing something to make the city 
better. 

Council member Thompson pointed out that the repairs to Old Ranch Road will basically be 
paid for by those residents through the extra Dinsmore zone surcharge. 

Finance Director Woodcox clarified that until today she thought the $10,000 in repairs was 
going to be paid by the residents which is no longer the case; now the expense will come 
out of the Dinsmore zone water fund. 

Mayor Wilson questioned how the $10,000 estimate for those repairs has now gone to 
$35,000. 

13 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 14 

City Manager Knopp explained that originally the $10,000 was to only cover the cost of 
parts; the labor was to be donated by the city and now the city will likely be hiring a 
contractor to do the work. 

Mayor Wilson said at the May 3, 2016 meeting, the proposed budget was presented with no 
discussion on Capital Projects and asked if they were simply left out of the budget. 

Finance Director Woodcox explained that it wasn't until after the May 3rd meeting, that staff 
had discussions and delved into the Capital Projects more thoroughly. 

Mayor Wilson pointed out that in a period of two weeks the budget increased by over 
$400,000, there was a brief discussion with the Council when it was initially presented on 
May 3rd and now staff is asking the Council to adopt it. He said things were moving too fast 
and said in the past, the Council had the opportunity to sit down at a workshop and discuss 
each departmental budget and felt that same process should be followed. 

He noted that every year for the past few years, the budget has had a deficit and last year 
the Council was told the deficit would be addressed but wasn't. He said as a City Council, 
they have to find out a way to address the problem. 

City Manager Knopp stated that the items on the Capital Projects list are investments and 
services staff feels are important but the Council certainly has the discretion to discuss the 
projects and modify the list by adding or deleting items. He noted that the city has a good 
size reserve and it is not necessarily a bad thing to draw down on reserves to invest in 
capital improvements. He commented that the word "deficit" has a negative 
connotation and that another way to phrase it is "a fund balance draw down" which is a 
deliberate draw down of the fund balance to provide specific services. 

He commented that the City Council has done a great job keeping personnel costs down by 
approving a new health care plan and controlling retirement costs. He noted that many 
jurisdictions are struggling with the high costs of PERS which the city doesn't have. 

He said street repairs, police vehicles, upgrade to the Council Chambers audio system and 
the Ogle/Belleview Drainage project were all projects identified by the City Council as 
priority. He said if the Council wants staff to slow down the budget process they will be 
happy to do so and said it was simply a recommendation by staff for discussion and 
possible approval of the 2016-2017 budget at this time. 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson commented that for the past three years he has sat next to Fortuna 
Councilman Strehl at HCAOG meetings and he recently asked him how their budget process 
was going and his response was that they were going bankrupt. He said that is somewhat 
of an over-statement but the fact is that their reserves have gone down $8 million in three 

14 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 15 

years which is not sustainable. The point he was trying to make is that Rio Dell is in a much 
better position financially than many other cities including Fortuna. 

Finance Director Woodcox continued her presentation by providing a breakdown and 
description of the proposed Capital Projects by fund with the majority of the projects in the 
Water Capital Fund. 

Melissa Marks asked how long it was going to take for the Dinsmore Zone Fund to 
reimburse the $35,000 for the Old Ranch Road water line repairs. 

Finance Director Woodcox explained that the estimated annual revenue is $17,400 with 
$1,700 going toward Water Operations and the remaining $15,700 going toward Water 
Capital. 

City Manager Knopp noted that the $35,000 is only staffs estimate for the repairs and staff 
may have to return to Council with a request for a budget amendment and authorization to 
proceed. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson referred to the $45,000 budgeted for a Ditch Witch Vactor Trailer 
and asked if that is the estimate for a new or used trailer; the response was that it was for a 
new trailer. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson said with the reduction in public works staff. questioned whether 
there is enough personnel to go out and safely run the equipment. 

City Manager Knopp commented that the public works department is currently operating 
with a crew of two in Streets and were able to get them out a couple of times the past year 
to utilize the equipment. 

Total projected revenue was reported at $4,520,048 and total expenditures at $4,696,870 
resulting in a $176,822 draw down of reserves. 

Finance Director Woodcox also noted that $2,868 was put into the contingency line item 
for spaying and neutering of pets as well as that same amount matched in the General 
Fund. She said $2,868 has been sitting in the spay-neuter fund for years. 

Council member Thompson noted that Alice Millington indicated that there are funds 
available from Bless the Beast to spay and neuter dogs and cats and suggested those funds 
be utilized first. 

Melissa Marks asked if staff labor comes out of Capital expenses. 

15 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 16 

Staff explained that labor costs have come out for the Metropolitan Wells Project but labor 
costs don't normally come out of Capital because staff gets paid anyway and their time is 
charged to the fund where they actually work. 

Kathleen Kemp commented that she was in attendance at the meeting when the city's 
auditor gave a presentation and said the city overspent in the budget by $237,000 last year 
and pointed out there are staff that gets paid big bucks to do checks and balances and asked 
how that happens. 

Finance Director Woodcox explained the majority of that had to do with depreciation and 
said depreciation is not required to be reported in the budget however; it must be reported 
in the audited financial statements. She said depreciation is part of the net expenditures 
but not actually cash going out. She noted that the city was actually on track with the 
budgeted line items and the $237,000 does not represent the amount of expenditures 
exceeding revenues. 

Kathleen Kemp said related to Streets, she doesn't understand why the city has an outside 
contractor come in and work on streets with no city staff overseeing the work. She 
referred to the recent road work on Riverside Dr. and expressed concern about the work 
being substandard and asked who is responsible for overseeing it. 

City Manager Knopp commented that he is responsible as Public Works Director and that 
the Building Inspector and Water/Roadways Superintendent also are involved with 
projects. 

Mayor Wilson commented that staff provided a good overview of the budget but he would 
like to have a better understanding of the budget and suggested the Council have budget 
study session. 

Finance Director Woodcox stated that as the person who inputs the numbers into the 
spreadsheets for the budget she is neutral and did not present this in a way that staff was 
trying to do anything except show what needs to be done. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson stated that he spent SO years in public works as a public works 
director and city engineer in Oregon and pointed that the city inherited a lot of the streets 
from the County and are very problematic because of the technique used at the time. He 
said when a street is dug up, it is virtually impossible to put in a patch that will last. 

Consensus of the Council was to schedule a budget study session. City Manager Knopp 
agreed to notilY Council members with potential dates for the meeting. 

REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

16 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 17 

City Manager Knopp reported on recent activities and events and distributed a written City 
Manager update. He said staff attended a BMMR workshop in Arcata along with 
representatives of the Bureau of Medical Marijuana Regulation and staff from other cities; 
reported that HCAOG and the county are sponsoring a study of potential bike trail 
connection routes between south Eureka and Scotia stating that for Rio Dell and Scotia, the 
barrier is the Eel River and an extension south of the Metropolitan area will require 
extensive modifications or replacement to either the north or southbound 101 bridges; 
said work is continuing on the city's website and staff has begun updating individual 
department pages; and reported on the Annual Spring Cleanup Event held on May 8 'h in 
conjunction with Eel River Disposal and said it was a huge success with 26.36 tons of 
material collected compared to 7.29 the previous year. 

In addition, he reported on the progress of the downtown parking lot project and said to 
complete the project and stay on or close to budget, the original plan to install 14 planter 
bOl;'es including soil and plantings is too expensive. He said staff is proposing to work with 
a local fencing contractor to install 12 foot sections of fencing separated by a planter box 
between sections of fencing to reduce costs. He said with Council's concurrence staff will 
bring the item back as an agenda item at the june 7, 2016 regular meeting. 

Mayor Wilson said the upcoming meetings will be consumed with discussions on marijuana 
and the budget and as such, suggested the item be deferred until july; the Council 
concurred. 

Finance Director Woodcox reported on recent activities in the finance department and said 
staff was making great progress entering documents into DosStar since they are no longer 
spending a portion of their time in the police department. 

She also said if any council member has any specific questions or items they would like to 
talk about at the budget study session, to let her know so she have the information 
available. 

Chief of Police Hill reported on recent activities in the police department and said he 
attended the law enforcement version of the BMMR meeting and as the city manager stated 
it is a very complex issue and noted that Humboldt County is being referred to more as a 
cultivation region. 

He also announced there will be a Nuisance Hearing Committee meeting on May 24, 2016 
at3:00 p.m. 

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

Mayor Pro Tern johnson announced that he would be attending a League of California Cities 
Division meeting in Lakeport on Friday, May 20'h. 

17 



MAY 17, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 18 

Council member Marks stated that he participated in the Spring Clean-Up Event on 
Saturday and got compliments on the city employee (Cameron Yaple) working the event for 
doing a good job in keeping everything organized. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion was made by Johnson/Garnes to adjourn the meeting at p.m. to the May 24. 2016 
special meeting. Motion carried 5-0. 

Frank Wilson. Mayor 
Attest: 

Karen Dunham. City Clerk 

18 



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 
MAY23,2016 
MINUTES 

A Study Session ofthe Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by Mayor Pro 
Tern Johnson. 

ROLL CALL: Present: 

Absent: 

Others Present: 

Absent: 

STUDY SESSION MATTERS 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson, Councilmembers Garnes, Marks and 
Thompson 

Mayor Wilson (arrived after the meeting was called to order) 

City Manager Knopp, Finance Director Woodcox, Water/ 
Roadways Superintendent Jensen, Wastewater Superintendent 
Chicora, Wastewater Superintendent Trainee Yaple and City 
Clerk Dunham 

Community Development Director Caldwell and Chief of Police 
Hill 

Review of Operating and Capital Budget for FY 2015-2017 
City Manager Knopp stated that at the request of the City Council, staff is returning to take a 
closer look at the proposed Operating and Capital Budget for FY 2016-2017. 

Finance Director Woodcox provided a recap of the budget presented at the May 3,2016 
Council meeting and a detailed summary of the changes as reflected in the budget 
presented at the May 17, 2016 meeting. 

She began by identifying some positive details of the proposed budget and said the 
operating expenditures overall have been kept at minimal levels; staff was able to mitigate 
the rising costs in Employee Health Insurance, saving a significant amount of money; and 
staffing was cut by one position in the public works department which was the Utility 1/11 
position. 

She also noted that the fund balances are in line with the City's policy of maintaining the 
minimum fund balance of 15% with optimum 30% for the major funds. She explained 
what that means is that there will be at least 15% of the years' worth of expenditures 
sitting in that fund balance in each fund. 

She mentioned that she had attended the City of Fortuna's budget presentation and that 
due to rising PERS cost, which do not affect the City of Rio Dell, as well as changes in rules 
they have to pay $370,000 in PERS expenditures in their adopted budget; an increase of 
$50,000 from the prior year. 

19 



MAY 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 2 

She explained the budget is broken up into two parts and explained the two major 
components are the Operating Budget and the Capital Budget. She said together these 
make up the entire spending plan for the City and as separate components they have very 
different priorities. 

Finance Director Woodcox directed the Council's attention to the Budget Summary by 
Department and explained how the budget is broken out to give the Council an idea of what 
operational expenditures consist of as well as capital expenditures such as the debt service 
and capital projects. 

She said when the proposed budget was presented to the Council on May 3rd, the operating 
expenditures were $1,676 less than the prior year; when the budget came back to the 
Council on May 17th, within the operating budget, and expenditures had increased by 
$18,000 representing an increase of$16,324 from the prior year. 

She said as explained at the May 17th meeting, the reason for the increase was due to the 
addition of the expense for new computer equipment and $10,000 moved from the Capital 
Budget to the Operations Budget under the City Manager for economic development which 
was a priority in the current year budget. 

She further explained that the expenditures presented on May 3rd were $1.1 million and on 
May 17th had increased to almost $1.6 million as a result of the Capital Projects budget 
increasing by 33%. 

Finance Director Woodcox presented a Proposed Capital Projects List for FY 2016-2017 
totaling $1,587,155 with the items presented to the Council on May 3rd framed in bold. She 
said if the Council would like to have the expenditures match with revenues, the list can be 
modified to do that. 

She then reviewed a spreadsheet showing positive balances in each fund to reflect how 
much money is available without pulling from reserves and said essentially that's how the 
budget works and it's at the Council's discretion as to how much they want to spend in this 
fiscal year on Capital improvements. 

Mayor Wilson pointed out that the $35,000 for repairs to the Old Ranch Road water line 
was not included on the spreadsheet under the Capital Budget. 

Finance Director Woodcox said she would make that correction. 

She noted that the Streets Fund was already showing a $60,000 deficit so when the 1/3 
share of$15,OOO for the ditch witch vactor trailer, the deficit became $75,000. 

20 



MAY 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 3 

Mayor Wilson noted that the reserve balance in the General Fund managed to go up and 
said the various documents don't reconcile from what his perspective. He wanted to know 
how the City is or is not depleting the fund balance. He said it seems to him that over 
$100,000 is being taken out of reserves and yet doesn't reflect on the ending fund balance. 

Finance Director Woodcox explained that part of the reason has to do with the previous 
ending year fund balance and amounts carried over from the previous year such as the 
$45,000 for the Ogle/Belleview Drainage Project which was budgeted but not spent. 

She invited Mayor Wilson to come by her office so she can go over the previous year's 
balance sheets with him so he can get a better understanding of where the numbers come 
from. 

Mayor Wilson commented that he had asked for a budget summary of the current year 
compared to the past 5 years as part of the review tonight and was told it was in violation 
of the Brown Act. He said in 2014 the beginning fund balance was a specific number but 
that number seems to move around. He said there should be something that finalizes that 
number. He said it is great to buy things and make necessary improvements but that can 
only be sustainable for so long. 

Finance Director Woodcox explained the final numbers are in the final audit report after 
the auditor makes the required adjustments which she said she can present if the Council 
would like her to do so. 

Mayor Wilson stated that he would like to see a budget comparison for the last five years 
and at the very least going back to the 2013-2014 budget year. 

Discussion continued regarding the Water Fund with regard to the water rate increase and 
the 5-year plan to set aside 20% for future capital improvements. 

Finance Director Woodcox explained in this this year's budget the amount was based on a 
percentage and noted that once all operational expenditures are paid for, anything left over 
falls into the Capital Fund. She said it will fall short for FY 2015-2016 and in the 2016-2017 
budget as well because rates were not fully implemented until January 2016. She explained 
that the 20% collected on water bills initially goes into Water Operations and at the end of 
the year is transferred into the Water Capital fund. 

Mayor Wilson said in raising the water rates it was a super high priority, and was told to 
citizens that the City would be doing several capital improvements such as replacing the 
pre 1950"s pipes and now the proposal is to purchase a ditch witch vactor trailer and other 
things with Water Capital funds. 

21 



MAY 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 4 

Finance Director Woodcox explained that $629,000 was budgeted for Water Operations 
expenditures and as she recalls, the amount estimated in the water study was $679,000 so 
any amount left over in Water Operations will go into Water Capital. 

Mayor Wilson asked staff if they replace any water pipes other than when they break. 

Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen said they have not at this point. 

Mayor Wilson commented that $144,000 was borrowed from the Water Capital to help 
balance the budget last year and was told that it would be paid back. 

Finance Director Woodcox stated that it has been paid back and it will be included in a 
report to the City Council in August. 

She pointed out that the budget is merely staffs guide with regard to spending and the 
numbers constantly change which is unavoidable; budgeting is never 100%. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson stated the question tonight is whether the Council wants to see the 
Capital fund grow or want to extend it out and take care of some high priority capital 
projects such as the Old Ranch Road water line repairs. 

Mayor Wilson agreed that Old Ranch Road repairs need to be addressed but for him it was 
hard to take when staff presented a budget with a surplus and two weeks later, a budget 
with a sizable deficit. He questioned whether the budget was ready to be presented due to 
the swing of over $400,000 in proposed expenditures from one meeting to the next and 
asked the Finance Director to explain the budget process. 

Council member Garnes said the questions should be directed to the City Manager; not the 
Finance Director as she is only putting in the numbers given to her. 

City Manager Knopp stated that it was a judgement call that he made to recommend 
changes to the Capital Budget to make sure there were funds budgeted for the 
Ogle/Belleview Drainage project and to address some other problem areas with streets as 
well as some needed upgrades to the audio system in the Council Chambers and matching 
grant funds for two police vehicles. He noted that there is no shortage of capital projects in 
the City that need to be addressed and as the Finance Director pointed out, capital projects 
are at the discretion of the Council. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson suggested they look at the proposed capital projects one by one 
and take a straw vote of the Council as to whether they should remain or be removed from 
the capital projects list for this budget. 

22 



MAY 23, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 5 

Melissa Marks said she understands that any funds remaining in the operations budget at 
the end of the year flows over the capital budget and that the front office staff works in 
water and sewer and until recently spent some of their time in the police department. She 
asked the Council to consider lowering payroll expenses by shifting staff utilizing Measure 
Z Funds. 

Mayor Wilson commented that the City was saving money by using Measure Z funding to 
pay for a portion of the front office staff when they assisted in the police department and 
now he sees that arrangement has changed and there is a new part-time employee in the 
police department. 

The Council went back to the FY 2016-2017 Proposed Capital Projects list as presented 
and looked at each individual item. 

The first item under General Fund was the Parking Lot at $6,132 which was a carryover 
from the prior year's capital projects. 

Councilmember Marks said that he didn't particularly care if the parking was beautified as 
long as it is functional. As such the straw vote of the Council was 4-1 to leave it on the list. 

The next item which was also a carryover from the prior budget was the Ogle/Belleview 
Drainage project. 

City Manager Knopp explained the $45,000 was budgeted to cover the cost of the 
engineering study and it was suggested that perhaps the best way to address the drainage 
issues in that neighborhood may be through a benefit assessment district which is still an 
option. He noted that $45,000 is not really enough money to address the problem and he 
made the decision to hold off and try to come up with a plan to break the project up into 
various phases and to possibly hold the money as a Prop 1 grant match. He said staff is 
working with GHD to explore the feasibility of the grant and that the Prop 1 grant goal is to 
address ways to reduce storm water runoff by establishing retention/detention basins. He 
said this is somewhat of an evolving story and staff will be coming back to Council to 
discuss next steps. 

He said staff is recommending the $45,000 be left in the capital budget to try and use it in 
the most effective way possible to alleviate the flooding problems in that neighborhood. 

Council member Thompson said over a period of probably 40 years, Winzler & Kelly (GHD) 
has done multiple drainage studies and it came to the point with Jim Stretch was City 
Manager to work toward getting the project shovel ready in the event grant funding 
became available. He said the shovel ready goal no longer exists but should grant funding 

23 



MAY 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 6 

become available, the City needs to have the grant match available. He noted that residents 
in that neighborhood are very upset about the drainage problems that have been going on 
for decades. 

City Manager Knopp pointed out that the City has created a certain degree of liability by 
allowing it to get worse including allowing new development which is part of the reason for 
recommending the purchase of the ditch witch vactor trailer so the public works crew can 
clean out the drains. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson said the money has been included in the capital budget for a few 
years now and the goal should be to spend it. 

The Council all agreed to leave the Belleview/Ogle Repairs on the list. 

The next item on the list was the City's grant match of $40,000 for two new police vehicles. 

Councilmembers questioned the age ofthe vehicles being replaced, when the last two new 
SUV's were purchased, the number of vehicles versus the number of sworn officers, the 
cost for totally equipped vehicles, and if it is typical for officers to take vehicles home while 
off-duty. 

Staff responded that the vehicles being replaced are around 2002 models, the two new 
SUV's were purchased in 2013, there are currently 5 sworn officers including the Chief and 
5 vehicles, the cost for each vehicle fully outfitted is around $40,000, and that it is typical 
for officers to take vehicles home as the response time is quicker if they are called out to 
respond. 

Melissa Marks commented that when Ron Henrickson was City Manager he tried to have 
the Chief as an on-shift patrol officer. 

Mayor Wilson said the police department budget consumes probably 70% of the general 
fund and that's the price the City has to pay for public safety. 

The Council all agreed to leave the matching funds for the police vehicles on the list 

The next item on the list was a $38,000 subsidy for Streets maintenance and repairs. 

Mayor Wilson stated that part of the subsidy is for flashing speed signs which is nice but if 
the police department would write more tickets the signs wouldn't be needed. 

Council member Garnes stated that she would like to see more than $30,000 budgeted for 
street maintenance and repairs even though it will draw down the General Fund reserves. 

24 



MAY 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 7 

She said it would show the citizens that they are getting something positive for the 
increased water rates even though the money would not be coming out of the water funds. 

City Manager Knopp noted that it is important if the City is going to draw down the fund 
balance, to have something to show for it such as permanent infrastructure. He said one of 
the worst areas in need of street repair is at the end of Belleview Ave. going into Blue Slide 
Road. He said that is what the original $30,000 was budgeted for. He said the north end of 
Rigby Ave. is also high priority and worth taking a look at. The other priority areas 
included the Davis St. overpass and the Fern St. dip. 

Melissa Marks stated that she understood Danco was going to pave the area mentioned on 
Rigby Ave. as part of their improvement plans for the proposed housing development. 

City Manager Knopp said the project is currently on hold and the roadway is continuing to 
deteriorate to the point that vehicles are driving on the wrong side of the road to get 
around it. 

He added that the Water/Roadways Superintendent provided a list of priority street 
repairs with corresponding cost estimates. 

Mayor Wilson reiterated that he would like to eliminate the $8,000 for the flashing speed 
signs because writing tickets would take care of the problem. 

City Manager Knopp said one option related to street repairs would be to talk to the 
contractor when they come in and do the paving under the Active Transportation Grant 
(ATP) in 2017 to perhaps get a better deal. 

He said it pains him to do anything to draw down the fund balance but in this case feels it's 
appropriate and recommended the estimated $71,000 for the seven street projects listed 
on the cost estimate be included on the capital projects list for the 2016-2017 budget and 
increase the general fund subsidy for streets from $38,000 to $80,000. 

The Council all agreed with the recommendation. 

The last item under General Fund Capital Projects was $6,500 for upgrade ofthe audio 
system in the Council Chambers. 

City Manager Knopp stated that this is another item carried over from the current budget 
and said it would include some new microphones, projector, screen suspended from the 
ceiling and associated wiring to improve functionality and allow citizens to hear. Also, 
there is a safety issue with the wires running across the floor. 

25 



MAY 23, 2016 MINUTES 
PageS 

Council member Marks felt the safety issue should be addressed however; the rest of the 
upgrade could wait. 

The Council agreed to reduce the $6,500 to $1,500 to allow for wiring and outlets only. 

Proposed Water Capital projects were discussed next beginning with the Wells Project. 

City Manager Knopp reported the project went out to bid and staff would be meeting with 
contractors the next day. 

Councilmembers expressed concern that the City's match for the project at $133,529 
seemed high. 

Finance Director Woodcox said the number was taken from the last presentation by GHD. 

After brief discussion, the Council agreed to leave the Wells Project on the list as presented. 

City Manager Knopp explained the proposed Ditch Witch Vactor Trailer is basically a huge 
vacuum used to pull out debris. He noted that the City currently owns a large vactor truck 
but it is not terribly reliable. He said with the rental of a smaller vactor, the crew was able 
to clean out debris on Ogle Ave. 

Mayor Wilson questioned the cost of renting the equipment as opposed to purchasing it 
and how often it would be used. 

Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen stated they had the equipment for a couple of 
days and the bill was $600.00. He said provided they had enough manpower, they could 
utilize the equipment every day for a month but that is not the case. 

Mayor Wilson questioned why the City would buy equipment without having the 
manpower to operate it and recommended staff manages their schedule and rent the 
equipment when needed. 

He pOinted out that there is at least one citizen that is adamantly against the purchase of a 
vactor and he will let the Council know about it. 

Wastewater Superintendent Chicora commented that the citizen he was referring to was 
against the purchase of a vactor truck but the vactor trailer is one-third of the cost. He said 
the public works department needs something available when a leak occurs after hours 
because equipment rental places are not open. 

26 



MAY 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 9 

Melissa Marks agreed and said sewer backups can also happen after hours and need to be 
taken care of right away. She asked if the equipment could be used for both water and 
sewer jobs. 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson said he thought the City already has a trailer mounted jet rodder. 

Wastewater Superintendent Chicora said the City does have one but needs a tractor 
mounted system to go with it. 

He stated that a vactor with a jet rodder would probably be used more for water and storm 
drains, and not necessarily sewer. 

Councilmember Marks said if the public works department needs the equipment then leave 
it on the list. 

Council agreed to leave the Ditch Witch Vactor Trailer on the Capital Projects list as 
recommended. 

City Manager Knopp said the $20,000 on the list for spot repairs was intended to be set 
aside for priority repairs to the water distribution system such as when leaks pop up 
unexpectedly. He said with this, staff can plan for more comprehensive repairs. He noted 
that if there is a need to increase that amount, staff would come back to the Council for 
approval. 

The Council agreed to leave Spot Repairs on the Capital Project list as recommended. 

Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen noted that the $8,000 estimate for the filter 
recoating could possible go up. 

The council agreed to leave the Filter Recoating on the Capital Project list as recommended. 

The last item on the list related to Water was the Old Ranch Road Water Line Repairs. 

Councilmember Marks asked when staff expected the project to start. 

City Manager Knopp said staff is currently in discussions with Humboldt Redwood CO. 
CHRC) to allow the City access to do the work and noted it is in their best interest to have 
the water line buried so hopefully something can be worked out. 

Discussion continued regarding setting a deadline with regard to getting a response from 
HRC. The Council agreed to direct staff to draft a letter to HRC expressing that the project 

27 



MAY 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 10 

is the City's highest priority and needs to have a response regarding access by July 31, 
2016. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson questioned the need to get together with the Dinsmore Zone 
property owners again for a round table discussion to make sure everyone is on the same 
page. Council concurred. 

Moving on to Sewer Capital Projects, City Manager Knopp noted that the $15,000 for I & I 
Repairs was a carryover from the current budget as well as the 2 Sewer Lift Station Pumps 
for $30,000. 

After brief discussion, the Council agreed to leave all items on the Sewer Capital Projects 
list as recommended. 

The last item on the Capital Projects list was $160,000 under the CDBG Fund for ADA 
improvements at City Hall. 

City Manager Knopp explained the CDBG Program Income money must be spent to be 
eligible for additional CDBG funding and said the City recently contracted with the County 
to manage the program and help get the projects going. He noted that the ADA 
improvements to the porch will be visible and much more accessible and safer and as an 
extension to the project, may be able to get some ADA work done on the bathrooms. 

The Council agreed to leave the CDBG project on the Capital Projects list as recommended. 

Mayor Wilson asked councilmembers if they had anything they would like to add to the list. 

City Manager Knopp pointed out that staff removed some items from the Capital Projects 
list before submitting it to Council such as the 5-yard dump truck for public works and 
other public works equipment as well as the water line replacement on Ash & Birch Streets. 

Mayor Wilson said he understood staffto say that the Capital Improvement Funds will be 
starting to show more revenue for big projects and asked if staff could set up a mechanism 
whereby the Council is provided a status report on the Capital Projects every time the 
Council reviews the budget. He also said he would like to see balance sheets from FY 2013-
2014 to present to see a trend of where revenues are going. He said he also requested a 
summary like what was presented for the revenue budget with a complete breakdown of 
all funds. 

Council member Thompson asked for the difference in cost between a lease- purchase or 
cash purchase of vehicles. 

28 



MAY 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 11 

Finance Director Woodcox said she would have to research it but as far as the budget she 
said cash on the balance would be replaced with an asset. 

Mayor Wilson commented on the reduction of two public works staff and asked if the 
current crew can realistically handle the workload. 

Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen noted that there is a deficit in the Streets Funds 
and yet two of the workers work mostly in Streets. He said most water and sewer jobs 
such as water leaks or sewer plugs require two people which sometimes become a 
problem. He said in cases of emergencies or some sort of natural disaster, they will likely 
have to call an outside contractor to come in. 

City Manager Knopp said the City is continuing to run a deficit in the Streets Funds and 
even fewer services will be provided if things don't change. He commented that the 
Gateway median is very labor intensive. 

He said when the applications come in for the Utility Worker position; the staffing level 
may need to be reevaluated. He noted the Water Fund will be in a better position so the 
Council may want to consider filling two positions instead of one. 

He said the Council is authorizing 16.8 positions in this budget and to increase that 
number, it will have to come back before the Council for an amendment to the position 
allocation table. 

Mayor Wilson commented that the new part-time person in the police department was 
hired without Council approval. 

Finance Director Woodcox commented that when the decision was made to bring the 
Finance staff back it was reported to the Council in staff reports. 

City Manager Knopp noted that it was also discussed and approved when the Measure Z 
request for funding was brought before the Council for approval. 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson confirmed that the City Council was informed back in February or 
March that staff would be advertising for the part-time position. 

Mayor Wilson said he will accept he is mistaken if staff can provide written documentation 
and said the Council is going to have to talk about this arrangement. He said personally he 
would like to go back to utilizing current staff in the police department and save the 
$33,000 of Measure Z funding. 

He presented the concept of perhaps not opening City Hall to the public until 9 a.m. instead 
of 8 a.m. and closing at 4 p.m. instead of 5 p.m. to allow staff to get more work done. 

29 



MAY 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 12 

Mayor Pro Tern johnson said he is all in favor of saving money but doesn't like this idea. 

Council member Marks commented that he wasn't sure he understood the concept. 

Council member Garnes said she would like staff to come back with a report to Council on 
how the concept could or couldn't work. 

Mayor Pro Tern johnson pointed out that he recalled the Finance Director indicating that 
finance staff was falling behind on their work which was the reason for ending the 
arrangement. 

Finance Director Woodcox said that was correct as well as there was a disconnect among 
staff. 

Water/Roadways Superintendent jensen stated that is also created some problems 
regarding work orders for their department. 

Council member Marks asked staff if they thought closing the office a couple of hours a day 
would help make the former arrangement work. 

Finance Director Woodcox said that it may make the arrangement manageable. 

Mayor Wilson asked if there is any money for salary increases for the two Utility Workers. 

Finance Director Woodcox said unfortunately there is no money in Streets which is where 
most of their time is spent so the General Fund would have to subsidize any increases. 

Mayor Wilson said with contract negotiations coming up soon, he would like staff to bring 
back to Council the cost to bring those positions up to $IS.OO/hr. He said your get what 
you pay for and with low wages there is no motivation for multi-qualified workers. 

Discussion continued regarding Measure U revenue. 

Mayor Wilson asked what the City has to show for it and said he was told by citizens that 
when councilmembers and staff were going door-to-door campaigning for Measure U, they 
were told the money would pay for an additional police officer. 

Finance Director Woodcox explained that the money goes into the General Fund and 66% 
of General Fund revenue goes toward police services. 

Mayor Pro Tern johnson noted that he and Council member Marks went out together and 
knocked on doors and made no such promises. 

30 



MAY 23,2016 MINUTES 
Page 13 

He commended staff for bringing forth a clear, easy to understand budget. He also said 
when the dust settles on the cannabis issues the Council needs to come back and talk about 
salary increases and new contracts for contract employees. 

Mayor Wilson commented that he presented tough questions that were meant to be tough 
and the Finance Director answered them well. 

Finance Director Woodcox said she will make the recommended adjustments to the budget 
and bring it back to the Council at the next regularly scheduled meeting on June 7, 2016 for 
consideration and possible adoption. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:58 p.m. to the special meeting on July 24,2016 at 6:30 p.m. 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 
Attest: 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

31 



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY24,2016 
MINUTES 

A special meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor 
Wilson. 

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Wilson. Mayor Pro Tern johnson. Councilmembers 
Marks and Thompson 

Absent: Council member Garnes (excused) 

Others Present: City Manager Knop. Finance Director Woodcox, Community 
Development Director Caldwell. Chief of Police Hill and City 
Clerk Dunham 

Absent: Roadways Superintendent jensen and Wastewater 
Superintendent Chicora (excused) 

Mayor Wilson announced the passing of jimmy Smith who served as a Humboldt County 
Supervisor from 2001-2012. He called for a moment of silence in his memory and said his 
passing will certainly be a loss to our community. 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

Community Development Director Caldwell announced that if there is any member of the 
public that would like to address the Council on any matter other than the Track and Trace 
Program or the Medical Marijuana Tax Measure should do so at this time. 

There was no public comment received. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Motion was made by johnson/Marks to approve the consent calendar approving the 
Employment Contract and job Description for Wastewater Superintendent Trainee. 
Motion carried 4-0. 

SPECIAL MEETING MATTERS 

Discussion on the Track and Trace Program and Continued Public Hearing on the 
Commercial Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance (CMCLVO). Section No. 17.30.195 
of the Rio Dell Municipal Code 
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and said this is the 
fourth in a series of meetings regarding the discussion of the Medical Cannabis Regulation 

32 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 2 

and Safety Act (MCRSA) and the proposed Medical Cannabis Land Use Ordinance. He said 
at this meeting, the Council will be discussing the State's Track and Trace Program and 
Local Tax Options. 

He continued with a staff report and said Track and Trace is a three part program regulated 
by the Department of Food and Agriculture, the Bureau of Medical Cannabis Regulations, 
and the State Board of Equalization. The intent is to basically limit or prevent fraud by 
illegal diversion or collection of taxes. 

He noted that the Governor has allocated $8 million in the State's budget for Track and 
Trace software. 

Community Development Director Caldwell continued with review of the proposed 
MMRSA Track and Trace Regulations. City ojRio Dell Commercial Medical Cannabis 
Land Use Ordinance. 

He explained that in order to identify permitted medical marijuana plants at a cultivation 
site, a unique identifier such as a zip tie will be attached to the base of each plant. He said 
these identifiers and associated identifying information administered by the City will 
adhere to the requirements set by the State and will include information such as: 

,. The quantity or weight, and variety of products shipped. 
,. The estimated times of departure and arrival. 
;. The quantity or weight, and variety of products received. 
,. The actual time of departure and arrival. 
,. A categorization of the product (flowers, edibles etc.). 
,. The license number and the unique identifier for all licenses involved. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that the track and trace program does 
not apply to qualified patients or primary caregivers cultivating marijuana for personal 
medical use provided they comply with the maximum cultivation area under the City's 
regulations. 

He explained the track and trace database is designed to flag irregularities for all licensing 
authorities who will have access to the database and be able to share information related to 
licensees. Also, the licensing authorities and state and local agencies may at any time, 
inspect shipments and request documentation for current inventory. 

It was also noted that dispensaries will no longer be able to keep loose marijuana buds in a 
jar on the counter and everything will be required to be individually pre-packaged. 

33 



MAY 24,2016 MINUTES 
Page 3 

Council member Thompson said regarding tracking of tobacco products, he believes there is 
a massive black market for cigarettes. He said a lot of tobacco comes in from other 
countries and he feels the track and trace program will be just another program the state 
will not be able to control. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson stated that it is significantly true between states with high 
cigarette taxes such as New York and said cigarettes are brought in from other states to 
avoid the tax. 

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that the City of Arcata has entered into 
an agreement with Bio-Track THC for their track and trace program whereas; the County 
has chosen to implement a pilot program with SICPA. 

He noted that staff recently met with a SICPA representative to discuss their track and trace 
program and currently there are twelve (12) cultivators who have volunteered to 
participate in the pilot program. He said both SICPA and Bio-Track THC have offered to 
make presentations to the City Council. He explained that this goes hand-in-hand with any 
tax program the city adopts. 

Councilmember Thompson referred to the second page of Attachment 1 of the packet 
related to the steps under the track and trace program and expressed concern that there 
were items listed in the information packet to Council not included in the proposed 
ordinance. 

Community Development Director Caldwell explained that the proposed ordinance recites 
state law and that the language hasn't changed except for some minor revisions. 

Mayor Wilson said as things evolve there will be changes and asked if the ordinance will 
have to go back to the Planning Commission for review. 

Staff explained it would only need to go back to the Planning Commission is there were 
significant changes to the ordinance. 

He referred to the Legislative Analyst Office (LAO) website which talks about revisions. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson stated that he would like to hear from representatives of the track 
and trace programs. 

Community Development Director Caldwell pointed out that the general fund would have 
to bear the cost of implementing a track and trace program without having any cannabis 
related businesses operating in the city yet. He noted that the state's cost is approximately 
$8 million but the cost for the city is unknown at this time. 

34 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 4 

He noted that SICPA invited the city to participate in the pilot program with the county at 
no cost provided the city has any applicants between July and November which is when the 
pilot program will run. 

Mayor Wilson asked if participation in a track and trace program is required upon approval 
of a cultivation license. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that they would not be required to 
participate in a program until 2018 and until then, they would be allowed to operate. 
He said he spoke to someone at the 8ureau of Medical Cannabis Regulations (BMMCR) and 
was told that the city can issue local licenses without the permittee obtaining a state 
license. 

He commented that Daniel Sparks from Bio-Track THC just arrived and is available to 
answer specific questions related to their track and trace program. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson commented that staff had mentioned that the State is backing 
away from requiring individual identifiers such as zip ties on clones and is thinking about 
only requiring them on batches. He asked what constitutes a batch said there are a lot of 
different products produced from plants and asked how they are going to keep track of 
everything from the cloning room to the dispensary. 

Daniel Sparks explained that a batch is quantified by what the governing agency 
determines it to be. He said in the state of Washington there is a Sib. limit on batches so for 
that size of batch, a certain size of sampling is given to the testing laboratory for testing of 
whatever the governing agency determines to test for. 

He noted that in Washington they require plants to be weighed before and after they are 
dried and that data is entered into the track and trace system. 

He explained that Bio-Track THC has two (2) versions of the track and trace software; the 
government version traceability and the private sector commercial version. 

Council member Thompson presented the example of someone starting offwith Sibs. of 
marijuana and it is put into the track and trace program but as it moves on through the 
various processes breaking it down asked who is responsible then and how Bio-Track 
guarantees the product is tracked once it's broken down. He commented that this is where 
people who want to avoid paying taxes will divert some of the product. 

Daniel Sparks stated that no vendor can guarantee 100% that there will be no diversion or 
inversion of the product into the black market but the program provides a window for 
regulators to spot instances where there needs to be further investigation. 

35 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
PageS 

Councilmember Thompson asked who enters the information into the system. 

Daniel Sparks explained under a vertically integrated program the grower could also be the 
dispensary and actually also the extractor. He said under the MMRSA there are limitations 
for vertical integration so there will be certain instances where someone can have two (2) 
license types, potentially a cultivator and dispensary but under MMRSA as he understands 
it, there are a set of controls to somewhat mitigate what Council member Thompson is 
referencing. 

Council member Thompson pointed out that it seems that information is going to be 
entered by people that may not be trustworthy. 

Daniel Sparks disagreed and said a majority of these will be legally operated businesses 
who are willing to comply with regulations. He said the process will separate the good 
actors from the bad actors. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson commented that Washington is different because they have both 
medical and recreational marijuana and asked if he knows the significance of problems in 
Washington with the black market and if the Council is encouraging the black market to 
exist by doing this. 

Daniel Sparks said he thinks that regulations that put undue burden on a culture that has 
dealt with a lot of persecution from various law enforcement groups promotes the black 
market. He said again, they are not all bad actors and a lot of people are seeing this 
community as a place with people that sustain their families through abiding by the law as 
it currently stands. He stated that he believes there is a minority of people operating as 
Council member Thompson described. 

Mayor Wilson asked if he had any information on which license types tend to have more 
problems. 

He said as far as data, Colorado has a thriving medical marijuana system that co-exists with 
their adult recreational marijuana industry. 

Mayor Wilson said he is good with medical marijuana when being used as intended and 
said he has learned a lot about it over the last several months. However, he still sees this as 
potential to divert marijuana into the black market for recreational use. He said cultivation 
and processing are areas where it could be loosely monitored and there is certainly room in 
this process to find a way to get around regulations. 

He said in the beginning of the review process, the Council looked at land use to see where 
the various businesses would most appropriately fit and reserved the idea at that time that 
they may not be appropriate in certain zones. He noted that some businesses that generate 

36 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 6 

larger revenue such as a highly regulated facility like the plan presented to the Council at a 
former meeting may need more control versus greenhouses in the rural areas ofthe City. 
He pointed out that this is a learning process for the Council and he understands what 
Council member Thompson is saying because there certainly is room in this process for 
people to abuse it. 

He commented that there is a growing movement by people beginning to surface who are 
interested in opening medical marijuana related businesses but the Council is also seeing 
people in the community that have other concerns. He said as a Council they are here to 
serve the entire community and it is their responsibility to get it right. 

Councilmember Marks asked what the cost is for implementing their track and trace 
program. 

Daniel Sparks explained for the governmental traceability version what they have offered 
the city of Arcata and what they have agreed upon is what they are referring to as a zero
burden model which is effectively where the permittees sustain the program through a 
small fee that is issued upon a triggering event such as harvesting, transporting, etc. He 
said how those triggering events are delineated is to be determined but is a very small fee 
operationally for the permittee; literally 1 cent per identifier. As such, there is a zero 
burden on cities themselves. In addition, Bio-Track collects a 1 cent fee from the permittee 
for every bar code issued which is how they operate. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that the MMRSA authorizes the state to 
iinpose fees for the track and trace program to recover their costs. 

Mayor Wilson asked if businesses, for the most part, are willing to absorb the cost of the 
program and said it's a great idea that the city is going to get money to fix all the city's 
problems but what he keeps hearing is that it is "yet to be determined." 

Daniel Sparks noted that the federal government prohibits cannabis related businesses to 
write off any overhead costs because it is classified as a schedule 1 drug. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson questioned how these companies propose to make any profit 
without having any tax write orrs. 

Daniel Sparks said the cost is basically transferred to patients as part of the cost of the 
medicine. He stated that California has allowed medical marijuana since 1996 and just 
recently passed the Medical Marijuana Regulations Safety Act. Since then, there has been a 
lot of progress made but there is a lot to be determined by every level of government. He 
said the facilities operating within the law will remain in business. 

37 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 7 

Councilmember Thompson said as councilmembers serving the citizens of Rio Dell they 
were all sworn in to abide by all city, state and federal laws. He said marijuana cultivation 
is illegal under federal law and as councilmembers they could basically be hung out to dry. 

His concern was that government at a higher level could say the industry is getting out 
hand and come after local jurisdictions. 

Daniel Sparks noted that cannabis is designated as a schedule 1 drug and the Department 
of Justice has been defunded against prosecuting at the state and local level. He said the 
creation of a regulated program is to make sure people are getting the right medicine, kids 
are protected, and facilities are operating within the law. He said a regulated market 
promotes and insures quality assurance which is actually a service to the community. 

Mayor Wilson called for public comment. 

Susan Strahan said she is totally against marijuana and that she works in the medical field 
and has been dealing with Obama Care which has been a disaster. 

She referred to an article in the Lost Coast Outpost today talking about what a disaster it has 
been and the challenges the county is facing since adoption of a Commercial Medical 
Marijuana Land Use Ordinance and the strain it has put on current resources and staff. 

She added that she was not able to attend the last meeting but doesn't want what this 
element brings to the community. She said there is already a problem and it doesn't matter 
how much money the Council thinks the city will collect in taxes and questioned how much 
more it will cost for extra police protection. She said everyone wants citizens to believe 
what they are saying but marijuana is illegal and marijuana industry will bring in an 
element to Rio Dell that she doesn't want here. 

Tom Bertain addressed the Council and said he is opposed to the Medical Marijuana 
proposal being discussed. He said he believes it is an inappropriate fit for Rio Dell and will 
have a serious impact on the social and cultural environment. He added that just because 
the state has passed a law making it legal doesn't mean it is morally correct or acceptable 
byeveryone. He questioned how much of that extra revenue will be spent on oversight, 
infrastructure, code enforcement, labor costs and other expenses before the remaining 
funds are spent on improving the quality of life for the citizens of Rio Dell. He said this is a 
good place to live and the citizens and residents of Rio Dell are the stakeholders in this 
situation. He asked for the Council's consideration to reflect the citizen's wellbeing and 
tranquility of life. 

David Bridge commented that there is a process to avoid diversion of marijuana and said 
in Colorado the entire process has to be on camera including the destruction of any 
products. 

38 



MAY 24,2016 MINUTES 
PageS 

He noted that a research company called Straight Line Analytics provides analytic expertise 
and did research on track and trace programs in Colorado and Washington. He said with 
regard to costs, they talk about diversion costs, cost for code enforcement as well as taxes 
which may help answer a lot of questions. He said he would provide the website link to 
staff. 

Melissa Marks said she got the impression that track and trace programs need to be 
compatible and said she can see that as additional costs. 

Daniel Sparks explained a multiple-vendor approach as it relates to the track and trace 
program would not require additional costs. He said he talked to SICPA representatives 
and participants in that program will also be participating in that co-habitation that will 
likely occur. 

He said with regard to the different systems, be it for the City of Arcata, the County of 
Humboldt, the State of California or the Federal Government, they will create a customized 
platform that allows both the regulators and the businesses to comply with whatever that 
requirement is. 

Mayor Wilson asked if there will be a mandated standard format for reporting. 

Daniel Sparks said Bio-Tech THC uses an (API) Application Program Interface so the 
program can communicate with other programs. He noted that as a third party tracking 
vendor, they can upload data to the state's program. 

Faith Hansen commented that she is opposed to the proposed marijuana ordinance and 
appreciates the City Council wanting to take the time to slow down to look at it a little 
more. She said her family recently moved back to Rio Dell and is still trying to catch up on 
everything going on but she did call the city of Fortuna and was told by the Assistant to the 
City Manager that they decided to ban the program in Fortuna. She said eventually they 
will revisit this but in order to meet the deadline they chose to ban it Also, they didn't 
want to be the "ginny pigs" and lose money in the process. She wondered why Rio Dell 
hasn't chosen to do that as well. She referred to the problems in the County and said they 
are looking at a castrophe and is completely unprepared with the manpower needed to 
address the situation. She asked if the little city of Rio Dell is prepared for the costs 
associated with implementation of the Medical Marijuana Land Use Ordinance. She said 
aside from that, is the city prepared for what it will bring including extra costs as well as 
crime. 

'ames Bidwell reminded everyone that the Arcata dispensary was voted as Business of the 
Year and said Arcata has adapted well to the new regulations and crime has not increased 
as a result of it. He said to deny medicine to patients that need it is to deny 100 miles of 
medicine and the suggestion to restrict dispensaries to the Eel River Industrial Park is only 

39 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 9 

opening opportunities up to big industries. He suggested the ordinance be revised to allow 
small dispensaries in other area of the city. 

Community Development Director Caldwell noted that the City Council will actually be 
discussing dispensaries at their June 7, 2016 regular meeting. 

Alonzo Bradford addressed the Council and said he had a neuropathic seizure and was 
stuck inside all day and unable to do anything. He said he can't tolerate most pain 
medication and if there was anything here on that day that could have helped such as a 
local dispensary or even a neighbor who grows would have been helpful noting that 
medical marijuana provides the most relief. He noted that there is a 2 page list of the 
medications he has to take to function and that he has a body of an 80 year due to all of his 
medical issues. He asked the Council to think about people that lose a day of their life when 
it could be avoided with medical marijuana. He asked the Council to not ignore people who 
are really sick and need it and not to bring in the recreational aspect of it but to think of it 
as alternative medication and the relief it provides. 

The public comment period was closed. 

Council member Thompson commented that he also spoke with the Mayor of Fortuna and 
verified what Ms. Hansen said was correct. He said he is greatly concerned about the 
activities already done because as this effort progresses the Council keeps being told it is in 
the process and won't be implemented until 2018 or 2020 which tells him there's no hurry 
for the city to adopt a bad ordinance and said he feels it is bad the way it is being proposed. 
He expressed concern that the areas proposed for cultivation is taking real estate off the 
market and restricting parcels available for construction of new homes. 

He stated that he was prepared to make a motion and confirmed with the City Clerk that he 
is allowed to do so under legal protocol. 

A motion was then made by Council member Thompson that the City Council sends the 
Medical Marijuana Land Use Ordinance back to the Planning Commission with direction to 
bring forth a new ordinance to incorporate the area that includes the former Eel River 
Sawmill site bordered by Northwestern Ave. on the northeast side of Highway 101 and on 
the southwest side and entrance on the south end with a new land use designation of 
Marijuana Industrial Commercial (MIC). 

He added that he in no way will be in favor of allowing unlimited grows in the proposed 
zoning designations so at this time is presenting the proposed motion to the council for 
consideration. 

Mayor Wilson asked for a point of clarification from the City Clerk on the legality of the 
motion. 

40 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 10 

City Clerk Dunham stated that the item on the agenda is a continued public hearing on the 
Commercial Medical Cannabis Ordinance so the motion seems to be within the agenized 
subject matter. 

Council member Thompson stated that the motion on the floor needs to have a second to 
move forward; once that occurs it can be brought to discussion. 

Community Development Director Caldwell expressed concern that most of the 
participants of these meetings were of the understanding that the City Council was going to 
discuss taxation and the track and trace program at this meeting. He said he indicated that 
on June 7, 2016 would be discussion on dispensaries and testing laboratories and the 
ordinance in general including different aspects of the ordinance. He said he feels it would 
be a more appropriate time to discuss it then so duly public notice is provided for 
stakeholders involved and members of the community. 

Mayor Wilson deferred back to the City Clerk. 

City Clerk Dunham clarified that Council member Thompson is correct in that any 
council member can bring a motion to the floor provided the motion is related to an item on 
the agenda; also a second is required to discuss or debate the issue. 

She said as the Community Development Director indicated the two main topics of 
discussion tonight are the tract and trace program and taxation although the agenda does 
state the continued public hearing on the Medical Cannabis Land Use Regulations 
Ordinance. She said with that it seems that it is basically a matter of interpretation. 

City Manager Knopp stated that the agenda item is dedicated to the track and trace 
program and tax options and since Council member Garnes is not in attendance and in the 
interest of full transparency, suggested the discussion be deferred to the June 7, 2016 
regular meeting with a full council which is the next opportunity for the City Council to vote 
on the ordinance. He said the next step is for the Mayor to call for a second on the motion. 

Mayor Wilson deferred to the City Clerk once again. 

City Clerk Dunham advised that if the mayor or a council member would like to second the 
motion, the matter would then be open for discussion and a vote. 

Mayor Wilson called for a second on the motion; the motion died due to lack of a second. 

41 



MAY 24. 2016 MINUTES 
Page 11 

Council member Thompson stated that he is very disappointed in the direction the City 
Council is taking regarding opening up zones for cultivation and other activities. He said 
the people who live here have spent millions of dollars in improvements and feels the 
proposed cultivation is too large for the City Council to control and that the area north of 
the city as proposed is adequate. 

Mayor Wilson responded to the comments made by Alonzo Bradford and said he had a 
conversation with his Pastor who went through six years of watching his wife suffer with 
mUltiple sclerosis (MS) before her tragic death and said she had a morphine pump in her 
stomach and said there was no pain medication that would relieve the pain. He said he 
finally was able to see the pain go away with a medical marijuana vapor spray and edibles. 
He said he also watched what his wife went thorough after her recent auto accident and 
became aware of the potential side effects of the drugs that were prescribed to her. Since 
that time he said he has become an advocate for medical marijuana. realizing its medical 
benefits. 

He said he is still in the learning stage and is in favor of slowing down the approval process. 
He noted that the City Council has the best interest of the community and respects their 
opinions. He encouraged people on both sides of the issue to bring feedback to the Council 
and said the Council will listen to everyone's concerns. He said he also understands there 
are people that want to bring business to Rio Dell to boost the economy but the issue is not 
quite as simplistic as he originally thought 

Mayor Wilson called for a 5 minute recess at 7:53 p.m. 

The meeting reconvened at 7:59 p.m. 

Presentation on Medical Cannabis Tax Measure for November 2016 Ballot 
City Manager Knopp provided a power point presentation on the Medical Marijuana Tax 
Measure for the November 2016 Ballot. 

He began by providing background information beginning in 1996 when Prop 215 was 
passed to 2015 when Governor Brown signed into law the Medical Marijuana Safety and 
Regulation Act (MMRSA). 

He said among the many clarifications contained within MMRSA, the law clearly reinforces 
the ability for local government to tax medical cannabis and wanted to make sure everyone 
differentiates between the Medical Marijuana Land Use Ordinance and the Tax 
Measure as this only relates to taxation. 

City Manager Knopp said the tax would only impact permit holders who cultivate, process 
and dispense medical cannabis so anyone not involved in marijuana would not pay the tax. 

42 



MAY 24,2016 MINUTES 
Page 12 

He noted that the state of California collected $63 million in sales taxes from medical 
marijuana sales last year and since the city doesn't have a dispensary, did not collect any of 
those taxes. 

He continued with review of two (2) legislative bills being proposed that are not included 
in the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act (MMRSA) which are: 

;;.. S8 987 by Senator McGuire to impose a 15% excise tax on retail purchases of 
medical marijuana, above and beyond the current 7.5+ sales tax plus various 
local business taxes assessed by some localities. 

~ A8 2243 by Assemblyman Wood to impose a cultivation tax of$9.25 per 
ounce on medical marijuana flowers, $2.75 per ounce on leaves, and $1.25 on 
each immature plant sold to licensed distributors in the state. 

He noted that both bills require a 2/3 majority vote to pass and SB 987 is criticized as 
being a simple "sin tax" whereas; AB 2243 is seen as being more industry friendly. 

City Manager Knopp pointed out that if the goal is to end the cannabis black market, taxes 
have to be reasonable. 

He explained the Adult Use o/Marijuana Act is considered to be the most likely marijuana 
legalization ballot measure to succeed in November and includes: 

;... 15% sales tax plus $9.25 per ounce on flower and $2.75 per ounce on leaves. 
,. Restricts Corporate/Large Scale Licensee's. 
,. Allows local governments to tax. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson asked if the 15% sales tax is in addition to the normal sales tax. 

Community Development Director Caldwell explained the 15% is exempt for medical 
marijuana and ifit passes it will eliminate the current tax on medical marijuana. 

Next was review of other regulatory fees and possible extension of the county tax on 
municipalities which was reported to be unlikely. 

City Manager Knopp stated that the proposals as presented will guarantee the state will 
take the majority of all new cannabis revenues; under the Medical Marijuana Regulation 
and Safety Act (MMRSA) local governments will take on a high regulatory burden under 
duel permitting; and if no tax is levied, the city will still be taking on a high regulatory 
burden. 

43 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 13 

He said the question is whether the City Council wants to propose a General Tax or a 
Specific (Special) Tax on Medical Cannabis. 

He explained a Special Tax requires 2/3 voter approval, is used for a specific purpose, and 
is less likely to achieve voter approval whereas; a General Tax only requires a simple 
majority vote (50% + 1) to pass and may be used by the city for any lawful purpose. For 
the General Tax ballot measure to move forward, it must be consolidated with the regular 
general election on November 8,2016. 

City Manager Knopp then presented three (3) Business Tax Options including: 

:.- Flat Rate, Percentage Based Tax 
,. Square Footage Tax 
~ Specific Excise Tax 

Councilmember Thompson asked what one (1) ounce of cannabis sells for. 

David Bridge commented that it depends on seasonality and also quality. He said one (1) 
pound can go as low as $500 and currently it is selling at around $1,800 - $2,200 per 
pound. 

Another member of the public said an ounce would perhaps sell for $80 - $100. 

City Manager Knopp noted that the administrative burden between a Business Tax and 
Excise Tax is minimal. 

Councilmember Thompson asked if the tax can be included as part of the Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) and annual inspection process. 

Community Development Director Caldwell pointed out that government agencies cannot 
charge any more than the actual cost of providing a service. He said those fees are separate 
and distinct from the tax options talked about now. 

City Manager Knopp continued with review of other cannabis tax ballot measures passed in 
other jurisdictions across the state including Desert Hot Springs, Oakland, Long Beach, 
Shasta Lake, and Vallejo. He stated that there is no set standard between jurisdictions and 
noted that the City Attorney referred staff to Vallejo's ballot measure/tax method which 
appears to have the highest degree of flexibility. 

He provided a handout on potential Points o/Taxation - Medical Cannabis MMRSA and 
said the Vallejo tax method establishes differing tax rates for different categories of 
marijuana businesses as defined by ordinance. He commented that they charge marijuana 

44 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 14 

businesses a tax of up to 10% and the Council can amend that rate up to a total of 10% by 
ordinance. 

Councilmember Thompson used the Arcata dispensary as an example and asked if they 
were to start the business of delivering products to sell to the Rio Dell community if they 
would be required to get a business license from Rio Dell similar to other businesses that 
deliver goods. 

City Clerk Dunham explained it depends on the actual point of sale so if the business 
transaction takes place in Rio Dell they would be subject to a Business License. Whereas, if 
they are only delivering goods purchased in Arcata, they are exempt under the Delivery by 
Vehicle section of the ordinance. 

City Manager Knopp reviewed the Ballot Measure Calendar and said July 5,2016 is the 
final target date for adoption of the Resolution and Ordinance on any proposed tax 
measure. He noted that staff has set aside all Tuesdays in June to complete the review with 
June 14th targeted for introduction of the ordinance and June 21st for possible adoption or 
July 5th if necessary. 

Council member Thompson asked what happens if the city approves the tax measure and 
three years dowri the road, the City Council discovers it isn't right. He questioned the 
mechanism for eliminating the tax or lowering it. 

City Manager Knopp explained the Council has the authority to reduce a tax by ordinance 
but to increase a tax, it would require going back on the ballot for a majority vote of the 
people. 

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that Vallejo's sliding tax scale seems to 
be the best option because of the flexibility it allows. 

Councilmember Thompson stated that he has expressed his concerns regarding the need to 
protect children and create a mechanism to provide funding for schools. He said based on 
recent statistics he has researched, any jurisdiction that has approved marijuana 
regulations has generated problems in schools. 

He said Leslie Yale, Rio Dell School Superintendent is already looking into hiring a 
counselor at $93,000 and said that he feels that through the marijuana industry, $200,000 
needs to be generated either through taxes or some other method to help address 
problems in the school. 

He suggested a study session be held with the representatives from the school to discuss 
potential options. 

45 



MAY 24,2016 MINUTES 
Page 15 

Mayor Wilson questioned whether the statistics he was referring to is specifically related to 
medical marijuana or recreational marijuana. 

Councilmember Thompson said it is related to 215 cards. 

Mayor Wilson asked if there are problems currently in the Rio Dell school system related to 
215 cards. 

Council member Thompson responded that the information is confidential but according to 
what he has read in the newspapers there are problems associated with kids in schools 
with parents who have 215 cards. 

Mayor Wilson stated that he is not minimizing there are problems in school and said he has 
grandchildren who attend Rio Dell School and is aware of the need for a school counselor 
but is not understanding what the problems are with regard to medical marijuana. He 
agreed with the idea of having a study session with the school. 

City Manager Knopp stated that perhaps the Council member Thompson could advocate for 
1/3 of the tax collected to go to the school but it would be a Special Tax. Also, there is 
nothing in the General Tax that says the city can't dedicate a portion of that revenue to fund 
drug addiction programs. 

He said the question is whether the Council wants a General Tax or a Special Tax that is 
basically carved in stone, or leave the discretion to future City Council's as to where the tax 
should go. 

Mayor Wilson stated that this is another point of discussion and he is not prepared to 
decide tonight. He said there is a strong argument in having a Special Tax if the goal is to 
address the needs of the school which necessitates the need to have a study session and sit 
down with school officials and see if that's what they want. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson asked how the Vallejo tax program is working out. 

City Manager Knopp said staff can look into it and come back to Council with additional 
information. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson said that he is leaning toward a General Tax and the Vallejo model 
is an interesting one to consider. He also noted that he may be out of State on June 14th and 
thinks that it is absolutely critical to have all five (5) voting members present to make the 
decision. 

City Manager Knopp said he was trying to think of an example where a Special Tax was 
used for medical marijuana or cannabis in general but can't think of one. 

46 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 16 

He stated that staffwill try and schedule a follow-up meeting but there are some 
fundamental questions staff is going to need guidance from the Council on in order to move 
forward with an initial draft of a proposed ordinance. He said specifically the questions are 
Related to the type of tax whether it is a General Tax or Special Tax, and the Business Tax 
option of a flat rate tax, square footage tax or specific excise tax. 

He pointed out that whatever options the Council chooses, the language will have to be 
reviewed by the city attorney. 

He said the goal is to bring the black market into compliance because it is the black market 
that encourages crime and creates a lot of the devastation that is seen not just in this 
community but in other north coast communities and across California. He noted that the 
city needs to set a tax level where the city gets its fair share but isn't too greedy and taking 
in a huge amount of money. 

He also pointed out that Rio Dell is strategically in a good position in that there has been a 
lot of interest from professional people in this business in terms of processing cannabis and 
also geographically in the heart of the Emerald Triangle, along Highway 101 and trucking 
routes. He said there are a lot of unincorporated areas surrounding the city and if there is a 
processing center where products can be exported to huge markets throughout the state 
and the city is able to create a competitive tax scheme, the city and the community will 
benefit and will have a better opportunity to address the so called "bad actors" who are 
spoiling the industry for everyone. He reiterated that considerations for the Council are the 
flexibility of the tax and the duration of the tax. 

Mayor Wilson said when talking about processing centers and people bringing product in 
from other locations, wanted to know if those have to be licensed, regulatory grows. 

Staff responded that they would have to be. 

Council member Thompson stated that the Council is being pushed hard on all of this and 
asked what the consequences are to go ahead and move it to the November election. 

City Manager Knopp said the reason he wanted to differentiate between the MCLUO and 
the tax measure is because the City Council can put a tax measure on the ballot and voters 
can vote on it but the real hammer in terms of controlling medical cannabis and potentially 
legal adult recreational cannabis is going to be through the Council's power through the 
Land Use Ordinance. 

He said what that means is that the Council can set a tax but don't necessarily have to 
authorize these businesses to come to the community in the end. 

47 



MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 17 

Mayor Wilson said it makes no sense to create an ordinance to allow medical marijuana 
activities without having a tax mechanism in place. 

Community Development Director Caldwell clarified that if the tax doesn't pass, the Council 
can simply repeal the ordinance. 

He noted that on June 7th the discussion will focus on dispensaries, testing laboratories and 
as requested by the Council, will be revisiting cultivation sites. He said assuming the 
Council is able to get through those items; there will possibly be time to talk again about tax 
initiatives. 

Mayor Wilson pointed out the busy schedule and said unless mid-week informational 
meetings are scheduled; the Council will not get through everything and is essentially 
running out of time. 

Community Development Director Caldwell stated that one option the Council may want to 
consider is to suspend ordinance discussions at this point in order to fine tune the ballot 
measure. 

He pointed out that if the ordinance is not adopted, the tax would obviously not be 
implemented even ifit's passed by the voters. 

City Manager Knopp said what they did in Desert Hot Springs is actually passed the tax 
measure before they were actually authorized to collect revenue so when the ordinance 
was in place they were able to collect it. 

Mayor Pro Tern Johnson said about a month ago he had requested a medical doctor attend 
a meeting and asked ifthat is still on the horizon. 

City Manager Knopp commented that he has not yet received confirmation from Dr. Baird 
but is continuing to make contact with other doctors. 

Discussion continued regarding the upcoming meeting schedule. 

City Manager Knopp noted that staff wanted to schedule a study session with GHD 
regarding City projects and there may be opportunity to combine that study session with 
discussions with the doctors. 

Council members agreed that it would be better to not combine the two meetings and 
agreed to set aside every Tuesday in June for cannabis related issues. 

48 



ADJOURNMENT 

MAY 24, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 18 

Motion was made by Johnson/Marks to adjourn the meeting at 9:20 p.m. to the June 7, 
2016 regular meeting. Motion carried 4-0. 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 
Attest: 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

49 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Avelllle 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
rioliellcity.mlll 

June 7, 2016 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

CITY Of 

~ DELL 
LAlJfOIt'IA 

SUBJECT: Authorize the Mayor to Sign Letter of Endorsement for Gordon Johnson as City 
Representative to the Local Agency Formation Commission 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Approve Authorize the Mayor to Sign Letter of Endorsement for the Appointment of 
Councilmember Johnson as the City Representative to the Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCo) 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

LAFCo is composed of a seven member board which includes two County supervisorial 
members appointed by the Board of Supervisors, two city council members appointed by the 
HCAOG Mayor Selection Committee, two special district members appointed through a special 
district board nomination process, and one public member selected by the other six members. 
Commission members serve four-year terms. There is also one alternate member for each of the 
four classifications. 

Councilmember Johnson has expressed interest in serving on the Board and is requesting the 
City Council's endorsement. 

III 

50 



Rio Dell Ci(I' Hall 
675 Wildwood r/ I'elllle 
Rio Dell. CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellci~I'.C01/l 

June 7, 2016 

Mayor City Selection Committee 
Humboldt County Local Agency Formation Commission 
1125 16th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, CA 95521 

RE: Support for Gordon Johnson on LAFCo 

To whom it may concern, 

LA\JQftMJ\. 

At the regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council held on June 7,2016, the City 
Council voted unanimously to approve the endorsement of Councilmember 
Gordon Johnson as the continued City Representative to the Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCo). 

Council member Johnson expressed interest in serving and would like to be 
considered for additional time on the Commission. Councilmember Johnson has a 
wealth of experience in both private and public sectors, experience with LAFCo, 
and has the temperament required for this leadership position. 

Councilmember Johnson would be a tremendous asset to LAFCo and on the behalf 
of the Rio Dell City Council we thank you for your consideration of his continued 
appointment to the Commission. 

Sincerely, 

Frank Wilson 
Mayor, City of Rio Dell 

Page 1 of 1 

51 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood A vel/lie 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(7()7) 764-3532 
riodellcit),.colll 

June 7, 2015 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manage~ 
SUBJECT: Annual Adjustment to Eel River Disposal Garbage Rates 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

OTY Of 

iffJtM\ 
dU~.a :) DELL 

Approve the proposed rate adjustment with Eel River Disposal and accept it as an amendment to 
the Solid Waste and Recycling Franchise Agreement, effective July 1,2016. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The Solid Waste Franchise Agreement with Eel River Disposal (ERD) contains a Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) adjustment in section 2.03.04. As documented in the packet, the new disposal 
rate per ton is $113.89, an increase of $0.09. The CPI rate adjustment for January of 2016 is 
+ 1.4% and so therefor, the change in the disposal rate per ton that can be attributed to ERD has 
increased by $0.09 cent. Last year, there was an actual decline in the CPI, leading to a $.01 per 
ton decrease for ERD. Aggregated per ton costs associated with Humboldt Waste Management 
Authority fees remained level compared to last year. 

Attached is a comparison with fee levels from last year along with a cover letter from Eel River 
Disposal. 

The adjusted disposal rates can be found in Exhibit A. 

The CPI adjustment has been applied to the collection rate pursuant to the contract. The new 
collection rates can be found on Exhibit B. 

Exhibit C details the combined rate, which is simply the disposal rate by size plus the collections 
rate by size. Together, these total the combined rate. (Exhibit A + Exhibit B = Exhibit c) 

Exhibit D displays the Bureau of Labor Statistics data for the CPI calculation. 

Exhibit E is attached to demonstrate the breakdown of the per ton rate by size ofthe container 

Exhibit F displays the services provided directly to the City through the franchise agreement. 
III 

52 



Solid Waste Fees - City of Rio Dell 
Effective Date 1 7/1/20151 7/1/2016 

I IIIl I fI S 

ERD Labor Cost (75% ofCPI) S7.07 S7.14 
ERD Operations (75% ofCPI) S4.38 S4.43 
ERD Scale Maintenance (75% ofCPI) SO.77 SO.78 
ERD Haul Cost Avoidance (75% ofCPI) -SI0.71 -SI0.82 
ERD Capital Cost (fixed fcc) S5.88 S5.88 
ERD Return on Investment (75% ofCPI) 56.69 56.76 

Subtotal 514.0S 514.17 

1/\\\1\ " " 

Countywide Program Fees 
Administration 51.91 51.91 
1·lousehold Hazardou, Waste Program 56.29 56.43 
Cummings Road Loodfill Muinlcnancc 54.67 $4.44 

CleanuplEnforcement Program, 50.57 50.57 
Rural Container Program $4.52 54.68 
CountylCities AB939 Program, 54.93 $4.52 
Table BluffLnndfili Maintennnce 50.94 50.81 
Countywide Enforcement (LEA) 52.66 53./3 

Subtotal 526.49 526.49 

HWMA Ba,e Fee, 

Administration $4.30 $4.30 
Universal Woste Programs 50.89 50.89 
Recycling Progroms 56.l8 56.38 
Cummings Road Lnndfill Ope"'tion, 55.50 55.50 

Subtotal 517.07 517.07 

Facility Fee, 

Operation, (Transportation & Disposnl) 555.01 555.01 
Indirect 0 50.00 
Capital Expenditures N/A N/A 

Subtotal 555.01 555.01 

OIl/II! III" 

Fortunu Host Fee (pass through) 51.15 SI.I5 
Subtotal 5\.15 5\.15 

101\1" " 

Total ERD Fees 14.0S 14.17 

Total HWMA Fe .. 59S.57 598.57 

Total Other Fee. 5\.15 5\.15 

Grand Total All Fee. Ill.S0 1l3.S9 

53 



May 23, 2016 

City of Rio Dell 
Mr. Kyle Knopp 
675 Wildwood Ave 
Rio Dell, CA, 95562 

EEL RIVER DISPOSAL & 
RESOURCE RECOVERY 

725-5156 

RE: Rate! increase to be effective 7-1-16 

Dear Kyle: 

Please find enclosed new rate sheets renecting our proposed rate change based upon the 
CPI, this year the change is + 1.4 %. There was an increase in the disposal rate, last year 
the rate was $ 113.80 per ton and this year it is $ 113.89 per ton. The rate change should 
be effective July 1, 2016. 

If you should have any questions I can be reached at 725-5156. 

Karen Smith 
Office Manager 

P.O. Box 266 • Fortuna, CA 95540 • (707) 725-5156 

54 



07/01116 

ERO FEES 

ERO Labor Cost 

ERO Operalion 

ERO Scale Maintenance 

ERD Haul Cost Avoidance 

ERO Capilal Cost 

ERD Return on Investment 

HWMAFEES 

Operations 

Indirect E:lCpenses 

Payroll 

Capital Expendilures 

Tlansportation 

Landfill 

Household Hazardous Waste Program 

County/City Recycling Programs 

Table Bluff Maintenance 

Counly Local Enforcemenl Agency (lEA) 

Cleanup Fees 

Cummings landfill Maintenance, Monltonng 

County Rural Container Subskiy 

Administration 

Other Fees (Fortuna Host fee of 1,15 per ton) 

TOTAL 

RIO DELL 

57. t4 75 % of CPI 

$4.43 75 % of CPI 

SO 78 75 % of CPI 

-51082 75 % of CPI 

55.88 FIXED FEE 
56 76 75 % of CPI 

S55.0t 

SO 00 

517.07 

SO 00 

S643 

$4 52 

SO.81 

53.13 

SO 57 

54.44 

$4.88 

51.91 

51.15 

5113.89 

55 



City of Rio Dell 113.89 Per Ton 
Disposal Rates Effective 7-1-16 

EXHIBIT A 

Bag Service 1 Bag 
Regular $1.92 

Monthly Rate 

20-Gallon Can 1 Can 
'xWeekly $5.19 

Monthly Rate 

32-Gallon Can 1 Can 2 Cans 3 Cans 4 Cans 
'xWeekly $8.31 $16.62 $24.94 $33.25 

2XWeekly $16.62 $33.25 $49.87 $66.50 

Monthly Rata 

Bins No Rental 1 Yard 1.5 Yard 2 Yard 3 Yard 4 Yard 6 Yard 8 Yard 
'xWeekly $52.47 $78.70 $104.94 $157.41 $209.88 $314.82 $419.75 
2xWeekly $104.94 $157.41 $209.88 $314.82 $419.75 $629.63 $839.51 
3XWeekly $157.41 $236.11 $314.82 $472.22 $629.63 $944.45 $1 ,259.26 

56 



City of Rio Dell Bold numbers 
Collection Rate effective 7-1-16 

EXHIBITB 0.014 

Bag Service 1 Bag 
Regular $4.49 

$4.55 

Curbside Recycling $6.14 

$6.23 

Monthly Rate 

20-Gallon Can 1 Can 
1xWeekly $15.27 

$15.48 

Monthly Rate 

32-Gallon Can 1 Can 2 Cans 3 Cans 4Cans 
lxWeekly $17.47 $24.48 $33.91 $39.94 

2XWeekly $30.48 $46.27 $65.16 $77.25 

$17.71 $24.82 $34.38 $40.50 
$30.91 $46.92 $66.07 $78.33 

Monthly Rate 

Bins No Rental 1 Yard 1.5 Yard 2 Yard 3 Yard 4 Yard 6 Yard 8 Yard 
1xWeekly $29.47 $44.20 $58.99 $88.50 $117.93 $176.98 $236.53 
2xWeekly $52.60 $87.82 $117.23 $175.75 $234.68 $351 .60 $468.83 
3XWeekly $88.50 $131 .82 $175.75 $263.77 $351 .60 $527.35 $703.57 

$29.88 $44.82 $59.82 $89.74 $119.58 $179.46 $239.84 
$53.34 $89.05 $118.87 $178.21 $237.97 $356.52 $475.39 
$89.74 $133.67 $178.21 $267.46 $356.52 $534.73 $713.42 

Bin Rental 1 Yard 1.5 Yard 2 Yard 3 Yard 4 Yard 6 Yard 8 Yard 
$19.65 $22.37 $25.14 $30.67 $36.07 $47.45 $55.30 

$19.93 $22.68 $25.49 $31.10 $36.57 $48.11 $56.07 

57 



Bag Service 1 Bag 
Regular $6.47 

Curbside Recycling $6.23 

Monthly Rate 

20-Gallon Can 1 Can 
lxWeekly $20.68 

Monthly Rate 

32-Gallon Can 1 Can 
lxWeekly $26.03 

2XWeekly $47.53 

Monthly Rat. 

Bins No Rental 1 Yard 
lxWeekly $82.35 
2xWeekly $158.28 
3XWeekly $247.15 

Bin Rental 1 Yard 
$19.93 

City of Rio Dell 

2 Cans 
$41 .45 
$80.17 

1.5 Yard 
$123.52 
$246.46 
$369.78 

1.5 Yard 
$22.68 

Combined Rate 
EXHIBITC 

3 Cans 
$59.32 

4 Cans 
$73.75 

$115.94 $144.83 

2 Yard 3 Yard 
$164.75 $247.15 
$328.75 $493.03 
$493.03 $739.69 

2 Yard 3 Yard 
$25.49 $31 .10 

To be effective 7-1-16 

4 Yard 6 Yard 8 Yard 
$329.46 $494.27 $659.60 
$657.72 $986.15 $1.314.90 
$986.15 $1,479.18 $1,972.68 

4 Yard 6 Yard 8 Yard 
$36.57 $48.11 $56.07 

58 



Bureau of Labor Statistics Data Page I of2 

A OCI Z IndeJl I FAQ$ I About SIS I CCnto!(.l Us Subscnbe to E' lNIil Updates Ell 
Follow Us I What's New J Release Calendar I Blog 

I Home I Subjects 1 Data Tools I Publications I Economic Releases 

Se!,/Irch BLS.gov 

Studenls I Beta 

Databases, Tables & Calculators by SUbject FOt, rSIZE Gffi 

Change Output Options: Fro." 12006 " I .To, 12016 "I <D 
o include graphs 0 Indude annual averages 

Data extracted on: May 19, 2016 (4:10:19 PM) 

More Formatting Options ..... 

Consumer Price Index - All Urban Consumers 

Sad .•• ld: CUUROOOOSAO 
No: Sea~onal l y Adjusted 
~.a: U.S. city ave r ag@ 
ltea: All 1te:r.~ 

B ••• Period: 1992-84 - 100 

Download: alE 
Year 'an I Feb Mar Apr May 'un - lui I Aug Sep odfNov 
2006 198.31 198.7 199.8 201.5 202.5 202.9 203.51 203.9 202.9 201.8 1 201.5 
2007 202.4161203.499 205.352 206.686 207.949 208.352 208.299 : 207.917 208.490 208.936 1210.177 

2008 211.080 1211.693 213.528 214.823 216.632 218.815 219.964 1219.086 218.783 216.5731212.425 

2009 211.1431212.193 212.709 213.240 213.856 215.693 215.3511215.834 215.969 216.177 1216.330 

2010 216.687 1216.741 217.631 218.009 218.178 217.965 218.011 I 218.312 218.439 218.711 1218.803 

2011 220.2231221.309 223.467 224.906 225.964 225.m 225.9221226.545 226.889 226.421 1226.230 
2012 226.6651227.663 229.392 230.085 229.815 229.478 229.104 ; 230.379 231.407 231.317 i 230.221 

2013 230.280 1232.166 232.m 232.531 232.945 233.504 233.596 i 233.877 234.149 233.546 1233.069 
2014 233.9161234.781 236.293 237.0n 237.900 238.343 238.2501237.852 238.0311237.433 1236.151 
2015 233.707 1 234.n2 236.119 236.599 237.805 238.638 238.654 1 ~ 237.9451237.8381237.336 
2016 236.9161237.111 238.132 239.261 1 I I 

12 .. Month Percent Change 
Se%i •• Id: CUUROOOOSAO 
Not Sea~onally Adju~ted 
Ar.a: U.S. city average 
IteR: All ltern3 
B •• a P~iod: 1982-84-100 

Download: £II!!!! 
V .. r 'an Feb Mar Apr May Jun JullAug ISep Oct Nov Dec HALFl HALF2 
200& 4.0 3.6 3.4 3.5 4.2 4.3 4.11 3.8! 2.1 1.3 2.0 2.5 3.8 2.6 1 

2007 2.1 2.4 2.8 2.6 2.7 2.7 2.41 2.0 2.8 3.5 4.3 4.1 2.5 3.11 
2008 43 4.0 4.0 3.9 4.2 5.0 5.6 5.4 I 4.9 : 3.7 1.1 0.11 4.2 3.41 
2009 0.0 0.2 -(1.4 -(1.7 -1.3 -1.4 -2.1 -1.5! '1.3 1-(1.2 \.8 2.7 -(1.6 -(1.1 ! 
2010 2.6 2.1 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.1 1.2 1.11 1.1, 1.2 1.1 1.5 2.1 1.21 
2011 1.6 2.1 2.7 3.2 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.8 ' 3.9 3.5 3.4 3.0 2.8 3.S 
2012 2.9 2.9 2.7 2.3 1.7 1.7 1.4 1.7 2.0 I 2.2 1.8 1.7 2.3 I.I!.! 
2013 1.6 2.0 1.5 1.1 1.4 1.8 2.0 1.5 I 1.2 I 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.5 1.4 
2014 1.6 1.1 1.5 2.0 2.1 2.1 2.0 1.7 i 1.7 1.7 1.3 0.8 1.7 1.5 I 
2015 -(1.1 0.0 -(1.1 -(1.2 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.5 0.7 -(1.1 0.3 · 

201& 1.4 1.0 0.9 1.1 I ---
TOOLS HELP INFO 
Areas at a Glance 

Industries al a Glance 

CALCULATORS 
InflatiOn 
location QlJOl'fenl 

Help & TutOftC!ls 

FAQs 

Vvl'Ial's New 
Careers@ BLS 

hnp:lldata.bls.gov/pdq/SurveyOutputServlet 

Dec HALFl HALFzl 
201.8 200.6 202.6 

210.036 205.709 208.97§., 
210.228 214.429 216.177 

215.949 213.139 215.935 

219.179 217.535 218.5761 

225.6n 223.598 226.280 I 
229.601 228.850 230.338 
233.049 232.366 '233.548 

234.812 236.384 237.088 

236.525 236.2:t=769_ 

•• 

RESOURCES 
Inspector General (OIG, 

Budget and Performance 

~11 QI?O 1" 
59 



EXHIBIT E 

SIZE TON RATE Rate/conI. Monthly Rate Rate w/FF Monthly Rate wlff 

1#/GAL-202#IYO 

20 Gallon 0.01 $ 113.89 1.14 4.94 1.20 519 
32 Gallon 0.D16 $ 113.89 1.82 7.90 1.92 8.31 
40 Gallon 0.02 $ 113.89 2.28 9.87 2.40 10.39 
64 Gallon 0.032 $ 113.89 3.64 15.79 3.84 16.62 
1 Cu Yd 0.101 $ 113.89 11 .50 49.85 12.11 52.47 
1.5 Cu Yd 0.1515 $ 113.89 17.25 74.77 18.16 78.70 
2 Cu Yd 0.202 $ 113.89 23.01 99.69 24.22 104.94 
3CuYd 0.303 $ 113.89 34.51 149.54 36.32 157.41 
4 CuYd 0.404 $ 113.89 46.01 1S9.38 48.43 209.88 
6CuYd 0.606 $ 113.89 69.02 299.08 72.65 314.82 
8 CuYd 0.808 $ 113.89 92.02 398.77 96.87 419.75 

60 



EXHIBIT F 
. -- - . .- - --. - . 

saV"a TO 1'BE CITY 
RIO DELL:FRANCBlSE AGi!EEMENT 

CONmACTOl!.lbalIpmWIe Cl!Y wifhsolcl WEm coIledian ofllpID twe:1ve 
32-galkm cmr per w=. 'll!e Ct'IY II>&]' i=aat: II:is E:a:t b,. cce ..... peryar. ClIY =eMIl !be xiIbl 
ttl CQIII:al1!JD lcc;Iian..,nfrequell::y ofpick up v;idJio tbc aDo-lO 5tI1edlimiD. I OC!!Ijgns af'bias are to be 
desiguared by CIIYfi'cm1ime 10 lime in ~ COm:i'.-\Cl"OR.sbaIlllsD ~~ Jel'\'iceto 
Cl'lY. The list atnmtmals 1IIIIt CXlNmAC!OR is ~ed to picIaIp lbr Sllclu~ ;oIkctian-s1mI1 
DDt ==d ~bljsmliD 1hIs~ arllS it is iblmtiDltto time pmencIed (SeO uctian 
2.01.03.DS inRPfd to recycIlDg~) 

Comlm CanIA:aticus: as ofll1!11l2ry. 2007 

CONTRACTOl!. will also proIIi&:...m- ant: cbyperyearibr a clean up evmt. na.. services 
will ~ diIpasII bi:Is IIIId recycling him. Ro::ycIiDa 'Illl iDcIDdor mc!als, wood, 'a" ill.! UII, mf 
'PPli ........ CONIRACrOR.wlI1J1lOYidelBbcrtoamStr:sldcalswifhdM:irnpd,mJ CGN'1'RACrOl!. 
will DDt be I1Ij!lin!d to acapttims, hIz:ardaDs """..;'01 .. liquids, bmsebold ~ COIWII!:iclal WISIt, or 
.... fiam rmmde!in&pnIj=ts. Participa:m wll1 beJCqllired to c!emonctraII: tllIt." ~nSida:D 'af1& 
Dell. The CITY will p:q liJrdispclal C051S oftbo disposcB. mn/"';a1fimn the IMIII, bat willliOtPIY:!Dr 
1raI!SparIIIiGD, arCXlN'IR.o\CTOlI.'i l!har. an-aad CCIN!RACI'Olt will WIIIlttoa=='ID mnimi ... 
~ iIIIIl minililize cli5pDIII. CITY will be t"'¥nsiblt: for-Olga I' • , I!Id Jlublicizina.1IHt ewaL 
Cl!Y ",DUde I PI" !be dale fur the ev=:i[. 

. , 

PIge 16 Df 16 • 

" 
I , 

37 

61 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Ave/Ille 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcitj'.com 

June 7, 2016 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: 

LI\UOftMA 

SUBJECT: 

Kyle Knopp, City Manager Y 
Discussion on Medical Cannabis in General and its Relationship to the Rio Dell 
Medical Marijuana Land Use Ordinance and Possible Local Tax Measures. 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Ask questions and discuss 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The Rio Dell City Council is currently considering two proposals related to Medical Cannabis: A 
land use ordinance change and a tax measure on Cannabis. Both proposals have been made 
possible by the Medical Marijuana Safety and Regulation Act (MMRSA), and many 
communities around the State are considering land use and taxation proposals. 

The City Council has requested that appropriate medical doctors be invited to the council 
meeting to be available to answer questions and provide their perspective and analysis on 
Medical Cannabis. Staff has received two commitments from two local doctors to attend the 
Council meeting. Dr. Donald Baird is a physician and the Humboldt County Health Officer, and 
Dr. Diane Dickinson is a physician who is regarded as an expert in the field of medical cannabis. 
Both Doctors have had long and well respected careers in medicine. 

The Doctors will be invited to give a short talk on cannabis, but the primary purpose of their 
presence is to be available to help answer questions posed by members of the City Council. 

//I 

62 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

To: City Council 

For Meeting of: June 7, 2016 

From: 

Through : 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director e 
Kyle Knopp, City Manager Y 
May 16, 2016 Date: 

Subject: SB 1069 - Second Units and Removal of local land Use Authority 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council: 

1. Review the Staff Report and attached information; and 

2. Authorize the Mayor to sign the attached letter opposing the legislation , 

Background 

The City recently received the attached information from the league of California Cities 

regarding SB 1069. In summary the intent of SB 1069 is to facilitate housing opportunities in 

the State. Although the intent is good, the legislation as proposed would severely limit local 

jurisdictions ability to impose certain conditions, including parking. As the Council is aware, 

parking is one of the primary concerns related to second units. The legislation would also 

prohibit the City from imposing sewer and water connection fees . Staff believes that the 

inability to impose sewer and water connection fees could result in the need to increase rates 

on existing customers. The league has requested local jurisdictions to submit comments on the 

impacts of the proposed legislation to the author of SB 1069, Senator Bob Wieckowski. 

Attached is a draft letter prepared for the Mayor's signature opposing AB 1069. 

56 1069 Letter Second Dwelling Units June 2016 

63 



Please review the draft letter and authorize the Mayor to sign it on the City's behalf. 

Attachments 

Attachment 1: Draft letter opposing 5B 1069. 

Attachment 2: Copy of Action Alert and 5B 1069 

S8 1069 Letter Second Dwelling Units June 2016 

64 



6"'5 "iltlll'oot/ , h "ellut' 
Rio Dd/. C I 9';';62 
(707) -M-3532 

Honorable 80b Wieckowski 
Member, California State Senate 
State Capitol 8uilding, Room 3086 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Via FAX: (916) 651-4910 

Subject: 58 1069 Accessory Dwelling Units 

Dear Senator: 

June 7, 2016 

The City of Rio Dell was recently informed of your proposed legislation, S8 1069, relating to 
second units, which would be renamed "accessory dwelling units." It's our understanding that 
S8 1069 is so prescriptive that it removes local land use flexibility and limits the pUblic 
engagement process. 

One of the primary issues in our City is the lack of on-site parking. Many of our streets are not 
wide enough to accommodate on-street parking and a two-lane travelway. In addition, many 
streets are used to store trailers, boats and recreational vehicles. Under 58 1069, additional 
parking associated with accessory dwelling units on our congested streets could exacerbate 
this problem. 

In addition, this measure could result in rate hikes to existing private and pUblic utility 
customers. Under S8 1069, accessory dwelling units cannot be considered a new residential 
unit for purposes of calculating utility connection fees. The cumulative impact of new units on 
a water or sewer system could create financial strains for our City resulting in potential rate 
hikes on existing customers who have already paid their fair share to be part of that system. 

For these reasons, the City of Rio Dell respectfully opposes S8 1069. 

Sincerely, 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

Copy: Senator McGuire 
Meg Desmond, league of California Cities, mdesmond@cacities.org 

S8 1069 Letter Second Dwelling Units June 2016 

ATTACHMENT 1 65 



ACTION ALERT!! 

S8 1069 (Wieckowski) 
Second Units and Removal of Local Land Use Authority 

OPPOSE 
Politics of Housing in Sacramento 
The Legislature has unofficially made this the year of housing. There has been a host of hearings in both 
the Senate and Assembly on the housing crisis and housing affordability. The League has been proactive 
in supporting several measures that increase affordable housing funding and allow for program 
flexibility at the local level. However, there has been an alarming trend to introduce measures that seek 
to take away local control and create mandates for local governments in the housing and land use 
arena. In years past, the League has had to contend with just a few of these challenging proposals, but 
now the theme is clear. Advocates want to do something to increase housing production in the state 
and in their view it is easier to pass legislation that 1) circumvents the public engagement process; 2) 
increases the possibility of endless litigation; and 3) removes local authority and eases restrictions on 
housing production rather than measures that may create a burden on the state's general fund that will 
actually create new housing. 

Background on SB 1069: 
581069 would rename second units as "Accessory Dwelling Units" or "ADUs." Accessory dwelling units 
refers to accessory apartments, second units, or granny flats - all of which are additional living quarters 
on single-family lots that are independent of the primary dwelling unit. These spaces are equipped with 
kitchen and bathroom facilities and can be either attached or detached from the main residence. 
Existing law gives a property owner the ability to construct an accessory dwelling unit on their property, 
should they meet certain local zoning and building requirements. 

58 1069 would limit the ability of cities to impose certain standards on accessory dwelling units. 

Specifically, it would; 
• Repeal the ability of local governments to enact ordinances that prohibit accessory dwelling 

units if they are contained within the existing space of a single-family residence or accessory 

structure; 

• Impose a burdensome requirement for local agencies to act on an accessory dwelling unit 

permit application within 90-days after the submittal of a complete building permit; 

• Prohibit local agencies from imposing parking standards on units that meet certain conditions; 

• Prohibit the imposition of sewer and water connection fees which will create practical 

impediments to the development of ADUs and unfunded capital costs for sewer and water 

providers; and 

• Creates a new unfunded state-mandated local program. 

Arguments/Talking Points 
• SB 1069 is so prescriptive that it removes any local land use flexibilitv and limits the public 

engagement process. 
o This measure departs significantly from existing law which prescribes the minimum 

standards of a local ordinance of an ADU and instead prescribes the maximum 
standards of an ADU thereby removing all local land use flexibility. 

o Local governments must balance competing priorities when determining the conditions 
attached to the development of accessory dwelling units. 

o Working with residents of our communities, cities must look at the potential impacts on 
the community that result from these units, such as, impaired neighborhood character, 

ATTACHMENT 2 66 



spillover effects on nearby homes and businesses due to inadequate parking, and loss of 
privacy for existing homeowners. 

o This measure is so prescriptive that it removes the ability of the community to 
participate in the planning process for AD Us. 

• This measure could result in rate hikes to existing private and public utility customers. 
o Under S8 1069, an ADU cannot be considered a new residential unit for purposes of 

calculating utility connection fees. 
o The cumulative impact of thousands of new units on a water or sewer system could 

create financial strains for utility agencies resulting in rate hikes on existing customers 
who have already paid their fair share to be part of that system. 

• S8 1069 could result in increased litigation to cities. 
o This measure would force cities to approve a dwelling that it may consider dangerous or 

unsafe by removing the ability to a require sprinkler system and creates large loopholes 
for the construction of potentially unsafe and unsustainable residences. 

ACTION: 
S8 1069 passed the Senate Appropriations Committee today. The bill is eligible to be heard 
on the Senate Floor as early as this Thursday, May 12. Please CALL your Senator and urge 
their NO vote on the floor ASAP. 

You may also send a letter of CITY OPPOSITION to your Senator. Sample letter is attached or 
you may use the League's Action Center to submit a letter online. 

67 



·"CITY LETTERHEAD"· 

DATE 

Honorable Bob Wieckowski 
Member, California State Senate 
State Capitol Building, Room 3086 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Via FAX: (916) 651-4910 

RE: SB 1069 <Wieckowski) Accessory Dwelling Units (Version ,/126/16) 
Notice of Opposition 

Dear Senator: 

The Cityrrown of is opposed to your SB 1069, which would further restrict a local 
agency's ability to impose requirements on second units, which would be renamed '·accessory 
dwelling units." 

SB 1069 is so prescriptive that it removes any local land use flexibility and limits the public 
engagement process. The measure departs significantly from existing law which prescribes the 
minimum standards of a local ordinance of an ADU and instead prescribes the maximum 
standards of an ADU thereby removing all local land use flexibility. 

In addition, this measure could result in rate hikes to existing private and public utility 
customers. Under SB 1069, an ADU cannot be considered a new residential unit for purposes of 
calculating utility connection fees. The cumulative impact of thousands of new units on a water 
or sewer system could create financial strains for utility agencies resulting in rate hikes on 
existing customers who have already paid their fair share to be part of that system. 

[If you have specific examples of the impact of this bill on your cityTtown.tl>lease include hercJ 

Local governments must balance competing priorities when determining the conditions attached 
to the development of accessory dwelling units. Working with residents of our communities, 
cities must look at the potential impacts on the community that result from these units, such as, 
impaired neighborhood character, spillover effects on nearby homes and businesses due to 
inadequate parking, and loss of privacy for existing homeowners. 

For these reasons, the Cityrrown of ___ supports/opposes SB 1069. 

Sincerely, 

NAME 
TITLE 

68 



CITyrrOWN of ____ ---' 

cc: Your Senator 
Your League Regional Public Affairs Manager (via email) 
Meg Desmond, League of California Cities, mdesmond@cacities.org 

69 



AMENDED IN SENATE APRIL 26, 2016 

AMENDED IN SENATE APRIL 13, 2016 

AMENDED IN SENATE APRIL 6, 2016 

SENATE BILL 

Introduced by Senator Wieckowski 
(Coauthor: Assembly Member Atkins) 

February 16, 2016 

No. 1069 

An act to amend Sections 65582.1, 65583.1, 65589.4, 65852.150, 
65852.2, and 66412.2 of the Government Code, relating to land use. 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 

SB 1069, as amended, Wieckowski. Land use: zoning. 
The Planning and Zoning Law authorizes the legislative body of a 

city or county to regulate, among other things, the intensity of land use, 
and also authorizes a local agency to provide by ordinance for the 
creation of 2nd units in single-family and multifamily residential zones, 
as specified. That law makes findings and declarations with respect to 
the value of 2nd units to California's housing supply. 

This bill would replace the term "second unit" with "accessory 
dwelling unit" throughout the law. The bill would add to those findings 
and declarations-thttt that, amollg other thillgs, allowing accessory 
dwelling units in single-family or multifamily residential zones provides 
additional rental housing stock and these units are an essential 
component of housing supply in California. 

The Plallllillg alld Zollillg Law authorizes the ordillallce for the 
creatioll of21ld ullits ill sillgle-family alld multifamily residelltial ZOlles 
to illclude specified provisiolls regardillg areas where accessory 
dwellillg ullits may be located, stalldards, illcludillg the impositioll of 

96 

70 



SB 1069 -2-

parking sTandards. and loT density. ExisTing law. when a local agency 
has IIOT adopTed an ordinance goveming 2nd uniTS as so described. 
requires The local agency TO approve or disapprove The applicaTion 
miniSTerially. as provided. 

This bill would insTead require-ftn The ordinance for the creation of 
accessory dwelling units to include sl'eeilietll'fe"'isiens regllrtling areas 
where aeeessery tlvtelling units may be leealetl. slantlaffis. anti leI 
tlensily. The provisions described above. The bill would prohibiT The 
imposiTion 0/ parking sTandards under specified circumsTances. The 
bill would revise requirements for the approval or disapproval of an 
accessory dwelling unit application when a local agency has not adopted 
an ordinance. The bill would also require the ministerial approval of 
an application for a building permit to create an accessory dwelling unit 
within the existing space of a single family residence or accessory 
structure. as specified.-By 

By increasing the duties of local officials. this bill would impose a 
state-mandated local program. 

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local 
agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. 
Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement. 

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act 
for a specified reason. 

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. 
State-mandated local program: yes. 

The people o/The STaTe o/Califomia do enacT as/ollows: 

1 SECTION 1. Section 65582.1 of the Government Code is 
2 amended to read: 
3 65582.1. The Legislature finds and declares that it has provided 
4 reforms and incentives to facilitate and expedite the construction 
5 of affordable housing. Those reforms and incentives can be found 
6 in the following provisions: 
7 (a) Housing element law (Article 10.6 (commencing with 
8 Section 65580) of Chapter 3). 
9 (b) Extension of statute of limitations in actions challenging the 

10 housing element and brought in support of affordable housing 
11 (subdivision (d) of Section 65009). 
12 (c) Restrictions on disapproval of housing developments 
13 (Section 65589.5). 

96 

11 



-3- S81069 

(d) Priority for affordable housing in the allocation of water and 
2 sewer hookups (Section 65589.7). 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

(e) Least cost zoning law (Section 65913.1). 
(f) Density bonus law (Section 65915). 
(g) Accessory dwelling units (Sections 65852.150 and 65852.2). 
(h) By-right housing, in which certain multifamily housing are 

designated a permitted use (Section 65589.4). 
(i) No-net-Ioss-in zoning density law limiting downzonings and 

density reductions (Section 65863). 
(j) Requiring persons who sue to halt affordable housing to pay 

attorney fees (Section 65914) or post a bond (Section 529.2 of the 
Code of Civil Procedure). 

(k) Reduced time for action on affordable housing applications 
under the approval of development permits process (Article 5 
(commencing with Section 65950) of Chapter 4 .5). 

(I) Limiting moratoriums on multifamily housing (Section 
65858). 

(m) Prohibiting discrimination against affordable housing 
(Section 65008). 

(n) California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Part 2.8 
(commencing with Section 12900) of Division 3). 

(0) Community redevelopment law (Part I (commencing with 

10 
II 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 Section 33000) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code, and 
24 in particular Sections 33334.2 and 33413). 
25 SEC. 2. Section 65583.1 of the Government Code is amended 

to read: 
65583.1. (a) The Department of Housing and Community 

26 
27 
28 Development, in evaluating a proposed or adopted housing element 
29 for substantial compliance with this article, may allow a city or 
30 county to identify adequate sites, as required pursuant to Section 
31 65583, by a variety of methods, including, but not limited to, 
32 redesignation of property to a more intense land use category and 
33 increasing the density allowed within one or more categories. The 
34 department may also allow a city or county to identify sites for 
35 accessory dwelling units based on the number of accessory 
36 dwelling units developed in the prior housing element planning 
37 period whether or not the units are permitted by right, the need for 
38 these units in the community, the resources or incentives available 
39 for their development, and any other relevant factors, as determined 
40 by the department. Nothing in this section reduces the responsibility 

% 

72 



SB 1069 -4-

I of a city or county to identify, by income category, the total number 
2 of sites for residential development as required by this article. 
3 (b) Sites that contain permanent housing units located on a 
4 military base undergoing closure or conversion as a result of action 
5 pursuant to the Defense Authorization Amendments and Base 
6 Closure and Realignment Act (Public Law 100-526), the Defense 
7 Base Closure and Realignment Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-510), 
8 or any subsequent act requiring the closure or conversion of a 
9 military base may be identified as an adequate site if the housing 

10 element demonstrates that the housing units will be available for 
II occupancy by households within the planning period of the 
12 element. No sites containing housing units scheduled or planned 
13 for demolition or conversion to nonresidential uses shall qualify 
14 as an adequate site. 
15 Any city, city and county, or county using this subdivision shall 
16 address the progress in meeting this section in the reports provided 
17 pursuant to paragraph (I) of subdivision (b) of Section 65400. 
18 (c) (I) The Department of Housing and Community 
19 Development may allow a city or county to substitute the provision 
20 of units for up to 25 percent of the community's obligation to 
21 identify adequate sites for any income category in its housing 
22 element pursuant to paragraph (I) of subdivision (c) of Section 
23 65583 where the community includes in its housing element a 
24 program committing the local government to provide units in that 
25 income category within the city or county that will be made 
26 available through the provision of committed assistance during 
27 the planning period covered by the element to low- and very low 
28 income households at affordable housing costs or affordable rents, 
29 as defined in Sections 50052.5 and 50053 of the Health and Safety 
30 Code, and which meet the requirements of paragraph (2). Except 
31 as otherwise provided in this subdivision, the community may 
32 substitute one dwelling unit for one dwelling unit site in the 
33 applicable income category. The program shall do all of the 
34 following: 
35 (A) Identify the specific, existing sources of committed 
36 assistance and dedicate a specific portion of the funds from those 
37 sources to the provision of housing pursuant to this subdivision. 
38 (8) Indicate the number of units that will be provided to both 
39 low- and very low income households and demonstrate that the 

% 

73 



-5- S81069 

1 amount of dedicated funds is sufficient to develop the units at 
2 affordable housing costs or affordable rents. 
3 (C) Demonstrate that the units meet the requirements of 
4 paragraph (2). 
5 (2) Only units that comply with subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) 
6 qualify for inclusion in the housing element program described in 
7 paragraph (1), as follows: 
8 (A) Units that are to be substantially rehabilitated with 
9 committed assistance from the city or county and constitute a net 

10 increase in the community's stock of housing affordable to low-
11 and very low income households. For purposes of this 
12 subparagraph, a unit is not eligible to be "substantially 
13 rehabilitated" unless all of the following requirements are met: 
14 (i) At the time the unit is identified for substantial rehabilitation, 
15 (I) the local government has determined that the unit is at imminent 
16 risk of loss to the housing stock, (II) the local government has 
17 committed to provide relocation assistance pursuant to Chapter 16 
18 (commencing with Section 7260) of Division 7 of Title 1 to any 
19 occupants temporarily or permanently displaced by the 
20 rehabilitation or code enforcement activity, or the relocation is 
21 otherwise provided prior to displacement either as a condition of 
22 receivership, or provided by the property owner or the local 
23 government pursuant to Article 2.5 (commencing with Section 
24 17975) of Chapter 5 of Part 1.5 of Division 13 of the Health and 
25 Safety Code, or as otherwise provided by local ordinance; provided 
26 the assistance includes not less than the equivalent of four months' 
27 rent and moving expenses and comparable replacement housing 
28 consistent with the moving expenses and comparable replacement 
29 housing required pursuant to Section 7260, (III) the local 
30 government requires that any displaced occupants will have the 
31 right to reoccupy the rehabilitated units, and (IV) the unit has been 
32 found by the local government or a court to be unfit for human 
33 habitation due to the existence of at least four violations of the 
34 conditions listed in subdivisions (a) to (g), inclusive, of Section 
35 17995.3 of the Health and Safety Code. 
36 (ii) The rehabilitated unit will have long-term affordability 
37 covenants and restrictions that require the unit to be available to, 
38 and occupied by, persons or fami lies of low- or very low income 
39 at affordable housing costs for at least 20 years or the time period 
40 required by any applicable federal or state law or regulation. 

% 

74 



SB 1069 -6-

(iii) Prior to initial occupancy afterrehabilitation, the local code 
2 enforcement agency shall issue a certificate of occupancy indicating 
3 compliance with all applicable state and local building code and 
4 health and safety code requirements. 
5 (B) Units that are located either on foreclosed property or in a 
6 multifamily rental or ownership housing complex of three or more 
7 units, are converted with committed assistance from the city or 
8 county from nonaffordable to affordable by acquisition of the unit 
9 or the purchase of affordability covenants and restrictions for the 

10 unit, are not acquired by eminent domain, and constitute a net 
II increase in the community's stock of housing affordable to low-
12 and very low income households. For purposes of this 
13 subparagraph, a unit is not converted by acquisition or the purchase 
14 of affordability covenants unless all of the following occur: 
15 (i) The unit is made available for rent at a cost affordable to 
16 low- or very low income households. 
17 (ii) At the time the unit is identified for acquisition, the unit is 
18 not available at an affordable housing cost to either of the 
19 following: 
20 (I) Low-income households, if the unit will be made affordable 
21 to low-income households. 
22 (II) Very low income households, if the unit will be made 
23 affordable to very low income households. 
24 (iii) At the time the unit is identified for acquisition the unit is 
25 not occupied by low- or very low income households or if the 
26 acquired unit is occupied, the local government has committed to 
27 provide relocation assistance prior to displacement, if any, pursuant 
28 to Chapter 16 (commencing with Section 7260) of Division 7 of 
29 Title I to any occupants displaced by the conversion, or the 
30 relocation is otherwise provided prior to displacement; provided 
31 the assistance includes not less than the equivalent of four months' 
32 rent and moving e)(penses and comparable replacement housing 
33 consistent with the moving e)(penses and comparable replacement 
34 housing required pursuant to Section 7260. 
35 (iv) The unit is in decent, safe, and sanitary condition at the 
36 ti me of occupancy. 
37 (v) The unit has long-term affordability covenants and 
38 restrictions that require the unit to be affordable to persons of low-
39 or very low income for not less than 55 years. 

96 

75 



-7- S81069 

(vi) For units located in multifamily ownership housing 
2 complexes with three or more units, oron or after January 1,2015, 
3 on foreclosed properties, at least an equal number of 
4 new-construction multifamily rental units affordable to lower 
5 income households have been constructed in the city or county 
6 within the same planning period as the number of ownership units 
7 to be converted. 
8 (C) Units that will be preserved at affordable housing costs to 
9 persons or families of low- or very low incomes with committed 

10 assistance from the city or county by acquisition of the unit or the 
11 purchase of affordability covenants for the unit. For purposes of 
12 this subparagraph, a unit shall not be deemed preserved unless all 
13 of the following occur: 
14 (i) The unit has long-term affordability covenants and 
15 restrictions that require the unit to be affordable to, and reserved 
16 for occupancy by, persons of the same or lower income group as 
17 the current occupants for a period of at least 40 years . 
18 (ij) The unit is within an "assisted housing development," as 
19 defined in paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 65863.10. 
20 (iii) The city or county finds, after a public hearing, that the unit 
21 is eligible, and is reasonably expected, to change from housing 
22 affordable to low- and very low income households to any other 
23 use during the next five years due to termination of subsidy 
24 contracts, mortgage prepayment, or expiration of restrictions on 

use. 
(iv) The unit is in decent, safe, and sanitary condition at the 

time of occupancy. 
(v) At the time the unit is identified for preservation it is 

available at affordable cost to persons or families of low- or very 
low income. 

25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 (3) This subdivision does not apply to any city or county that, 
32 during the current or immediately prior planning period, as defined 
33 by Section 65588, has not met any of its share of the regional need 
34 for affordable housing, as defined in Section 65584, for low- and 
35 very low income households. A city or county shall document for 
36 any housing unit that a building permit has been issued and all 
37 development and permit fees have been paid or the unit is eligible 
38 to be lawfully occupied. 
39 (4) For purposes of this subdivision, "committed assistance" 
40 means that the city or county enters into a legally enforceable 

76 



SB 1069 -8-

I agreement during the period from the beginning of the projection 
2 period until the end of the second year of the planning period that 
3 obligates sufficient available funds to provide the assistance 
4 necessary to make the identified units affordable and that requires 
5 that the units be made available for occupancy within two years 
6 of the execution of the agreement. "Committed assistance" does 
7 not include tenant-based rental assistance. 
8 (5) For purposes of this subdivision, "net increase" includes 
9 only housing units provided committed assistance pursuant to 

10 subparagraph (A) or (B) of paragraph (2) in the current planning 
II period, as defined in Section 65588, that were not provided 
12 committed assistance in the immediately prior planning period. 
13 (6) For purposes of this subdivision, "the time the unit is 
14 identified" means the earliest time when any city or county agent, 
15 acting on behalf of a public entity, has proposed in writing or has 
16 proposed orally or in writing to the property owner, that the unit 
17 be considered for substantial rehabilitation, acquisition, or 
18 preservation. 
19 (7) In the third year of the planning period, as defined by Section 
20 65588, in the report required pursuant to Section 65400, each city 
21 or county that has included in its housing element a program to 
22 provide units pursuant to subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of 
23 paragraph (2) shall report in writing to the legislative body, and 
24 to the department within 30 days of making its report to the 
25 legislative body, on its progress in providing units pursuant to this 
26 subdivision. The report shall identify the specific units for which 
27 committed assistance has been provided or which have been made 
28 available to low- and very low income households, and it shall 
29 adequately document how each unit complies with this subdivision. 
30 If, by July I of the third year of the planning period, the city or 
31 county has not entered into an enforceable agreement of committed 
32 assistance for all units specified in the programs adopted pursuant 
33 to subparagraph (A), (8), or (C) of paragraph (2), the city or county 
34 shall, not later than July I of the fourth year of the planning period, 
35 adopt an amended housing element in accordance with Section 
36 65585, identifying additional adequate sites pursuant to paragraph 
37 (I) of subdivision (c) of Section 65583 sufficient to accommodate 
38 the number of units for which committed assistance was not 
39 provided. If a city or county does not amend its housing element 
40 to identify adequate sites to address any shortfall, or fails to 

96 

77 



-9 - S81069 

I complete the rehabilitation, acquisition, purchase of affordability 
2 covenants, or the preservation of any housing unit within two years 
3 after committed assistance was provided to that unit, it shall be 
4 prohibited from identifying units pursuant to subparagraph (A), 
5 (B), or (C) of paragraph (2) in the housing element that it adopts 
6 for the next planning period, as defined in Section 65588, above 
7 the number of units actually provided or preserved due to 
8 committed assistance. 
9 (d) A city or county may reduce its share of the regional housing 

10 need by the number of units built between the start of the projection 
II period and the deadline for adoption of the housing element. If the 
12 city or county reduces its share pursuant to this subdivision, the 
13 city or county shall include in the housing element a description 
14 of the methodology for assigning those housing units to an income 
15 category based on actual or projected sales price, rent levels. or 
16 other mechanisms establishing affordability. 
17 SEC. 3. Section 65589.4 of the Government Code is amended 

to read: 
65589.4. (a) An attached housing development shall be a 

18 
19 
20 permitted use not subject to a conditional use permit on any parcel 
21 zoned for an attached housing development if local law so provides 
22 or if it satisfies the requirements of subdivision (b) and either of 
23 the following: 
24 (I) The attached housing development satisfies the criteria of 
25 Section 21159.22, 21159.23, or 21159.24 of the Public Resources 
26 Code. 
27 (2) The attached housing development meets all of the following 
28 criteria: 
29 (A) The attached housing development is subject to a 
30 discretionary decision other than a conditional use permit and a 
31 negative declaration or mitigated negative declaration has been 
32 adopted for the attached housing development under the California 
33 Environmental Quality Act (Division 13 (commencing with Section 
34 21000) of the Public Resources Code). Ifno public hearing is held 
3S with respect to the discretionary decision, then the negative 
36 declaration or mitigated negative declaration for the attached 
37 housing development may be adopted only after a public hearing 
38 to receive comments on the negative declaration or mitigated 
39 negative declaration. 

78 



SB 1069 -10-

(B) The attached housing development is consistent with both 
2 the jurisdiction's zoning ordinance and general plan as it existed 
3 on the date the application was deemed complete, except that an 
4 attached housing development shall not be deemed to be 
5 inconsistent with the zoning designation for the site if that zoning 
6 designation is inconsistent with the general plan only because the 
7 attached housing development site has not been rezoned to confonn 
8 with the most recent adopted general plan. 
9 (C) The attached housing development is located in an area that 

10 is covered by one of the following documents that has been adopted 
11 by the jurisdiction within five years of the date the application for 
12 the attached housing development was deemed complete: 
13 (i) A general plan. 
14 (ii) A revision or update to the general plan that includes at least 
15 the land use and circulation elements. 
16 (iii) An applicable community plan. 
I7 (iv) An applicable specific plan. 
18 (0) The attached housing development consists of not more 
19 than 100 residential units with a minimum density of not less than 
20 12 units per acre or a minimum density of not less than eight units 
21 per acre if the attached housing development consists of four or 
22 fewer units. 
23 (E) The attached housing development is located in an urbanized 
24 area as defined in Section 21071 of the Public Resources Code or 
25 within a census-defined place with a population density of at least 
26 5,000 persons per square mile or, if the attached housing 
27 development consists of 50 or fewer units, within an incorporated 
28 city with a population density of at least 2,500 persons per square 
29 mile and a total population of at least 25,000 persons. 
30 (F) The attached housing development is located on an infill 
31 site as defined in Section 21061.0.5 of the Public Resources Code. 
32 (b) At least 10 percent of the units of the attached housing 
33 development shall be available at affordable housing cost to very 
34 low income households, as defined in Section 50105 of the Health 
35 and Safety Code, or at least 20 percent of the units of the attached 
36 housing development shall be available at affordable housing cost 
37 to lower income households, as defined in Section 50079.5 of the 
38 Health and Safety Code, or at least 50 percent of the units of the 
39 attached housing development available at affordable housing cost 
40 to moderate-income households, consistent with Section 50052.5 

79 



-11- SB 1069 

I of the Health and Safety Code. The developer of the attached 
2 housing development shall provide sufficient legal commitments 

to the local agency to ensure the continued availability and use of 
the housing units for very low, low-, or moderate-income 
households for a period of at least 30 years. 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
II 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 

(c) Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency from 
applying design and site review standards in existence on the date 
the application was deemed complete. 

(d) The provisions of this section are independent of any 
obligation of a jurisdiction pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 
65583 to identify multifamily sites developable by right. 

(e) This section does not apply to the issuance of coastal 
development permits pursuant to the California Coastal Act 
(Division 20 (commencing with Section 30000) of the Public 
Resources Code). 

(f) This section does not relieve a public agency from complying 
with the California Environmental Quality Act (Division 13 
(commencing with Section 21000) of the Public Resources Code) 
or relieve an applicant or public agency from complying with the 
Subdivision Map Act (Division 2 (commencing with Section 
66473» . 

22 (g) This section is applicable to all cities and counties, including 
23 charter cities, because the Legislature finds that the lack of 
24 affordable housing is of vital statewide importance, and thus a 
25 matter of statewide concern. 
26 (h) For purposes of this section, "attached housing devclopment" 
27 means a newly constructed or substantially rehabilitated structure 
28 containing two or more dwelling units and consisting only of 
29 residential units, but does not include an accessory dwelling unit, 
30 as defined by paragraph (4) of subdivision (i) of Section 65852.2, 
31 or the conversion of an existing structure to condominiums. 
32 SEC. 4. Section 65852.150 of the Government Code is amended 
33 to read: 
34 65852.150. (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the 
35 following: 
36 (I) Accessory dwelling units are a valuable form of housing in 
37 California. 
38 (2) Accessory dwelling units provide housing for family 
39 members, students, the elderly, in-home health care providers, the 

80 



SB 1069 -12-

1 disabled, and others, at below market prices within existing 
2 neighborhoods. 
3 (3) Homeowners who create accessory dwelling units benefit 
4 from added income, and an increased sense of security. 
5 (4) Allowing accessory dwelling units in single-family or 
6 multifamily residential zones provides additional rental housing 
7 stock in California. 
8 (5) California faces a severe housing crisis. 
9 (6) The state is falling far short of meeting current and future 

10 housing demand with serious consequences for the state's 
11 economy, our ability to build green infill consistent with state 
12 greenhouse gas reduction goals, and the well-being of our citizens, 
13 particularly lower and middle-income earners. 
14 (7) Accessory dwelling units offer lower cost housing to meet 
15 the needs of existing and future residents within existing 
16 neighborhoods, while respecting architectural character. 
17 (8) Accessory dwelling units are, therefore, an essential 
18 component of California's housing supply. 
19 (b) It is the intent of the Legislature that an accessory dwelling 
20 unit-ordinance adopted by a local agency has the effect of providing 
21 for the creation of accessory dwelling units and that provisions in 
22 this ordinance relating to matters including unit size, parking, fees 
23 and other requirements, are not so arbitrary, excessive, or 
24 burdensome so as to unreasonably restrict the ability of 
25 homeowners to create accessory dwelling units in zones in which 
26 they are authorized by local ordinance. 
27 SEC. 5. Section 65852.2 of the Government Code is amended 
28 to read: 
29 65852.2. (a) (1) A local agency may, by ordinance, provide 
30 for the creation of accessory dwelling units in single-family and 
31 multifamily residential zones. The ordinance shall do all of the 
32 following: 
33 (A) Designate areas within the jurisdiction of the local agency 
34 where accessory dwelling units may be permitted. The designation 
35 of areas may be based on criteria, that may include, but are not 
36 limited to, the adequacy of water and sewer services and the impact 
37 of accessory dwelling units on traffic How and public safety. 
38 (B) Impose standards on accessory dwelling units that include, 
39 but are not limited to, parking, height, setback, lot coverage, 
40 architectural review, maximum size of a unit, and standards that 

81 



-13- SB 1069 

1 prevent adverse impacts on any real property that is listed in the 
2 California Register of Historic Places. However, notwithstanding 
3 subdivision (d), a local agency shall not impose parking standards 
4 for an accessory dwelling unit in any of the following instances: 
5 (i) The accessory dwelling unit is located within one-half mile 
6 of public transit or shopping. 
7 (ii) The accessory dwelling unit is located within an 
8 architecturally and historically significant historic district. 
9 (iii) The accessory dwelling unit is part of the existing primary 

10 residence. 
11 (i\') When on-street parking permits are required, but not offered 
12 to the occupant of the accessory dwelling unit. 
13 (v) When there is a car share vehicle located within one block 
14 of the accessory dwelling unit. 
15 (C) Provide that accessory dwelling units do not exceed the 
16 allowable density for the lot upon which the accessory dwelling 
17 unit is located, and that accessory dwelling units are a residential 
18 use that is consistent with the existing general plan and zoning 
19 designation for the lot. 
20 (2) The ordinance shall not be considered in the application of 
21 any local ordinance, policy, or program to limit residential growth. 
22 (3) When a local agency receives its first application on or after 
23 July I, 2003, for a permit pursuant to this subdivision, the 
24 application shall be considered ministerially without discretionary 
25 review or a hearing, notwithstanding Section 65901 or 65906 or 
26 any local ordinance regulating the issuance of variances or special 
27 use permits, within 90 days of submittal of a complete building 
28 permit application. A local agency may charge a fee to reimburse 
29 it for costs that it incurs as a result of amendments to this paragraph 
30 enacted during the 2001-02 Regular Session of the Legislature, 
31 including the costs of adopting or amending any ordinance that 
32 provides for the creation of accessory dwelling units. 
33 (b) (1) When a local agency that has not adopted an ordinance 
34 governing accessory dwelling units in accordance with subdivision 
35 (a) receives its first application on or after July I, 1983, for a permit 
36 pursuant to this subdivision, the local agency shall accept the 
37 application and approve or disapprove the application ministerially 
38 without discretionary review pursuant to this subdivision unless 
39 it adopts an ordinance in accordance with subdivision (a) within 
40 90 days after receiving the application. Notwithstanding Section 

82 



SB 1069 - 14-

I 6590 I or 65906, every local agency shall ministerially approve 
2 the creation of an accessory dwelling unit if the accessory dwelling 
3 unit complies with all of the following: 
4 (A) The unit is not intended for sale separate from the primary 
5 residence and may be rented. 
6 (B) The lot is zoned for single-family or multifamily use. 
7 (e) The lot contains an existing single-family dwelling. 
8 (0) The accessory dwelling unit is either attached to the existing 
9 dwelling and located within the living area of the existing dwelling 

10 or detached from the existing dwelling and located on the same 
II lot as the existing dwelling. 
12 (E) The increased floor area of an attached accessory dwelling 
13 unit shall not exceed 50 percent of the existing living area. 
14 (F) The total area of floorspace for a detached accessory 
15 dwelling unit shall not exceed 1,200 square feet. 
16 (0) Requirements relating to height, setback, lot coverage, 
17 architectural review, site plan review, fees, charges, and other 
18 zoning requirements generally applicable to residential construction 
19 in the zone in which the property is located. 
20 (H) Local building code requirements that apply to detached 
21 dwellings, as appropriate. 
22 (1) Approval by the local health officer where a private sewage 
23 disposal system is being used, if required. 
24 (2) No other local ordinance, policy, or regulation shall be the 
25 basis for the denial of a building permit or a use permit under this 
26 subdivision. 
27 (3) This subdivision establishes the maximum standards that 
28 local agencies shall use to evaluate proposed accessory dwelling 
29 units on lots zoned for residential use that contain an existing 
30 single-family dwelling. No additional standards, other than those 
31 provided in this subdivision or subdivision (a), shall be utilized or 
32 imposed, except that a local agency may require an applicant for 
33 a permit issued pursuant to this subdivision to be an 
34 e'>'lner eeetll'lInl. oWller-OCCllpall1 or that the propert), be IIsedfor 
35 rentals of tenllS 10llger thall 30 days. 
36 (4) Ne ehftnges in lening erfiinftnees ef ether erfiinftneeser IIny 
37 ehftnges in the general plan shall be reqtlirefi te implement this 
38 stlbfii ... isien. A local agency may amend its zoning ordinance or 
39 general plan to incorporate the policies, procedures, or other 
40 provisions applicable to the creation of accessory dwelling units 

83 



-15- S81069 

I if these provIsIOns are consistent with the limitations of this 
2 subdivision. 
3 (5) An accessory dwelling unit that confonns to this subdivision 
4 shall not be considered to exceed the allowable density for the lot 
5 upon which it is located, and shall be deemed to be a residential 
6 use that is consistent with the existing general plan and zoning 
7 designations for the lot. The accessory dwelling units shall not be 
8 considered in the application of any local ordinance, policy, or 
9 program to limit residential growth. 

JO (c) A local agency may establish minimum and maximum unit 
II size requirements for both attached and detached accessory 
12 dwelling units. No minimum or maximum size for an accessory 
13 dwelling unit, or size based upon a percentage of the existing 
14 dwelling, shall be established by ordinance for either attached or 
15 detached dwellings that does not otherwise pennit at least a 
16 500-foot accessory dwelling unit or a 500-foot efficiency unit to 
17 be constructed in compliance with local development standards. 
18 Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide fire 
19 sprinklers if they are not required for the primary residence. 
20 (d) Parking requirements for accessory dwelling units shall not 
21 exceed one parking space per unit or per bedroom. These spaces 
22 may be provided as tandem parking on an existing driveway. 
23 Off-street parking shall be pennitted in setback areas in locations 
24 detennined by the local agency or through tandem parking, unless 
25 specific findings are made that parking in setback areas or tandem 
26 parking is not feasible based upon fire and life safety conditions. 
27 This subdivision shall not apply to a unit that complies with 
28 paragraph (1) of subdivision (b). 
29 (e) Notwithstanding subdivisions (a) to (d), inclusive, a local 
30 agency shall ministerially approve an application for a building 
31 pennit to create within a single-family residential zone one 
32 accessory dwelling unit per single-family lot if the unit is contained 
33 within the existing space of a single-family residence or accessory 
34 structure, has independent exterior access from the existing 
35 residence, and the side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire 
36 safety. Accessory dwelling units shall not be required to provide 
37 fire sprinklers if they are not required for the primary residence. 
38 (0 Fees charged for the construction of accessory dwelling units 
39 shall be detennined in accordance with Chapter 5 (commencing 
40 with Section 66000). Accessory dwelling units shall not be 

% 

84 



SB 1069 -16-

1 considered new residential uses for the purposes of calculating 
2 private or public utility connection fees, including water and sewer 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
J3 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 

service. 
(g) This section does not limit the authority of local agencies 

to adopt less restrictive requirements for the creation of accessory 
dwelling units. 

(h) Local agencies shall submit a copy of the ordinances adopted 
pursuant to subdivision (a) to the Department of Housing and 
Community Development within 60 days after adoption. 

(i) As used in this section, the following tenns mean: 
(I) "Living area," means the interior habitable area of a dwelling 

unit including basements and attics but does not include a garage 
or any accessory structure. 

(2) "Local agency" means a city, county, or city and county, 
whether general law or chartered. 

(3) For purposes of this section, "neighborhood" has the same 
meaning as set forth in Section 65589.5. 

(4) "Accessory dwelling unit" means an attached or a detached 
residential dwelling unit which provides complete independent 
living facilities for one or more persons. It shall include pennanent 
provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on 
the same parcel as the single-family dwelling is situated. An 
accessory dwelling unit also includes the following: 

(A) An efficiency unit, as defined in Section 17958.1 of Health 
and Safety Code. 

(8) A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the 
Health and Safety Code. 

(j) Nothing in this section shall be construed to supersede or in 
any way alter or lessen the effect or application of the California 
Coastal Act (Division 20 (commencing with Section 30000) of 
the Public Resources Code), except that the local government shall 
not be required to hold public hearings for coastal development 
pennit applications for second units. 

SEC. 6. Section 66412.2 of the Government Code is amended 
to read: 

66412.2. This division shall not apply to the construction, 
financing, or leasing of dwelling units pursuant to Section 65852.1 
or accessory dwelling units pursuant to Section 65852.2, but this 
division shall be applicable to the sale or transfer, but not leasing, 
of those units. 

85 



-17- S81069 

J SEC. 7. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to 
2 Section 6 of Article xm B of the California Constitution because 
3 a local agency or school district has the authority to levy service 
4 charges, fees, or assessments sufficient to pay for the program or 
5 level of service mandated by this act, within the meaning of Section 
6 J 7556 of the Government Code. 

o 

% 

86 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

To: City Council 

For Meeting of: June 7, 2016 

From: 

Through: 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director e 
Kyle Knopp, City ManagerY 

Date: 

Subject: 

June 2, 2016 

laboratories and Dispensaries - Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use 

Regulations, Section 17.30.195 ofthe Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMe) 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council: 

1. Reopen the public hearing, receive staff's report regarding the Planning Commission's 

recommendations for Cannabis Laboratories and Dispensaries Regulations; and 

2. Receive public input and deliberate; and 

3. Continue consideration of the Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulations to a 

Regular Meeting scheduled for June 21, 2016. 

Background 

This meeting is the fifth in a series of meetings regarding the discussion of the Medical Cannabis 

Land Use Ordinance (MCLUO). At this meeting the Council is scheduled to discuss Testing 

laboratories and Dispensaries provisions, including: 

• "Testing", Testing licensees shall have their facilities licensed according to the 

regulations set forth in Section 19341 et. seq. of the Business and Professions Code. A 

Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulations Council June 7, 2016 

87 



testing licensee shall not hold a license in another license and shall not own or have 

ownership interest in any other license type; and 

• "Dispensary; General", Type 10 dispensaries are facilities where medical cannabis, 
medical cannabis products, or devices for the use of medical cannabis or medical 
cannabis products are offered either individually or in any combination, for retail sale, 
including an establishment that delivers, pursuant to express authorization by local 
ordinance, medical cannabis and medical cannabis products as part of a retail sale. Only 
one retail site is allowed and no other licenses are allowed under the Type 10 license; 

and 

• "Dispensary; No More Than 3 Retail Sites", A Type lOA dispensary licensee may apply 
for other licenses in an effort to be vertically integrated, which is required in some cities. 
And even though a dispensary may obtain a cultivator and/or manufacturing license, it 
must first transport all cannabis through a distributor and testing licensee before it reo 
enters the dispensary (if the grow is located in the same place) for sale. 

Discussion - Testing Laboratories 

The Planning Commission is recommending that testing laboratories be conditionally permitted in the 

Industrial Commercial (Ie), Town Center (Te), Neighborhood Center (Ne) and Community Commercial 

(CC) designation subject to a Conditional Use Permit and the conditions and limitations set forth in this 

Section and as deemed appropriate by Planning Commission and/or the City Council. 

Testing laboratories and other related medical and dental facilities are currently principally 

permitted uses in the City's commercial zoning districts, including Industrial Commercial (Ie), Town 

Center (Te), Neighborhood Center (NC) and Community Commercial (Ce) designation. The County does 

not distinguish labs that analyze cannabis as being any different from any other testing lab facility. 

In addition to the State requirements found in Sections 1934 through 19345 of the Business and 

Professions Code, the Planning Commission is recommending that the follOWing performance 

standards: 

• The facility shall be alarmed with an audible interior and exterior alarm system, unless 

waived for extenuating circumstances by the City Manager or designee that is operated and 

monitored by a recognized security company, deemed acceptable by the City Manager or 

designee. Any change in the security company shall be subject to the approval of the City 
Manager or his designee. All current contact information regarding the medical marijuana 

facility's security company shall be provided to the city manager or designee. 

• Entrance to the lab area and any cannabis storage areas shall be locked at all times, and 

Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulalions Council June 7, 2016 

88 



under the control of facility staff. 

• Medical marijuana shall be stored in a secured and locked room, vault or safe, or other 
secured storage structure which is bolted to the floor or structure of the premises. 

• Windows and roof hatches of the premises shall be secured from the inside with effective 
means so as to prevent unauthorized entry, and shall be equipped with latches or a similar 
mechanism that may be released quickly from the inside to allow exit in the event of 
emergency in compliance with all applicable building provisions in the California Building 
Code. 

• All laboratory testing facilities shall comply with Sections 19341 through 19345 of the 
California Business and Professions Code. 

• Comply with any special conditions applicable to that permit or parcel which may be 

imposed as a condition of the required Conditional Use Permit. 

Below is a copy of the State requirements regulating labs that analyze cannabis which are 

codified in Sections 19342 through 19345 of the Business and Professions Code: 

19342. (a) For the purposes of testing medical cannabis or medical cannabis products, 
licensees shall use a licensed testing laboratory that has adopted a standard operating 
procedure using methods consistent with general requirements for the competence of testing 
and calibration activities, including sampling, using standard methods established by the 
International Organization for Standardization, specifically ISO/IEC 17020 and ISO/IEC 17025 to 
test medical cannabis and medical cannabis products that are approved by an accrediting body 
that is a signatory to the International Laboratory Accreditation Cooperation Mutual 
Recognition Arrangement. 

(b) An agent of a licensed testing laboratory shall obtain samples according to a statistically 
valid sampling method for each lot. 

(c) A licensed testing laboratory shall analyze samples according to either of the following: 

(1) The most current version of the cannabis inflorescence monograph published by the 
American Herbal Pharmacopoeia. 

(2) Scientifically,valid methodology that is demonstrably equal or superior to paragraph (1), in 
the opinion of the accrediting body. 

(d) If a test result falls outside the specifications authorized by law or regulation, the licensed 
testing laboratory shall follow a standard operating procedure to confirm or refute the original 
result. 

Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulations Council June 7. 2016 

89 



(e) A licensed testing laboratory shall destroy the remains of the sample of medical cannobis 
or medical cannabis product upon completion of the analysis (emphasis added). 

19343. A licensed testing laboratory shall not handle, test, or analyze medical cannabis or 
medical cannabis products unless the licensed testing laboratory meets all of the following: 

(a) Is registered by the State Department of Public Health. 

(b) 15 independent from all other persons and entities involved in the medical cannabis industry. 

(c) Follows the methodologies, ranges, and parameters that are contained in the scope of the 
accreditation for testing medical cannabis or medical cannabis products. The testing lab shall 
also comply with any other requirements specified by the State Department of Public Health. 

(d) Notifies the State Department of Public Health within one business day after the receipt of 
notice of any kind that its accreditation has been denied, suspended, or revoked. 

(e) Has established standard operating procedures that provide for adequate chain of custody 
controls for samples transferred to the licensed testing laboratory for testing. 

19344. (a) A licensed testing laboratory shall issue a certificate of analysis for each lot, with 
supporting data, to report both of the following: 

(1) Whether the chemical profile of the lot conforms to the specifications of the lot for 
compounds, including, but not limited to, all of the following: 

(A) Tetrahydrocannabinol (THC). 

(B) Tetrahydrocannabinolic Acid (THCA). 

(C) Cannabidiol (CBD). 

(D) Cannabidiolic Acid (CBDA). 

(E) The terpenes described in the most current version of the cannabis inflorescence 
monograph published by the American Herbal Pharmacopoeia. 

(F) Cannabigerol (CBG). 

(G) Cannabinol (CBN). 

(H) Any other compounds required by the State Department of Public Health. 

Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulalions Council June 7, 2016 

90 



(2) That the presence of contaminants does not exceed the levels that are the lesser of either 
the most current version of the American Herbal Pharmacopoeia monograph or the State 
Department of Public Health. For purposes of this paragraph, contaminants includes, but is not 
limited to all of the following: 

(A) Residual solvent or processing chemicals. 

(B) Foreign material, including, but not limited to, hair, insects, or similar or related adulterant. 

(e) Microbiological impurity, including total aerobic microbial count, total yeast mold count, P. 
aeruginosa, aspergillus spp., s.aureus, aflatoxin Bl, B2, Gl, or G2, or ochratoxin A. 

(D) Whether the batch is within specification for odor and appearance. 

(b) Residual levels of volotile organic compounds shall be below the lesser of either the 
specifications set by the United States Pharmacopeia (U.s,P. Chapter 467) or those set by the 
State Department of Public Health (emphasis added). 

19345. (a) Except as provided in this chapter, a licensed testing laboratory shall not acquire or 
receive medical cannabis or medical cannabis products except from a licensed facility in 
accordance with this chapter, and shall not distribute, sell, deliver, transfer, transport, or 
dispense medical cannabis or medical cannabis products, from which the medical cannabis or 
medical cannabis products were acquired or received. All transfer or transportation shall be 
performed pursuant to a specified chain of custody protocol. 

(b) A licensed testing laboratory may receive and test samples of medical cannabis or medical 
cannabis products from a qualified patient or primary caregiver only if he or she presents his or 
her valid recommendation for cannabis for medical purposes from a physician. A licensed 
testing laboratory shall not certify samples from a qualified patient or caregiver for resale or 
transfer to another party or licensee. All tests performed by a licensed testing laboratory for a 
qualified patient or caregiver shall be recorded with the name of the qualified patient or 
caregiver and the amount of medical cannabis or medical cannabis product received. 

(c) The State Department of Public Health shall develop procedures to ensure that testing of 
cannabis occurs prior to delivery to dispensaries or any other bUSiness, specify how often 
licensees shall test cannabis and that the cost of testing shall be borne by the licensed 
cultivators, and require destruction of harvested batches whose testing samples indicate 
noncompliance with health and safety standards promulgated by the State Department of 
Public Health, unless remedial measures can bring the cannabis into compliance with 
quality assurance standards as promulgated by the State Department of Public Health. 

(d) The State Department of Public Health shall establish a licensing fee, and laboratories shall 
pay a fee to be licensed. licensing fees shall not exceed the reasonable regulatory cost of the 
licensing activities. 

Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulations Council June 7, 2016 

91 



Dispensaries 

Issues: 

• Should dispensaries be allowed in the City? 

• Where should dispensaries be located? 

• How many dispensaries should be allowed? 

• Should deliveries be allowed? 

Discussion 

The Planning Commission is recommending that dispensaries be conditionally permitted in the 
Town Center (TC) designation subject to a Conditional Use Permit, State regulations, recommended 
performance standards and the conditions and limitations set forth in this Section and as deemed 
appropriate by Planning Commission and/or the City Council. 

There was discussion by the Planning Commission to recommend to your Council that only one 
dispensary be allowed. However, based on a number of public comments supporting a free market 
approach, the Planning Commission chose not to recommend limiting the number of dispensaries. 

In addition to the State requirements found in Sections 19342 through 19345 of the Business and 

Professions Code, the Planning Commission is recommending that the following dispensary performance 

standards: 

Recommended Performance Standards 

• The facility shall be alarmed with an audible interior and exterior alarm system, unless waived for 
extenuating circumstances by the City Manager or designee that is operated and monitored by a 
recognized security company, deemed acceptable by the City Manager or designee. Any change in 
the security company shall be subject to the approval of the City Manager or his designee. All 
current contact information regarding the medical marijuana faCility's security company shall be 
provided to the City Manager or designee. 

• Entrance to the any cannabis storage areas shall be locked at all times, and under the control of 
facility staff. 

• Medical marijuana shall be stored in a secured and locked room, vault or safe, or other 

secured storage structure which is bolted to the floor or structure of the premises. 

• Windows and roof hatches of the premises shall be secured from the inside with effective 

means so as to prevent unauthorized entry, and shall be equipped with latches or a similar 

Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulalions Council June 7, 2016 

92 



mechanism that may be released quickly from the inside to allow exit in the event of 
emergency in compliance with all applicable building provisions in the Code. 

• No dispensing location for the collective shall be open between the hours of 8:00 p.m. and 
9:00 a.m. on any given day. 

• Only qualified patients, as defined in Section 11362.7 of the Health and Safety Code are 
allowed in dispensaries. 

• Medical marijuana may not be inhaled, smoked, eaten, ingested, vaped, or otherwise used 
or consumed at the premises and/or location. 

• The sales of pipes, including water pipes and other paraphernalia are prohibited. 

• All edible medical marijuana products sold within the City of Rio Dell shall be placed in 
opaque packaging, without photos or images of food on the label. Packaging that makes the 
edible product attractive to children or imitates candy is not allowed. Edible medical 
marijuana products shall not imitate commercially produced goods marketed to children. 
The edible product must be accompanied by a leaflet or insert that clearly states the 
source/provider of the food production in addition to all of the information required by 
Subsection 17.30.095(14)(i). 

• A sign shall be posted in a conspicuous location inside the premises advising the following: 
"Both the sale of marijuana and the diversion of marijuana for nonmedical purposes are 
violations of state law. The use of marijuana may impair a person's ability to operate a 
motor vehicle or heavy machinery. Loitering at the location of medical marijuana collective 
for an illegal purpose is prohibited by California Penal Code Section 647(h). This collective is 
registered in accordance with the laws of the State of California and the City of Rio Dell." 

Recommended Packaging/labeling Requirements 

• In addition to the labeling requirements of Section 19347 of the Business and Professions 
Code, all medical marijuana shall be packaged in an opaque childproof container which 
shall be accompanied by a leaflet or insert that clearly states the following: 

• The complete legal name of the qualified patient who will be using the medical 
marijuana; 

• The name, address and on-site landline telephone number of the dispensary; 

• The amount of medical marijuana in the container; 

• The name of the attending physician recommending the use of medical marijuana for 
the qualified patient; 

Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulalions Council June 7, 2016 

93 



• The date the medical marijuana was provided; 

• A list of the chemicals and or substances that were used during the processing of the 
medical marijuana; 

• All necessary health and safety warnings, including, but not limited to direction that 
the medical marijuana be stored in a clean and dry place and out of the reach of 
children; and 

• A statement that the City of Rio Dell neither warrants nor guarantees the quality or 
safety of the medical marijuana contained therein. 

Below are the labelinq requirements found in Section 19347 of the Business and Professions 
Code: 

19347. (a) Prior to delivery or sale at a dispensary, medical cannabis products shall be labeled 
and in a tamper-evident package. Labels and packages of medical cannabis products shall meet 
the following requirements: 

(1) Medical cannabis packages and labels shall not be made to be attractive to children. 

(2) All medical cannabis product labels shall include the following information, prominently 
displayed and in a clear and legible font. 

(A) Manufacture date and source. 

(B) The statement "SCHEDULE I CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE." 

(e) The statement "KEEP OUT OF REACH OF CHILDREN AND ANIMALS" in bold print. 

(D) The statement "FOR MEDICAL USE ONLY." 

(E) The statement "THE INTOXICATING EFFECTS OF THIS PRODUCT MAY BE DELAYED BY UP TO 
TWO HOURS." 

(F) The statement "THIS PRODUCT MAY IMPAIR THE ABILITY TO DRIVE OR OPERATE 

MACHINERY. PLEASE USE EXTREME CAUTION." 

(G) For packages containing only dried flower, the net weight of medical cannabis in the 
package. 

(H) A warning if nuts or other known allergens are used. 

Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulalions Council June 7, 2016 

• 
94 



(I) List of pharmacologically active ingredients, including, but not limited to, 
tetrahydrocannabinol (THe), cannabidiol (CBD), and other cannabinoid content, the THC and 
other cannabinoid amount in milligrams per serving, servings per package, and the THC and 
other cannabinoid amount in milligrams for the package total. 

(J) Clear indication, in bold type, that the product contains medical cannabis. 

(K) Identification of the source and date of cultivation and manufacture. 

(L) Any other requirement set by the bureau. 

(M}lnformation associated with the unique identifier issued by the Department of Food and 
Agriculture pursuant to Section 11362.777 of the Health and Safety Code. 

(b) Only generic food names may be used to describe edible medical cannabis products. 

State Dispensary Requirements 

Dispensaries are regulated by the Department of Consumer Affairs. Section 19334(c) et. seq. of 
the Business and Professions contains the following required regulations associated with 
dispensaries: 

(c) A licensed dispensary shall implement sufficient security measures to both deter and 
prevent unauthorized entrance into areas containing medical cannabis or medical cannabis 
products and theft of medical cannabis or medical cannabis products at the dispensary. 
These security measures shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following: 

(1) Preventing individuals from remaining on the premises of the dispensary if they are not 
engaging in activity expressly related to the operations of the dispensary. 

(2) Establishing limited access areas accessible only to authorized dispensary personnel. 

(3) Storing all finished medical cannabis and medical cannabis products in a secured and locked 
room, safe, or vault, and in a manner as to prevent diversion, theft, and loss, except for limited 
amounts of cannabis used for display purposes, samples, or immediate sale. 

(d) A dispensary shall notify the licensing authority and the appropriate law enforcement 
authorities within 24 hours after discovering any of the following: 

(1) Significant discrepancies identified during inventory. The level of significance shall be 
determined by the bureau. 

(2) Diversion, theft, loss, or any criminal activity involving the dispensary or any agent or 
employee of the dispensary. 

Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulations Council June 7, 2016 

95 



(3) The loss or unauthorized alteration of records related to cannabis, registered qualifying 
patients, primary caregivers, or dispensary employees or agents. 

(4) Any other breach of security. 

Next Meeting 

Staff is recommending that the consideration of the proposed Medical Cannabis Land Use 

Ordinance be continued to the Council's regular meeting of June 21, 2016. At this meeting staff 

will present a summary of the recommendations. In addition, the Council can discuss any 

possible changes to the proposed Ordinance. 

It should be noted that based on the meeting of May 24, 2016 and what staff believes is 

Council's direction, staff will slightly amend the proposed ordinance to require an Inventory 

Tracking Software System (ITSS) for all cannabis related activities. 

Medical Cannabis Commercial Land Use Regulations Council June 7, 2016 

96 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 7601-3532 
(707) 76-1-50180 (jax) 
E-mail: klloppk@cityolriodcll.ca.gol. 

TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
June 7, 2016 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Kyle Knopp, City Manager~ 0 
Brooke Woodcox, Finan~ecto~ 
June 7,2016 

Discussion/Possible Adoption of Resolution 1288-2016 Operating and 
Capital Budget for fiscal year 2016/17 

RECOMMENDED CITY COUNCIL ACTIONS 

1. Receive staff presentation 
2. Open the public comment 
3. Motion to close the public comment 
4. Adopt the 2016/17 fiscal year Operating and Capital Budget 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

At two regularly scheduled Council meetings (May 3,d and 17th) Council reviewed the 
2016/17 proposed Operating and Capital Budget as presented by staff and held 
budgetary discussions. The budget was again presented and further discussed at a 
budget workshop on May 23, 2016. Presented now is the budget as previously discussed 
at the budget workshop. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT 

The proposed budget shows operating appropriations of $2,526,706, capital 
expenditures of $ 1 ,624, 1 55, debt service of $531 ,365, and contingency items of $25,736. 
Total expenditures as presented are $4,718,935. Total revenues as presented are 
$4,520,048. Expenditures exceed appropriations by $198,887. 

Resolution 1288·2016 
Operating ilnd Capital Budget 

FYZ016·Z017 

97 



Additional information is included as a supplementary part in this year's budget packet. 
It can be found at the back of the packet and provides Information regarding the 
Measure Z position and audited financial statement information. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution 1288-2016 
Staffing Chart 
Allocations by Department 
Salary Chart 
Summary Budget Analysis by Fund 
Departmental budgets by line Item 
Capital 8udget 
Supplementary Information: Part-time Measure Z Position 
Supplementary Information: Financial charts and summary Information 
Master Budget Summary Sheet 

Resolution 1288·2016 
Operating and Capital Budget 

FYZ016·Z017 

98 



err-Jor 

~ ELL 
----

RESOLUTION NO. 1288-2016 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 
ADOPTING THE OPERATING & CAPITAL BUDGET 

FOR THE FISCAL-YEAR 2016-2017 

WHEREAS. the City Is required to adopt an annual operations budget pursuant to City of 
Rio Dell Resolution 966~2007; and 

WHEREAS. the proposed budget for the Fiscal-year beginning July 1. 2016 and ending 
June 30, 2017, as presented by the Finance Department has been reviewed and 
revised by the City Manager, and the City Council; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Rio Dell City Council does hereby 
adopt the City of Rio De1l2016~2017 Operating & Capital Budget, Including projected 
revenues totaling $4,520,048. expenditures in the amount of $4,718,935, and an 
appropriation to and from reserves in the amount of $ -198,887 as follows: 

I 

I 
~ funt!.... -: ~ lund Name 

~-

PDM J!ldmln Fund 

SUI Building Fund 

CDBG CDBGFund --COSG COSG RRIHund 

GF General Fund 

MZ MeosureZ 

' REG Recycling Fund 

RES Parks Fund 

RES Reolgunent Gront Fund 
r RES - SLfSF Fund 

RES Vehicle Abatement Fund 

RES Water ~ Prop 84 NCIRWMP 

Waler 0 USOAECWPG --RES -, SEW Sewer .Assmf District Fund 

SEW Sewer Capital Fund 

SEW Sewer Debt Servee Fund 

SEW i Sewer Restricted Reserv a 

SEW !Sewer Operations Fund 
"'-S()- tSoid Waste Fund 

I SP j5pay & Neuter Fund 

S!~OSTaX Fund (HUT/14J 
e-°sr ITDAFund---

ST RSTP Funds 

1 WPJ . t~oter Capital Fund r WN Waler Melro WeI$ Fund -

j WAr IWa191 Dinsmore Zone 

I ~ Wotar Restricted Reserve 
'-- -r WPJ IWaterDebtServlceFund 

WPJ lWater Operations Fund 

I TOTAL 

SUMMARY BUDGET ANAl ¥SIS BY FUND 

Est Beg, 

Fund Proposed 

8alance Transfer~ Ea~n· 

.!Jl/~ ~t~von",e Traftsfers In OUt -~ 
6598 2.800 1,250 

18.698 32,901 (5 •• '0 57,46& 

0 ---=---- 0 . -
204.605 12,000 166,642 

1012.190 879765 0 10055 977,729 

..:...... · ---- -- --
12455 5.000 · 5000 

12,111 . 
14115 550D 0 -...:- _ .10,000 

115,028 100,000 (4.1.6 89.158 -
2605 0 . · 

0 59!,.!.!! '- 591,794 
-~ --

373,200 . 373 200 

4416 32 000 32000 

166.621 99 .. 388 0 _ · 100,000 

402,934 310,000 310,000 

302 822 0 0 0 

119,676 78~~ 0 · 728,701 -
44.726 o OOD 0 0 10973 

2,868 0 2,868 -
205.356 7',"0 i 0 - . 

0 150,430 

26551 111,600 112,304 

0 22000 0 22000 

~_117.763 19~~ 0 . -lli,li! 

I 

5,296 11,697 0 

7,278 17,466 0 

. 136,000 I-
0 0 

68,000 152.171 

BO,OOO 697745 

) ,158656 4,520,048 tID 055 

Resolutton 1288·2016 
Operations and Capital Budget 

FY20160 2017 

-- --
Hi,ODD 

629890 

10 ass 4.711935 

J 
Est End 

Chanle In fund 

Fund Balance 

8al~£L ~13D/I1 
1.550 8.148 

(I •• 0. 

0 --
US4,6421 4',963 

"08019 904.171 

----
12455 

. 12.111 

_J~ 
15,028 

r- ~615 

0 2,60S 

- - -
0 0 

. 4.lli.. 

o _ 1'12) I-- 16~~ 
402,934 

0 302822 

~,731 .E!,~ 
(1.973 42.753 

{Z •• 6. -
_ -'76,091 129.L265 . 

1704 n .847 

0 

_1Jl,47V -LOO,285 

11,697 16993 

17,466 24744 

- 136&00 

16.171 84.371 

61.855 147855 

[198887 I 2j 9S9t769 

99 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the staffing Is adopted and funded in the 2016-2017 
Operations Budget as follows: 

FULL TIME EMPLOYEES 
BY FISCAL YEAR 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 
JOB TITLE 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
ACCOUNTANT 1/11 1 1 -- I 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT - - - - -
CHIEF OF POLICE 1 1 1 1 1 

CITY CLERK 1 1 1 1 1 

CITY MANAGER IPUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 1 1 1 1 1 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 1 1 0,8 0,8 0,8 

FINANCE DIRECTOR 1 1 1 1 1 

FISCAL ASSISTANT 1/11 1 1 1 1 1 

POliCE CORPORAL -- -- -- -- --
POLICE OFFICER 3 3 3 3 3 
POLICE RECORDS TECHNICIAN - - -- - -
POliCE SERGEANT 1 1 1 1 1 

PUBLIC WORKS LEADMAN -- - - -- --
PW ADMINISTRATIVE TECHNICIAN -- - - - --
SENIOR FISCAL ASSISTANT 1 1 1 1 1 

UTILITY WORKER 1/11 3 3 3 3 2 

WATERNJ ASTEW ATER PLANT OPERATOR 1 1 1 1 1 

W ASTEW ATER SUPERINTENDENT 1 1 1 1 1 

WATER & ROADW A VS SUPERINTENDENT 1 1 1 1 1 

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR -- - -- - _. 
AUOCATEO POSITIONS 17.75 17,75 16,80 17,80 16,80 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as follows: 

Section 1. 
It Is the Intention of the City Council in approving and adopting on annual 
budget to provide financial guidance for routine operations of City business and 
for the purpose of providing Information to the general public, 

Section 2. 
The adopted annual City budget will be implemented and maintained In 
accordance with City Budget Policy as outlined In Resolution 966-2007. 

Section 3. 
Adoption of the annual budget does not expressly approve expenditures of 
funds in excess of purchasing authority as outlined by City Resolution, Ordinance, 
State, or Federal law. 

Resolution 1288·2016 
Operations and Capital Budget 

FY2016,2017 
100 



Section 4. 
Adoption of the 2016-2017 Budget shows a deficit minimum fund balance (30% 
of annual expenditures) in the Building Fund. lOA Fund, and Water Operations 
Fund. 

Section 5. 
Adoption of the 2016-2017 Operating and Capital Budget includes inter-fund 
transfers totaling $ 1 0,055: The General Fund transfer of $ 1 0,055 Is made up of two 
amounts: 1) Building Fund $5,869 and SLESF Fund $4,186. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City of Rio Dell on this 71n day of June 2016, by the 
following roll call vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Abstain: 
Absent: 

ATTEST: 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

Resolution 1288·2016 
Opeliltions and Capital Budget 

FY 2016·2017 
101 



FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 
PROPOSED STAFFING SCHEDULE 

FULL TIME EMPLOYttS 
BY FISCAL YEAR 

JOB TITLE 
2012 2013 2014 2015 
2013 2014 2015 2016 

ACCOUNTANT 1/11 1 1 -- 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT -- -- -- -
CHIEF OF POLICE 1 1 1 1 

CITY CLERK 1 1 1 1 

CITY MANAGER /PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 1 1 1 1 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 1 1 0.8 0.8 

FINANCE DIRECTOR 1 1 1 1 

FISCAL ASSISTANT 1/11 1 1 1 1 

POLICE CORPORAL -- -- -- --
POLICE OFFICER 3 3 3 3 

POLICE RECORDS TECHNICIAN -- -- -- --
POLICE SERGEANT 1 1 1 1 

PUBLIC WORKS LEADMAN -- -- -- --
PW ADMINISTRATIVE TECHNICIAN -- -- - --
SENIOR FISCAL ASSISTANT 1 1 1 1 

UTILITY WORKER 1/11 3 3 3 3 

WATER/WASTEWATER PLANT OPERATOR 1 1 1 1 

WASTEWATER SUPERINTENDENT TRAINEE -- - -- --
WASTEWATER SUPERINTENDENT 1 1 1 1 

WATER & ROADWAYS SUPERINTENDENT 1 1 1 1 

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR - -- -- -
ALLOCATED POSITIONS 17.75 17.75 16.80 17.80 

2016 
2017 

1 

--

1 

1 

1 

0.8 

1 

1 

--
3 

--
1 

--
-

1 

2 

1 

1 

--
1 

-
16.80 

102 



PROPOSED DEPARTMENTAL ALLOCATIONS 
FY 2016-2017 

CITY MANAGER DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

_ - AllOCATION BY FUND - ',-, :. 

General Fund 
streets Funds 
Wastewater Fund 
Water Fund 

City Manager 
City Clerk 

20% 
10% 
35% 
35% 

100% 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

. ALLOCATlON.BY FUND _ ... 

General Fund 20% 
streets Funds 10% 
Wastewater Fund 35% 
Water Fund 35% 

100% 

59,126 
29,563 

103,470 
103,470 

295,629 

98% 
60% 

74,087 
37,044 

129,653 

129,653 

370,437 

_ ALLOCATION BY POSITION 4l"~'-;" 
Anance Director 
Accountant I 
Senior Fiscal AssIstant 

FIscal Clerk" 

SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

Solid Waste Fund 100% 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

10,973 

r ",Sf: n::: ALLOCATION BY POSITION ':" - . ;- . - . 

City Manager 

Proposed Allocations by Department 
FV 2016·2017 

2% 

103 



PROPOSED DEPARTMENTAL ALLOCATIONS 
FY 2016-2017 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

General Fund 
CDBG 

78% 
22% 

100% 

, ALLOCATION BY POSITION :--
Community Development Director 

POLICE DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

23.547.18 
6.641.51 

• 30.189 

30% 

;. -. ALLOCATION BY FUND~ '_. _.'!J 
General Fund 
SLESF Fund 
MeasureZ 

86% 
14% 
0% 

100% 

" _ ALLOCATION BY ~SITlON :. ~ . 
Police Chief, Sergeant, and 3 Officers 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

General Fund 100% 

Community Development Director 
City Clerk 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

552.371 
89.158 

641.529 

100% 

67.811 

40% 
20% 

AUOCATION BY FUND~-· ~ 
General Fund 
Building Fund 

43% 
57% 

100% 

Community Development Director 
City Clerk 

Proposed Allocations by Department 
FY 2016-2017 

24.567 
32.901 

57.468 

30% 
20% 

104 



PROPOSED DEPARTMENTAL ALLOCATIONS 
FY 2016-2017 

CITY COUNCIL DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

,'J,' -'-:'';:. ALLOCATION BY FUND . . 
General Fund 38% 5,488 
streets Funds 8% 1,099 
Wastewater Fund 27% 3,846 
Water Fund 27% 3,846 

100% 14,279 

STREETS DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

~ALLOCAnON BY FUND '·~ • . 

Gas Tax (HUTA) Fund 38% 74,339 
TDAFund 39% 76,002 

RSTP Fund 11% 22,000 

172,341 

RESERVES (Gas Tax) 12% 24,788 

100% 197,129 

AUOCATION BY POSmON ~I~ . ~ '. ." j 

Water and Roads Superintendent 
Utility Worker I (2) 
Wastewater Operator I 

SEWER DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

~-----;-;--:;; ~ AUOCATION BY FUND 

Sewer Fund 

Wastewater Superintendent 
Water and Roods Superintendent 
Utility Worker I (2) 
Wastewater Operator I 

100% 

Proposed Allocations by Department 
FY 2016-2017 

474,583 

15% 
35% 
20% 

100% 
20% 
10% 
50% 

105 



PROPOSED DEPARTMENTAL ALLOCATIONS 
FY 2016-2017 

WATER DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

.. '-.. ALLOCATION BY RJND . 

Water Fund 100% 

... - ALLOCATION BY POSITION 

Water and Roods Superintendent 
Utility Worker I (2) 
Wastewater Operator I 

375.772 

60% 
35% 
20% 

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS DEPARTMENT BUDGET 

AUOCATION BY FUND . .• -: . 
General Fund 
Streets Funds 
Wastewater Fund 
Water Fund 

20% 
10% 
35% 
35% 
100% 

Water and Roods Superintendent 
Utility Worker I (2) 
Wastewater Operator I 

ADMINISTRATION VEHICLE 

r.; ~ """"'::::. .:. ALLOCATION BY FUND 
Admin Fund 100% 

Proposed Alloeations by Department 
FY 2016·2017 

9.797 
4.899 

17.145 
17.145 
48.986 

5% 
20% 
10% 

1.250 

106 



Peace Officers Association 

Salary Range 

JOB TITlE A B c D E 
Police Officer 41.823 43.078 44.370 45.701 47.072 
Police Corporal 46.005 47.385 48.807 50.271 51. 779 
Records Technician 32.660 33.640 34.649 35.688 36.759 
Sergeant 50.606 52.124 53.688 55.298 56.957 

10 e R' D II E 'A mployees . t' ssocla Ion 

Salary Range 

JOB TITLE A B C D E 
Accountant I 4~.682 43.963 45.28~ 46.640 48.039 
Accountant \I 46.951 48.359 49.810 51.304 52.843 
Administrative Assistant 29.036 29.907 30.804 31.728 32.680 
Administrative Technician 35.246 36.304 37.393 38.515 39.670 
Fiscal Assistant I 28.618 29.477 30.361 31.272 32.210 
Fiscal Assistant \I 32.084 33.046 34.037 35.059 36.110 
Office Assistant 23.759 24.472 25.206 25.962 26.741 
Public Works Leadman 33.170 34.165 35.190 36.246 37.333 
Records Technician 32.656 33.636 34.645 35.684 36.755 
Senior Fiscal Assistant 36.786 37.889 39.026 40.197 41.402 
Utility Worker I 26.209 26.995 27.805 28.639 29.498 
Utility Worker II 28.843 29.709 30.600 31.518 32.464 
Water/Wastewater Plant Operator I 32.069 33.031 34.022 35.042 36.094 
Water/Wastewater Plant Operator II 35.276 36.334 37.424 38.547 39.703 

C t t E on rac mployees 

Salary Range 

JOB TITlE A B C D E 
City Clerk 52.081 53.644 55.253 56.911 58.618 
City Manager 106.875 110.081 113.384 
Chief of Police 79.540 81.926 84.384 
Finance Director 67.473 69.497 71.582 
Community Development Director 73.394 75.595 77.863 80.199 
Wastewater Superintendent Trainee 46.384 
Wastewater Superintendent 49.743 51.235 52.772 54.356 55.986 
Water/Streets Superintendent 55.960 57.639 59.368 61.149 62.983 

107 



r--
City of Rio Dell 

SUMMARY BUDGET ANALYSIS BY FUND 
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 

Est. Beg. Est. End. 
Fund Proposed Change in Fund 

Balance Est. Transfers Expen- Fund Balance 
Fund Fund Name 7/1/16 Revenue Transfers In Out ditures Balance 6/30/17 

ADM Admin Fund 6,59B 2,BOO - - 1.250 1,550 8,148 

BUI Building Fund 18,698 32,901 (5,869) . 57,468 (18,698) -
CDBG CDBG Fund - - - - - - -
CDBG CDSG RRLF Fund 204,605 12,000 - - 166,642 (154,642) 49,963 

GF General Fund 1,012,190 879,765 - 10,055 977,729 (108,019) 904,171 

Ml MeosureZ - - - - - - -
REC Recycling Fund 12,455 5,000 - - 5,000 - 12,455 

RES Parks Fund 12,111 - - - - - 12,111 

RES Realignment Grant Fund 14,115 5,500 - - 10,000 (4,500) 9,615 

RES SLESF Fund (15,028) 100,000 (4,186) - 89,158 15,028 -
RES Vehlcle Abatement Fund 2,605 - - - - - 2,605 

RES Water - Prop 84 NCIRWMP - 591,794 - - 591,794 - -
RES Water - USDA ECWAG - 373,200 - - 373,200 - -
SEW Sewer Assmt District Fund 4,416 32,000 - - 32,000 . 4,416 

SEW Sewer Capitol Fund 166,621 99,388 - - 100,000 (612) 166,009 

SEW Sewer Debt Service Fund 402,934 310,000 · . 310,000 . 402,934 

SEW Sewer Restricted Reserv 302,822 - - - - - 302,822 

SEW Sewer Operations Fund 319,676 785,432 - - 728,701 56,731 376,407 

SO Solid Waste Fund 44,726 9,000 - - 10,973 (1,973) 42,753 

SP Spay & Neuter Fund 2,868 - - - 2,868 (2,868) -
Sf Gas Tax Fund (HUlA) 205,356 74,339 · - 150,430 (76,091) 129,265 

ST TDAFund 26,551 111,600 - - 112,304 (704) 25,847 

ST RSTP Funds - 22,000 - - 22,000 - -
WAT Water Capitol Fund 117,763 194,051 - 211,529 (17,479) 100,285 

WAT Water Metro Wells Fund 5,296 11,697 · - - 11,697 16,993 

WAT Water Dinsmore lone 7,278 17,466 - - 17,466 24,744 

WAT Water Restricted Reserv 136,000 - - - - - 136,000 

WAT Water Debt Service Fund 68,000 152,371 - 136,000 16,371 84,371 

WAT Water Operations Fund 80,000 697,745 - 629,890 67,855 147,855 

TOTAL 3,158,656 4,520,048 (10,055) 10,055 4,718,935 1198,887} 2,959,769 

108 



6/30/2014 6/30/2014 6/30/201 5 6/30/2015 7/29/2016 6/30/2016 1 1 
2016-2017 REVENUE BUDGET Actual """gel Acluol I1vdgeI V·T·O AchJOl I1vdgeI Proposed 

TOTAL REVENUE All FUNDS '.606.817 7.595.058 J,330,898 3,177,436 2.048.592 J,178,891 4520,8'J 

ADMIN FUND 
4900 ADM Interfund Revenue 987 4.444 1.454 4.000 2,800 

TOTAL ADMIN FUND 987 4.444 1.454 4.000 2,800 

ANNIVERSARY FUND 
4963 AN Anniversary Income 850 850 

TOTAL ANNIVERSARY FUND 850 850 

BUILDING FUND 
4445 BUI Building - Admlnlslratlve Fees 2,B46 14.854 150 12,622 8,000 14,000 
4463 BUI Building - Continuing Education 201 111 125 TlO 
4464 BUI Building · Technology Fee 453 250 340 340 
4410 SUI Building P100 - Constr Permits 23,951 28,800 14,123 30.000 12,398 18,000 13,885 
4440 BUI Building Plan - Plan Check Fee 9,898 5.000 5.324 19.800 3.720 6.000 3,950 
4460 BUI Building Plan - SeismiC Fees 142 75 112 125 118 75 125 
4462 BUI Building Siandords- SB 1473 119 125 63 47 60 66 
4465 BUI Encroachment PelmUs 500 500 250 375 500 425 

TOTAL BUILDING FUND 37.456 34.000 35.630 50.325 29.641 33.100 32,90T 

CDBG FUNDS 
4729 CDBG Deferred Revenue 5.120 (17,654) (945) 
4727 CDBG Grant Restr - CDBG Pllnterest/late fees 47 1 I 
4725 CDBG Grant Restr - CDBG PI Prlndple 5,366 24,143 8.912 12,000 

TOTAL CDBG FUNDS 5.413 5.120 6.490 7,968 12,000 

GENERAL FUND 
4995 GF Danatloos 100 700 
4802 GF Donatlons- Bicycle Helmels 300 500 
4803 GF Donations· Mlsc 384 50 20 
4197 GF Fees - Admin Vehicle User Fees 5,000 
4173 GF Fees · Animal Conlrol/Relinq. 1.588 500 1.278 1.200 489 1.200 1,200 
4170 GF Fees - Animal Ucense 1.252 800 1.281 1.000 1.327 1.800 1,350 

4178 GF Fees - Baoldng 547 500 741 500 358 200 500 
4150 GF Fees Business Ucense 11.500 6,000 8.724 8.000 4.440 9500 9,000 

... 
0 
~ 



~ 

~ 

o 

2016-2017 REVENUE BUDGET 

TOTAl REVENUE All FUNDS 

4151 GF Fees - Bu~ness Ucense CASP SB 1186 
4195 GF Fees - Customer fax and copy 
4125 GF Fees · Franchise· Coble TV 
4110 GF Fees - Franchise · Electric 
4120 GF Fees· Franchise· Garbage 
4115 GF Fees · Franchise · Gas 
4163 GF Fees · In Ueu VLF - County 
4162 GF Fees· Motor Vehicle Ucense (VlF) 
4180 GF Fees - Notary 
4105 GF Fees - Recorders Fees 
4183 GF Fees· Special Police Services 
4185 GF Fees· Slreel & Sidewalks 
4186 GF Fees - Weed & lot 
4220 GF Flnes.-.Anlmal Control!spa·neu 
4728 GF Gen Fund Income from CDBG Misc. fees 
4747 GF Grant - Measure Z 
4941 GF Mlsc - Post Training & Special Project Relmbursen 
4435 GF Planning· Home Occupallon Permll Fee 
4455 GF Planning - Olher 
4456 GF Planning· Porks & Rec Dev. Fees 
4430 GF Planning· Subdlvlson Fee 
4420 GF Planning - Zoning Fees 
4322 GF Renlal Income· Property 
4321 GF Renlallncome· T. Mobile 
4320 GF Renlallncome - U.S. Cellular 
4050 GF Tax· Documenlary Real Property 
4026 GF Tax - Home Owne(s Property 
4041 GF Tax -In Ueu Relall Sales - County 
4042 GF Tax - Measure U Soles Tax 
4027 GF Tax - Prior Years - Supplemenlal 
4010 GF Tax - Property Currenl Secured 
4011 GF Tox - Property Current UnsecUf 
4012 GF Tax - Property P,lor Secured 
4013 GF Tax - Property Prior Unsecured 
4056 GF Tax - Public Sofety .5% sales 
4040 GF Tax - Relall Sales 
4025 GF Tax· Supplemental Roll 
4035 GF Tax - TImbe, Yield 
4030 GF Tox - Transient Occupancy Tox 

TOTAl GENERAl FUND TAX PROCEEDS 

6/30/2014 6/30/2014 
Aclual Budgel 

4,606.817 7.595.058 

285 50 
85 25 

33.531 33.000 
27.722 24.000 
15.145 15.000 
6.277 6.000 

340.093 330.000 
7.943 6.600 

47 
500 

1.712 1.200 
960 300 

300 
150 

80 750 

6.075 
1.500 

5.553 8.000 
4.500 

13.587 10.800 
6.513 6.000 
4.350 2.200 
1.567 1.600 

43.570 51.192 

778 
101.279 100.235 

3.716 3.600 
62 

100 
2.987 3.200 

100.140 122.000 
3.396 2.200 

16 10 
11.424 lO.IOS 

748.489 763.992 

6/;,)/2015 6/30/2015 2J'}!112016 6130/2016 1 1 
Aclual Budge' V T 0 Actual Budge' Pf0901ed 

J 330.898 3,171,436 2 048.592 3.128891 ' .511lB13 

180 200 90 250 180 
38 25 36 25 25 

34.590 33.000 16.974 33.000 33,600 
26.682 28.000 26.200 27,000 
15.568 15.275 7.904 15.000 15,000 
5.720 6.300 5.600 6,000 

342.092 340.094 171.044 342.000 342,000 
6.795 7.600 4.309 7.100 7,100 

220 100 

3.125 1.500 1.285 1.500 1,900 
500 
300 300 

32 
9.086 35.569 

3.000 
440 500 160 300 200 
138 50 

3.000 1.500 
1.500 1.500 1,500 

4.233 8.000 1.230 2.500 2,500 

11.983 11.681 9.002 13.000 11,800 
6.571 6.370 3.831 6.370 6,500 
3.503 2300 2.365 4.000 2,800 
1.454 1.600 709 1.400 1,400 

29.148 43.510 5.D10 29.100 16,000 
44.477 101.910 160.000 170,000 

709 75 
101.807 103.921 52.444 103.500 102,000 

3.890 3.600 3.481 3.600 3,600 

116 42 100 
3.445 3.300 1.727 3.100 3,300 

93.210 129.500 51.701 117.000 100,500 
622 2.200 302 2.200 2,200 

14 12 12 14 10 
10.793 11.000 10.073 11.000 10,500 

767.169 775.488 463.636 937.978 879.765 



2016-2017 REVENUE BUDGET 

TOTAl REVENUE AlL FUNDS 

MEAZURE l FUND 
Ml Measurel 

TOTAl MEAZURE l FUND 

RECYCLING FUND 
4746 REC Grant Restrlsted - Recycling 

TOTAl RECYCLING FUND 

GRANT RESTRICTED FUNDS 
4757 RES Grant · Safe Routes To SChool 
4720 RES Grant Headwalers 
4744 RES Grant Rest - Police Reollgrmenl Groot 
4763 RES Grant Res\.- Prop. 84 - SDWSRF 
4765 RES Grant Resl.·USDA ECWAG 
4710 RES Grant Restr . ISTEA 
4750 RES Grant Restr· DOT RPSTLE-5396 
4755 RES Grant Restricted SliP 
4759 RES Grant Restr-SWRC8 Grant Fac&Eff DISp. 

TOTAl RESTRICTED FUNDS 

SEWER FUNDS 

4571 SEW Sewer - Assmt Dlst # I - Prior 
4570 SEW Sewer - Assmt Dlst # I Current 
4520 SEW Sewer ~ Connection 
4516 SEW Sewer - Debt Service 
4540 SEW Sewer · Replacemenf Reserve 
4510 SEW Sewer · Service 
4630 SEW lote Fee 
4936 SEW 8ad Debt Recovery 
4920 SEW Mise - Speclol Public Works 

TOTAL SEWER FUNDS 

SLESF FUND 

-' 
-' .... 

6/30/201<1 
ActlXll 

4.606.817 

5.000 
5.@) 

128.062 

20.000 

536.412 

716.804 

1.401.278 

2,CXJ9 
28.159 

5.220 
359.382 
185.812 
696.322 

21.396 
1.127 
2.945 

1.302.372 

6/30/2014 
Budget 

7.595.058 
~ 

152.300 
100.000 

21.000 

491.263 
3,718.874 

4.483.437 

28.185 
4.600 

323.184 
172.216 
670.458 

18.800 
500 

1.000 

1.219.543 

6/30/2015 
Aclual 

3.330.898 

= 

14.817 
192.206 

207.023 

939 
2.962 

10.440 
348.356 
180. 188 
673.023 

20.555 
1.693 
1.909 

1.240.064 

6/30/2015 
Budget 

J.177.436 
~ 

28.785 

325.900 
255.571 
602.614 

38.000 
1.000 

1.251.870 

2/29!2016 
Y·T 0 Actual 

204B.592 
= 

17.458 

17.458 

5.000 

5.000 

9.884 

9.884 

1.424 
16.776 
15.660 

203.319 
105.167 
392.630 

22.901 
437 

758.314 

6/30/2016 
Budoel 

3.128.891 

35.569 

35.569 

5.000 

5.000 

7.000 

7.000 

30.950 
5.220 

310.000 
170.000 
555.000 

20.000 
1.430 
1.900 

1.094.500 

1/ 
Proposed ---

4.520.873 

5,000 

5,000 

5,500 
591,794 
373,200 

-970,494 

32,000 
5,220 

310,000 
98,344 

758,656 
20,600 
2,000 

1,226,820 



-" ... 
IV 

20 16-2017 REVENUE BUDGET 

4740 

4190 

4045 
4712 
4048 

4650 
4620 
4640 
4615 
4616 
4653 
4654 
4610 
4635 
4630 
4936 
4651 

4935 
4480 
4310 
4:1 10 
4950 

TOTAl REVENUE All FUNDS 

SLESF Grant Reslr - PolIce Granl SLESF 

TOTAl SLESF FUND 

SOUD WASTE FUND 
SO Fees - Integrated Waste Management 

TOTAl SOUD WASTE FUND 

STREETS FUNDS 
ST Tax - (HCAOG) Transportation - TDA 
ST Grant Restricted - RSTP HCAOG 
ST Tax - Gasoline (HIghway Users Tax) 

TOTAl STREETS FUNDS 

WATER FUNDS 
WAT Water - Capitol 
WAT Woter - Connection 
WAT Water - Damage Replacement 
WAT Water - Debt Service 
WAT Water Debt Service Restricted 
WAT Water - Metro Wells 
WAT Water - Dinsmore Zone Charge 
WAT Water Service 
WAT Shut ON Fees 
WAT Late Fee 
WAT Bod Debt Recovery 
WAT Water Copitollnflitration Gallery 

TOTAl WATER FUNDS 

MISC FUND DISTRIBUTION 
MISC Gain/Loss on Disposal of Assets 
MISC Insuronce Premium Reimbursement 
MiSe Interest Income 
MISC Interest Income 
MISC Mlsc 

6/3012011$' 
Actual 

4,~,817 

98.562 
98.562 

8.173 
8:173 

11 7.477 
46.763 

109.540 
273.780 

64.780 
8.100 
1.014 

144.920 

466.408 
15.100 
21.396 

1.127 

722.845 

54 
280 
190 

1.077 
400 

6/30/2014 
Budget 

7,595,058 

loo.1XXl 
loo.1XXl 

8.500 
8:500 

117.251 

103.464 
220.715 

10.800 
400 

134.1XXl 

543.397 
10.200 
18.800 

500 

718.097 

100 

1.000 

6/3D/20IS 
Actual 

J,330,8Q8 

loo.1XXl 
loo.1XXl 

9. 199 
9. 199 

11 4.888 
22.572 

103.581 
24 1.04 1 

65.81 3 
5.400 

172.949 

426.809 
17.560 
20.555 

1.693 

710.778 

1.422 
5.126 

520 

6/3D/20IS 
Budgot 

3, 177.436 

loo.1XXl 
loo.1XXl 

8.500 
8.500 

108.609 
21.1XXl 
90.010 

219.619 

77.000 
5.410 
1.000 

140.724 

501 .967 
5.933 

38.000 
1.000 

771.034 

100 

500 

212"'2016 
V-I 0 Actual 

2.0<18.502 

48.069 
48.069 

4.976 
4.976 

46.365 

47.740 
96.105 

46.967 
8.100 

108.698 
3.053 
1.528 
2.426 

299.410 
3.825 

22.901 
437 

100.000 
599.345 

4.145 
818 

7 
325 

6/30/2016 / / 
Budget Proposed 

3,128,891 4.520 673 

loo.1XXl 100.000 
100.000 100.000 

9.500 9.000 
9.500 9.000 

108.945 111.600 
21.1XXl 22,000 
76.820 74,339 

206.765 207,939 

63.1XXl 171,728 
2.700 2,700 

11.000 
140.1XXl 152,371 

20,783 
11,697 
17,466 

450.000 667,805 
6.000 6,180 

20.000 20,600 
1.430 2,000 

694.130 1,073,329 

100 425 

400 400 



..... ..... 
IN 

2016-2017 REVENUE BUDGET 

TOTAL REVENUE ALL FUNDS 

4990 MiSe Mise -OIOOr 
4991 Mise Mise Income - Suspense 

TOTAL MISC FUND DISTRIBUTION 

TOTAL REVENUE ALL FUNDS 

6/30/2014 
Actual 

4.~.817 

515 

2.462 

".606.817 

6/30/20 111 6/30/2015 
Budgot Actual 

7.595.058 J,l3O,BQ8 

30.554 1. 142 
IO,CXXl 

41 .654 8.210 

7.&9&.0511 3,330,898 
= ~ 

6/30/2015 2/29/2016 6/30/2016 /I 
Budgot V-I 0 Actual Budget Proposed 

3. 177.430 2001B,5Q2 J,128.8QI 11.520.873 

1.448 

600 6.743 500 825 

3.177.436 2.0..8.592 3,128.891 ",520.873 
~ = = ~ 



6/30/14 6/30/14 6/30/15 6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 / / / / 
2016-2017 CITY MANAGER Actual Budget Actual Budget V-ToO Actual Budget Proposed ReQuests 

EXPENDITURES 
5000 Full TIme Salaries 137.720 110.019 139.444 ..J71.281 22.590 . 151.272... .154.945 
5032 Rellrement - City Manager 6.564 11.300 2.457 
5035 Benefit -ICMA City 457 11.611 3.517 16.331 22.891 12.357 17.430 17,311 
5040 Benan! - Health Insurance 15.760 14.077 15.433 34.427 13.557 2t.64t 14,679 
5042 Benefit - uta Insurance 304 324 320 371 154 304 303 
5044 Benefit - Dental/VI~on tnsur 2.426 2.507 1.753 2.417 1.418 3.214 t,949 
5045 Worker Compensation Insurance 2.920 2.002 2.094 1.732 1.555 1.598 2.026 
5050 FICNMEDI 11.558 8.416 12.417 13.104 7.464 11.634 11.852 
5055 Unemployment Insurance 642 1.100 1.016 1.517 645 694 686 
5080 Hiring Costs 27.148 45.251 5.000 
5081 Compensated Absences Payable 6.333 (9.125) 
5101 Office Supplies 1.675 1.496 1.283 1.500 548 1.500 1.500 
5102 Operating Supplies 306 700 382 350 219 350 
5103 Postage 235 250 294 250 117 250 
5104 Printing - Forms 3.931 2.000 4.011 3.000 1.561 4.000 
5106 Promotional 5t 85 

5.849 20.000 
---

- 4.960- ---15.000 5112legol 6.271 15.000 15.000 
5115 Contracttprofesslonal Services 17.827 61.420 4.804 29.240 639 23.000 33.300 
5121 Telephone - Pager 1.707 900 1.739 2.000 1.115 1.760 t.76O 
5122 Training - Conference 1.501 4.500 1.686 2.000 585 3.000 3.000 
5123 Automobile - Transportallon 2.169 6.000 4.645 4.200 3.155 4.200 4.645 
5125 Publications - Books 28 100 76 50 50 50 
5126 Dues & Memberships 236 2.500 622 1.100 1.075 1.100 1.100 
5128 Employee Relallons 151 100 100 100 
5130 Rents leases 920 4.500 1.858 3.000 983 2.100 2.100 
5131 Records Maintenance 103 76 100 43 110 110 
5135 Maintenance - Repair 537 251 1.083 450 715 700 700 
5138 Office Equipment 783 251 419 500 500 3.500 
5139 Equipment 500 500 500 500 
5140 80nd Insurance 10 
5141 General Uabllity Insurance 1.812 4.167 8.054 4.312 5.264 8.538 8.538 
5143 Property Insurance 420 936 1.577 957 996 1.672 1.672 
5144 Emp Practice Uab tnsurance 102 330 121 318 99~ 762 1,400 
5148 Office Equipment 201 
5150 Electricity 676 651 1.375 586 858 1.430 1,473 
5151 Natural Gas 59 300 111 63 54 137 141 
5t52 Water 59 38 70 50 225 
5153 Sewer 99 73 40 100 103 
5160 Elections 1.003 

5161 Sales Tax Admin Fees 7.290 

5162 Medical 2 
5166 lAFCO Fees 1.245 1.429 1.695 1.500 1.500 

.... .... .... 



..... ..... 
VI 

2016-2017 CITY MANAGER 

5171 Computer Software 
5173 Computer Maintenance - SUpport 
5174 Web Design Services 
5215 Public Works - Small Tools 
5514 Englnee.lng 
5520 Improvements 
6100 fixed Asset - Computer Hardware 

TOTAl EXPENDITURES 

6/30/14 6/30/14 
Actual Budge. 

500 
1.248 1.100 

24 500 
100 

272 
191 

1.497 
266.844 314.375 

6/30/15 
Ac'uot 

1 
2.161 

521 

235.275 

6/30/15 
Budge' 

500 
1.769 

30 

1.000 

325.726 

General Fund 
Streets Funds 
Wastewater Fund 
Water Fund 

City Manager 
City Clerk 

2/24/16 6/30/16 
V-T-D Ac'ual Budge' 

1 500 
1.485 2.379 

47 300 

885 1.000 
220 

157.844 284.595 

r1 ~·~n·~.1 ~.a bl 
20% 
HJ% 
35% 
35% 
100% 

AUOCATION BY POSITION 

/ / 
Proposed 

500 
2,739 

400 

t,OOO 
220 

295,629 

59,126 
29,563 

103,470 
103,470 
295,629 

98% 
60% 

/ / 
Requests 



6/30114 6/30114 6/30115 6/30115 2/24116 6/30116 / / / / 
2016-2017 FINANCE DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Actual Budget V-T-O Actual Budget Proposed Requests 

EXPENDITURES 
5000 Full TIme Salaries 148.874 172.212 180.043 179.006 112.147 185.654 198.081 
5030 Overtime Salaries 1.015 2.000 5 132 
5035 Benefit - ICMA City 457 15.133 20.693 19.162 19.313 12.104 19.698 20.964 
5040 Benefit - Health Insurance 21.802 26.568 38.970 39.106 23.448 37.732 33,217 
5042 Benefit - Ufe Insurance 435 630 540 651 221 461 480 
5044 Benefit - Dental/Vision Insur 3.453 3.845 5.043 4.758 3.104 4.922 5.121 
5045 Worker Compensation Insurance 3.496 1.674 2.496 1.793 1.931 2.042 2.600 
5050 FtCA 12532 14.735 15.127 13.551 9.713 14.348 15.153 
5055 Unemptoyment Insurance 2.103 1.926 1.669 1.536 1.609 1.649 1.736 
5080 Hiring Costs 903 3.000 
5081 Compensated Absences Payable 1.648 3.254 
5101 Office SUpplies 3.046 3.500 3.805 3.610 2.451 3.610 3.610 
5102 Operating SUpplies 787 1.500 333 800 218 800 800 
5103 Postage 4.054 5.526 2868 6.974 3.053 4.050 4.050 
5104 Printing - Forms 3.825 _2.000 3.23~ 3.301 1.328 3.301 3.301 
5105 Advertising 2.937 
5106 Promottonal 8D 34 
5110 Accounting 36.970 36.790 34.936 28.800 20.937 30.000 26.500 
5112 Legal 252 1.000 784 400 400 400 
5115 Contract/Professional Services 833 500 400 24 750 750 
5116 Bank Fees 2.117 2.000 1.893 2.092 992 2.200 2.200 
5121 Telephone - Pager 1.330 1.530 1.614 2.238 1.114 2.200 2,200 
5122 Training - Conference 2.402 4.500 2.786 4.501 1.785 4.501 4,501 
5123 Automobile - Transportation 3.950 1.300 915 1.301 1.301 1,301 
5125 Publications - Books 34 200 48 94 94 94 
5126 Dues & Memberships t26 151 122 125 220 125 125 
5128 Employee Relations 100 
5130 Rents - Leases 2.549 3.000 1.740 3.101 922 2.500 2.500 
5131 Records Mcintenance 630 659 525 475 600 1,000 
5135 Maintenance - Repair 1.395 1.800 1.088 1.951 899 1.951 1,951 
5138 Office Equipment 2.582 3.000 --4C _ ~OO - __ 4.3~ 8.200 5.200 
5t39 Equipment 100 
5141 General Uabillty Insurance 4.794 10.938 7.999 11.408 5.228 8.480 8,480 
5143 Property Insurance 1.112 2.460 1.566 2.531 989 1.660 1,660 
5144 Emp Practice Uab tnsurance 270 907 120 841 987 756 1.600 
5150 Electricity 1.788 1.500 1.366 1.572 852 1.421 1,464 
5151 Natural Gas 155 151 110 170 54 137 141 
5152 Water t33 87 157 110 365 
5153 Sewer 223 165 91 216 222 

5162 Medical 100 
----

5163 Property Tax Admin Fees 2.777 3.000 2744 3.000 1.305 3.000 3,000 
5171 Computer Saftware 68 500 I 170 76 200 200 

.... .... 
0'1 



6/30/14 6/30/14 6/30/15 
2016-2017 FINANCE DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Actual 

EXPENDITURES 
5172 Computer Tralning 75 3.000 
5173 Computer Maintenance SUpport 14.998 8.999 14.497 
5174 Web Design Services 73 196 110 
5520 Improvements 505 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 307.928 347.431 352.122 

-----...j 

6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 1 1 
Budget V-I·O Actuat Budget Proposed 

15.023 7.959 14.500 15,220 
146 46 150 250 

358.240 220.919 363.719 --mf,437 

AUOCATION BY FUND " 
General Fund 20% 
S~eets Funds 10% 
Wastewater Fund 35% 
Water Fund 35% 

100% 

AUOCAT10N BY POSITION 
Finance Director 
Accountant I 
Senior Rscal Assistant 
Fiscal Clerk II 

74,087 
37,044 

129,653 
129,653 
370,437 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

1 1 
Requesls 



..... ..... 
00 

2016-2017 SOLID WASTE 

EXPENDITURES 
5000 Full TIme Salaries 
5030 Overllme Solarles 
5032 Retirement - City Manager 
5035 Benefit - ICMA City 457 
5040 Benefit - Health Insurance 
5042 Benefit - ute Insurance 
5044 Beneflt- Denial/Vision Ins 
5045 WOfkers Compensallon Insurance 
SOSOFlca 
5055 Unemployment Insurance 
5101 Office Supplies 
5102 Operallng Supplies 
5103 Poslage 
5104 Prlnllng - Forms 
5105 Advertising 
5106 Promollonal 
5112 Legal 
5115 Conlracl Professional Services 
5121 Telephone - Pager 
5122 Training - Conference 
5123 Aulomoblle - Transportation 
5125 Publlcallons - Books 
5126 Dues & Memberships 
5130 Renls & Leases 
5131 Records Malntenonce 
5135 Maintenance - Repair 
5136 Office Equlpmenl 
5141 General Uability Insurance 
5143 Property Insurance 
5144 Emp Practice Uab Insurance 
5150 Electricity 
5151 Eteclrlclty 
5154 Garbage 
5171 Computer Software 
5173 Compuler Maintenance - Support 
5174 Web Design Services 
5520 Improvemenls 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

6/30/14 6/30/14 
Actual Budget 

1.954 UXXl 
125 
198 
83 

144 
166 

9 
14 200 

572 1.00J 
13 500 
14 200 

222 300 
250 

746 
140 3.671 
29 

100 
2 

146 
9 

64 
I 

296 521 
69 117 
17 41 

III 
10 150 

1.413 1.400 

30 
4 50 

31 
6.674 10.500 

6/30/15 6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 / / / / 
Actual Budget V-T-O Actuot Budget Proposed Requests 

2.055 2.055 .423 2.~ 2,180 

266 266 59 247 249 
535 114 138 

6 4 4 
33 43 19 

25 20 4 23 32 
188 157 39 157 171 

21 127 8 
18 17 7 17 17 
9 50 6 50 50 

34 23 23 
55 4 

50 
2 

1.763 972 
12.00J 5.00J I 7.00J 7,000 

6 4 8 

60 110 25 

236 56 14 

221 144 234 234 
43 27 46 46 
3 27 21 55 

36 24 39 40 
3 I 4 4 

1.095 1.102 147 650 650 

19 13 25 
3 I 20 

18.166 9.500- 1.942 10.854 10,973 

ALLOCATION BY FUND ., 



" m ---8. 
2 
~ 

<)-- '" 2ig 
'2" -Om 

(; 
<) " 

~~ 
(:!o 
"'..;. 

> 

'" -- '" 2ig 
'2 " -Om 

"'-- 0 -" g-
<,;:i 

'0-
- 0 -" o_ 
M u 
<';< 

UJ .... 
V> « 
~ 
Cl 
::; 
0 
V> 
..... 
0 

"" , -0 

1<l 

on 
w 

'" :::> 
~ 

is 
Z 
w 
"-x 
w 

• 
~ • 

• 

• 
1l c 
" Q; ~ 

~ CJ> 

0 g 
3: 0 
1l ::;; 

~ ~ 
U 

119 



~ 

'" o 

2016·2017 ADMIN FUND (VEHICLE) 

EXPENDITURES 
5135 Molnlenonce • Repair 
5212Gos & 011 
5213 Vehicle Repair 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

0/30/14 
Actual 

37 
259 

296 

0/30/14 0/30/15 
Budget Actual 

125 
5.[XX) 374 

66 
5.[XX) 505 

0/30/15 2/24/10 0/30/10 /I / / 
Budget V·T·O Actual Budget Proposed Requests 

16 500 
236 700 

252 1.200 

AllOCATION BY FUND • _ '<I 
Admin Fund 100% 1.250 



6/30/14 6/30/14 6/30/15 
2016-2017 GENERAL GOVERNMENT Actual Budget Actual 

EXPENDITURES 
5000 Full Time Solarles 
5035 Benefit ·ICMA City 457 
5040 BeneO! • Health Insurance 
5042 BeneO! • Ufe Insurance 10 
5045 Worker Compensation Insurance 
5050 FICA 
5055 Unemployment Insurance 
5101 Office SUpplies 6 
5102 Special Department SUpplies 
5103 Postage 
5104 Printing· Forms 
5115 Contracf/Professlonal Services 
5121 Telephone· Pager 
5125 Publications· Books 6 
5130 Rents· leases 
5135 Maintenance · Repair 
5138 Office Equipment 
5141 General Uability Insurance 
5143 Property Insurance 
5144 Emp Practice Uab Insurance 
5150 Electricity 
5151 Natural Gas 
5171 Computer Software 
5173 Computer Maintenance· Support 
5174 Web Design Services 

TOTAl EXPENDITURES 22 

.... 
IV .... 

6/30/15 
Budget 

----

General Fund 
CDBG 

2/24/16 6/30/16 / / 
V-T·D Actual Budget Proposed 

17.068 32.642 20,567 
2.132 3.737 2,355 
1.189 1.876 975 

64 144 86 
714 359 272 

1.578 2.516 1,573 
174 217 130 
62 106 
52 89 

23 39 
6 10 

292 434 

t20 205 
125 200 

400 
1.244 1,600 

235 401 
92 157 

203 347 
13 22 

61 3.500 179 
11 40 

25.458 44.991 30,189 

AUOCATION BY FUND '. -. "I 
78% 
22% 
100% 

23,547.18 
6,641.51 

30,189 

AUOC"TION BY POSITION _ .~, ..... 
Community Development Director 30% 

/ / 
Requests 



6/30(14 6/30(14 6/30(15 6/30(15 2/24/16 6/30(16 1 1 1 1 
2016-2017 POLICE DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Actual Budget V-T-D Actual Budget Proposed Requests 

EXPENDITURES 
5000 Full nme SOIarles 302.774 278.897 304.756 289.554 202.102 279.238 279,020 

5030 Overtime Solarles 11.087 8.000 11.196 8.112 13.599 22.541 20,391 
5035 8eneflt -ICMA City 457 54.173 60.599 54.433 59.918 33.549 57.685 58,336 
5040 Benefit - Health Insurance 68.717 59.352 74.297 71.079 44.078 67.798 68,953 

5042 Benefit - life Insurance 1.013 990 1.237 1.075 483 1.075 1,056 
5044 Benefit - Dental/VI~on Insur 8.797 8.68D 11.116 10.097 8.091 11.204 10,786 
5045 Worker Compensation Insurance 20.203 11.389 27.938 28.318 19.647 28.911 35,528 
5050 FICA 27.059 21.565 26.642 22.151 18.847 23.285 22,905 
5055 Unemployment Insurance 2.356 2.199 2.671 2.896 3.043 2.258 2,170 
5060 Clothing Allowance 3.759 3.751 3.553 3.742 2.438 3.750 3,7SO 

5080 Hiring Costs 566 3.000 750 2.950 2.000 3,000 

5 t 01 Office SUpplies 8BO 1.200 496 1.000 1.200 1.000 _t,2oo 
5102 Operating Supplies 2.740 3.200 1.309 2.500 1.121 2.500 
5103 Postage 790 1.000 584 665 299 6lXJ 
5104 Printing - Forms 303 800 B60 463 167 1.000 
5105 Advertising 40 50 50 386 SO 
5106 Promotional 50 115 50 15 50 SO 
5112 Legal 1.506 1.500 1.386 1.000 4.710 1.000 1,000 
5115 Controct/Profe~onoI Servlces 3.68D 3.000 1.546 3.000 5.184 3.000 3,6SO 
5117 Animal Control 8.882 5.000 6.533 6.500 7.070 6.500 12,000 
5119 Sofety SUpplies & EQUIpment 1.266 1.239 272 1.239 1,239 

5121 Telephone - Pager 7.798 7.000 7.774 7.000 4.913 7.610 7,610 
5122 Training - Conference (2.931) 2.000 1.184 3.644 4.400 4,400 
5123 AutomObile - Transportation 193 1.000 749 500 416 500 500 
5125 Publications - Books 2.226 500 73 500 136 500 
5126 Dues & Memberships 1.638 2.000 1.659 1.800 390 1.800 
5128 Employee Relations 2.550 250 250 
5130 Rents - Leases 2.521 2.000 2.160 2.500 1.523 2500 
5131 Records Maintenance 242 370 350 270 500 
5135 Maintenance - Repelr 1.963 2.000 4.231 5.523 85B 5.523 
5138 Office Equlpmenl 28 2.200 2.575 2.100 142 2.100 
5139 Equipment 4.052 5.450 16.003 13.658 300 7.025 
5141 General Uabillty Insurance 6.009 13.543 12.137 14.301 7.932 12.865 12,865 
5143 Property Insurance 1.394 3.045 2.376 3.172 1.501 2.519 2,519 
5144 Employee Practice Uab Insurance 339 1.114 182 1.106 1.497 1.147 2,OSO 

5150 Electricity 2.482 2.317 2.000 1.439 2.412 2,484 

5151 Natural Gas 194 167 200 82 207 213 

5152 Water 226 147 267 180 545 

5153 Sewer 377 274 153 370 381 

5154 Garbage 166 200 

5162 Medical 1.425 6.000 3.096 3.000 2.224 3,000 3,200 

5171 Computer Software 378 1.500 389 500 2 500 SOD 

... 
N 
N 



..... 
tv 
W 

2016-2017 POLICE DEPARTMENT 
5173 Computer Maintenance - Support 
5174 Web Design Services 
5192 Code Enforcement 
5193 Nuisance Abatement-Vehicle 
5212 Gas & 011 
5213 Vehicle Repair 
5215 PubliC Works - Small Tools 
5305 Booking Fees Due 
5308 Dispatch Service Due 
5520 Improvements 
6100 Fixed Asset - Computer Hardware 

TOTAl EXPENDITURES 

6/30/14 
Actual 

5.069 
89 
20 
80 

15.712 
3.443 

30 
(3.439) 
18.504 

634 
2.711 

592.295 

6/30/14 6/30/15 
Budget Actual 

3.200 7.411 
100 167 

3.0c0 445 
2.500 lfIJ 

15.0c0 13.452 
4.0c0 9.18~ 

1.500 
18.flJ3 18.504_ 

1.300 
575.227 -639.297 

6/30/15 
Budget 

7.9fIJ 
100 

1.0c0 
1.2fIJ 

13.0c0 
2.5W_ 

18.5f~L 

-

6 j 7.540 

General Fund 
SLESF Fund 
MeosureZ 

2/24/16 6/30/16 / / 
V-T·O Actual Budget Proposed 

4.091 6.500 
70 200 

1.0c0 
2fIJ 1.2fIJ 

7.900 13.400 
_2.528_ _ __ 4'(Xl(1 _ 4,000 

~6,600_ _WX~ 24,900 

428.379 623.842 641,529 

ALLOCATION BY FUND . 
86% 
14% 
0% 

tOO% 

ALLOCATION BY POSITION 

552,371 
89,158 

641,529 

PoHce Chief. Sergeant. and 3 Officers 100% 

/ / 
Requests 



-" 
IV 
.". 

. 2016-2017 PLANNING 

EXPENDITURES 
5000 Full Time SalarIes 
5035 8enefit - ICMA CIty 457 
5040 Benefit - Heallh InSUlance 
5042 Benefit Ufe Insurance 
5044 Benefit - Dental/VIsion Insur 
5045 Worker Compensation Insurance 
5050 FICA 
5055 Unem~ovment Insurance 
5101 OffIce SUpplIes 
5102 Operating Supplies 
5103 Postage 
5104 PrInting - Forms 
5106 Promotional 
5112 Legal 
5115 Contract/ProfessIonal services 
5121 Telephone - Pager 
5122 TraIning - Conference 
5123 Automobile - Transportation 
5125 Publications · Books 
5t26 Dues & Memberships 
5t28 Employee Relations 
5t30 Rents - Leases 
513t Records Maintenance 
5135 Maintenance - Repair 
5138 Office Equipment 
514t General Uability Insurance 
5143 Property Insurance 
5144 Employee Practice Uab Insurance 
5150 Electricity 
5151 Natural Gas 
5152 Water 
5153 Sewer 
5164 Regulatory Fees 
5166 Regulatory Fees 
5t71 Computer Saffware 
5173 Computer Maintenance - Support 
5174 Web Design Services 
55t2 Planning 
5520 Improvements 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

6/30/14 
Actuol 

89.092 
11.088 
B.754 

333 
406 

2.078 
V40 

543 
336 
147 
428 

2.896 

363 
52 

962 
851 
606 
110 
178 

771 
93 

88t 
7 

1.491 
346 
84 

556 
48 

50 

474 
762 
20 

157 

132.703 

6/30/14 6/30/15 
Budget Actuol 

91.780 62.258 
12.919 7.527 
7.649 11.094 

297 299 
379 540 

1.670 1.889 
7.021 5.405 

918 447 
400 619 
300 76 
600 258 
250 1.382 

27 
3.000 418 
1.000 

826 662 
1.500 60 
1.750 9 

250 35 
300 228 

50 
700 622 

66 
500 267 
tOO 

3.646 1.93t 
820 378 
289 29 
560 330 

90 27 
25 
41 

4.000 
1.700 

900 
250 955 
250 27 

t3 

146.664 97.944 

6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 / / / / 
Budget V-T-O Actual Budget Proposed Requests 

64.592 22.576 35.210 
7.751 2.724 4.023 

14.482 3.837 6.312 
266 70 139 
935 235 325 

1.890 743 380 
4.941 1.980 2.715 

646 263 239 260 
350 119 350 297 
150 36 150 150 
300 231 300 300 

1.250 1.035 1.610 1.631 
7 

1.000 1.000 1,000 
300 4 300 300 
975 219 975 533 
750 750 750 

1.250 1.250 1,250 
100 100 100 
350 85 350 350 

25 25 25 
800 298 800 595 
100 43 100 100 
400 t81 400 300 
500 500 1,400 

3.548 872 2.047 1,447 
787 t65 40t 251 
26t 209 183 348 
600 142 343 353 
100 9 33 34 
16 29 30 66 
30 t7 50 52 

_UXXl 2.QCK) 2,000 

200 200 200 
875 601 1.050 1,125 
400 8 400 400 

~114.62O 36.738 65.100 61,811 



..... 
"" U1 

2016-2017 PLANNING 

EXPENDITURES 

6/30/14 
Actuol 

6/30/14 
Budgef 

6/30/15 
Actual 

6/30/15 
Budget 

2/24/16 
V-T-O Actual 

6/30/16 
Budget 

I I 
Proposed 

ALLOCATION BY FUND , 
General Fund 100% 67,811 

AUOCATION BY POSITION -
Community Development Director 
City Clerk 

40% 
20% 

/ / 
Requests 



-> 
N 
0'1 

2016-2017 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

EXPENDITURES 
SOOO Full Time Solarles 
5035 Benefit - ICMA City 457 
5040 Benefit - Heallh Insurance 
5042 BeneOI - ute Insurance 
5044 Benefit - Denlol/Vl~on Insur 
5045 Worker Compensation Insurance 
5050 FICA 
5055 Unemploymenllnsurance 
5101 Office Supplies 
5102 Operallng Supplies 
5103 Poslage 
5104 Prlnllng - Forms 
5106 Promollonal 
5112 legal 
5115 Conlracl/Profes~onal Services 
5121 Telephone - Pager 
5122 Training - Conference 
5123 Aulomoblle - Transportallan 
5125 Publlcallons - Books 
5126 Dues & Memberships 
5128 Employee Relallons 
5130 Renls - leases 
5131 Records Mainlenance 
5135 Malnlenance - Repair 
5138 Office Equlpmenl 
5141 Generot Uabilityinsurance 
5143 Property Insurance 
5144 Employee PracHce Uab Insurance 
5150 Electricity 
5151 Natural Gas 
5152Waler 
5153 Sewer 
5164 Regulalory Fees 
5167 Seismic Fees 
5171 Compuler Software 
5173 Compuler Malnlenance - Suppor1 
5174 Web Design Services 
5215 Public Works - Small Tools 
5520 Improvements 

TOTAl EXPENDITURES 

0/30/14 
Actual 

16.712 
1.929 
6.402 

48 
406 
474 

1.292 
109 
56 

243 
32 

273 

1.363 
24.139 

74 
1.708 

810 
2 

525 

171 
102 

1.595 
1 

298 
69 
17 

111 
10 

185 
152 

28 
4 
7 

31 
59.378 

0/30/14 0/30/15 
Budget Actual 

14.654 38.403 
3.664 4.556 
4.399 9.729 

45 169 
379 540 
267 970 

1.121 3.229 
147 273 
80 544 
50 74 
50 45 

200 124 
26 

1.000 37 
24.0c0 5.703 

256 261 
2.990 
1.223 

1.0c0 706 
500 283 

300 695 
128 

50 308 

1.302 1.876 
293 367 
124 28 
300 320 

50 26 
49 
82 

50 168 
200 176 
25 
99 118 

26 

- 54.605- --74.252 

6/30/15 2/24/10 6/30/10 /I / / 
Budget Y-T-DActuot Budget Proposed Requests 

39.319 14.769 22.153 32,967 
4.718 1.748 2.528 3,762 

11.201 3.265 5.591 3,4 
150 41 82 1 
728 235 325 3 
928 413 237 4 

3.008 1.258 1.708 2,522 
393 177 152 217 
150 101 400 347 
633 15 200 200 

40 13 40 40 
100 75 140 140 

700 500 500 
5.0c0 452 2.0c0 2,000 

600 178 280 280 
3.0c0 296 3.0c0 3,000 
1.0c0 31 1.0c0 1,000 

500 500 500 
250 250 250 

25 25 25 
150 261 700 630 
60 85 115 115 

400 131 500 
500 500 
710 371 1.989 

70 389 
168 178 285 

125 61 341 351 
50 4 25 26 
33 58 40 107 
61 33 80 82 

250 70 250 250 
200 110 200 200 
100 100 100 
200 30 180 210 
200 3 200 200 

75.482 24.522 46.898 57,468 



-" 
N 
-..J 

2016-2017 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
6/30/14 
Actual 

6/30/14 
Budget 

6/30/15 
Actuol 

6/30/15 
Budget 

2/24/16 
V-T·D Actuol 

6/30/16 
Budget 

AUOCATtON BY FUND 
General Fund 
Building Fund 

43% 
57% 
100% 

AUOCATION BY POSITION 
Communlly Development Director 
Cily Clerk 

/ / 
Proposed 

24,567 
32,901 

57,468 

30% 
20% 

/ / 
Requests 



..... 
N 
00 

2016-2017 CITY COUNCIL 

EXPENDITURES 
5101 ONlce Supplies 
5102 Operating Supplies 
5103 Postage 
5104 Printing - Forms 
5106 Promollonal 
5112 Legal 
5115 Contract/Professional Services 
5122 Training - Conference 
5123 Automobile - Transportallon 
5125 Publicallons·Books 
5126 Dues & Memberships 
5129 Meellng 
5135 Maintenance - Repair 
5138 OHlce Equipment 
5141 General Uablllty Insurance 
5143 Property Insurance 
5173 Computer Maintenance - Support 
5174 Web De~gn services 
5450 Miscellaneous Expense 
5540 Mavor Woodall 
5541 Gordon Johnson 
5560 Council Member Marks 
5563 Council Member Thompson 
5564 Council Member Wilson 
5900 ROFD and Ubrary Water/Sewer 

TOTAl EXPENDITUIlfS 

6/30/14 
Aclual 

4.12B 

7BB 
663 

1.409 

2.57B 

947 
2.890 

6.250 

525 

20.178 

6/30/14 6/30/15 
Budgel Actual ---

12 
51 20 

120 
51 584 

5.(XXJ 119 
I.(XXJ 1.769 
7.059 

1.786 
1.661 

9B 
2.751 2.344. 
2.100 

2.892 
1.302 

294 

60 
6.250 

251 
251 
251 

1.096 
1.096 

4.252 
31.695 12.825 

6/30/15 
Budget 

B50 
502 

2.(XXJ 
1.502 

2.7S.L 

502 

710 
t57 

3.388 
12.362 

Streets Funds 
Wastewater Fund 
Woter Fund 

2/24/16 
V-T-O Actual 

21 

3 
216 
B44 

I.B27 

905 
1.089 

3.443 
8.348 

6/30/16 
Budget 

111 
B37 

1.050 
502 

3.(XXJ 
2.(XXJ 

_2.7~ 

98 

4.(XXJ 
t4.349 

100% 

/ / 
Proposed 

40 

111 
837 

3,000 
2,000 

. 2,751 

600 
98 

1,099 
3,846 
3,846 

14,279 

/ / 
l1equests 



6130114 6130114 6130115 6130115 2/24116 6130116 1 1 1 1 
2016-2017 STREETS Actual Budget Actual Budget Y-T DActuol Budgel Proposed Requests 

EXPENDITURES 
5000 Full TIme Salalles 77.831 59.377 78.923 82.525 36.123 60.393 37.441 
5030 Overtime Solarles 494 900 722 3.c:XJ4 671 3. 126 2.078 
5035 8enefit - ICMA CIIy 457 7.311 5.826 7.628 8.123 3.511 6.448 4,044 
5!J40 Benefit - Heallh Insurance 6.413 5.331 15.785 15.705 7.258 12.999 8,860 
5!J42 Benefit - Ufe Insurance 84 86 256 235 64 187 137 
5044 Benetti - DenlalJV1~an Insur 807 725 2.300 2.108 1.371 2.259 1.455 
5045 Worker Compensation Insurance 4.980 4.434 13.563 14.942 6.249 11.097 7.962 
5050 FICA 6.494 4.991 6.752 6.313 3.164 4.921 3,023 
5055 Unemploymenllnsurance 1.040 815 902 825 481 705 413 
5060 Clothing Allowance 207 235 549 825 292 6B5 428 
5OBO Hiring Costs 55 
5101 Office Supplies 90 264 345 90 235 300 300 
51020perallng Supplies 793 880 724 930 899 1.050 1,200 
5103 Poslage 42 45 24 26 1 20 20 
5104 Prlnllng - Forms 28 45 124 28 32 160 160 
5105 Adverllslng 138 45 188 35 188 
5106 Promollonal 29 
5107 Memorial Park Expense 1.269 2.200 
5108 Sireets 8.605 13.200 5.456 14.025 10.482 18.000 18.000 
5109 Chemicals 304 65 20 
5112 legal 1.121 221 36 1.373 225 1.200 1,200 
5115 Contract/Professional Services 52.745 2.640 47.260 47.276 28.221 47.479 48,365 
5119 Sofely Supplies & EQUIpment 135 2.200 59 173 245 175 805 
5121 Telephone - Pager 898 1.056 2.362 1.068 1.189 2.350 2,350 
5122 Training - Conference 1.320 196 85 250 2SO 
5123 Auto/1ronsportallon - Public Works 111 88 IS 151 2 ISO ISO 
5125 Publlcallons - Books 7 88 18 10 10 10 
5126 Dues & Memberships 113 176 58 155 49 100 100 

5127 Ucense 8 10 10 10 
5128 Employee Relations 17 
5130 Rents - leases 416 1.320 691 493 536 710 780 
5131 Records MaIntenance 36 30 46 IS 40 40 
5135 Maintenance - Repair 1.519 3.080 1.944 1.934 6.309 6,300 
5136 Parks Maintenance-Repair 2.200 10 
5138 Office Equipment - P.W. 28 88 336 39 24 130 130 
5139 Equipment 1.285 3.140 137 1.476 284 1.200 1,200 
5141 General UablJlly Insuranc e 870 2.000 3.034 2.347 1.983 3.255 3,255 
5143 Property Insurance 202 449 594 739 375 637 637 
5144 Employee Pracllce Uablilly Insurance 44 158 45 173 374 290 685 

5148 Office Equlpmenl 24 33 

5150 Eleclrlclly 23.952 22.000 24.555 25.000 13.981 25.889 26,666 

5151 Nalural Gas 32 440 42 38 20 122 126 

..... 
N 
1.0 



... 
W 
o 

2016-201 7 STREETS 

EXPENDITURES 
5152 Water 
5154 Garbage 
5162 Medical 
5164 Regulatory Fees 
5165 Property Tax Assessment 
5171 Computer SOftware 
5173 Computer Maintenance - Support 
5t74 Web Design Services 
5175 Community Promollons 
5212 Gas& 011 
5213 Vehicle Repair 
5215 Public Works - Small Tools 
5217 Ucense 
5227 Public Works - Equip. Repair 
5229 Public Works - Equip. Rental 
5410 Interest Expense 
5450 Miscellaneous Expense 
5514 Engineering 
5520 Improvements 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

6/30/14 
Actual 

47 
25 
66 

55 
93 
13 

1.820 
1.410 

750 
7 

683 

1.154 
104 

206.703 

6/30/14 6/30/15 
Budget Actual 

3.341 
53 

133 66 
880 7 
32 

133 
221 151 

9 42 
9 

2,200 4.542 
1.760 1.211 
1.760 531 

880 715 
221 154 

30.800 3.411 
874 

182.100 229.740 

6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 
Budget V-T-O Actual Budget 

3.881 1.446 4.HlO 
64 17 
30 29 30 
90 466 90 

75 48 75 
79 100 165 
18 18 40 

1.508 2.335 4.350 
1.861 1.670 1.800 

781 1.603 780 
10 10 

_71JL _..l.403_ 700.. 

32 
23.000 945 5.004 

264.541 128.608 229.791 

AUOCATION BY FUND 
Gas Tax (HUT A) Fund 
TDAFund 
RSTP Fund 

RESERVES (Gas Tax) 

38% 
39% 
11% 

13% 

100% 

AUOCATION BY POSITION 
Water and Roads SUperintendent 
utility Worker I (2) 
Wastewater Operator I 

1/ 
Proposed 

4,223 

30 
90 

75 
415 

75 

4,350 
1,800 

780 
10 

1,510 

5,004 

197,129 

74,339 
76,002 
22,000 

= 
172,341 
24,788 

197,129 

t5% 
35% 
20% 

/ / 
Requests 



6/30/14 6/30/14 6/30/15 6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 / / / / 
2016-2017 SEWER Actual Budget Actuol Budget V-T-D Actual Budget Proposed Requests 

EXPENDITUIlfS 
5CXXJ Full Time Salories 92.825 115.024 93.261 82.405 63.491 86.013 86.639 
5030 Overtime Solaries 2.103 3.675 2.729 1.099 1.514 1.443 2.086 
5035 Benefit - ICMA City 457 9.590 12.634 9.982 9.522 6.576 9.695 9,625 
5040 Benefit - Health Insurance 30.897 21.770 24.416 25.556 14.120 22.693 24.312 
5042 Benefit - Ufe Insurance 403 350 313 278 128 278 330 
5044 Benefit - DentallVislon Insur 3.896 2.961 3.322 3.383 2.292 3.545 3.963 
5045 Worker Compensation tnsurance 7.255 5.636 13.916 14.981 10.340 15.279 17.876 
5050 FICA 7.414 8.799 7.628 6.560 5.305 6.757 6.787 
5055 Unemployment Insurance 850 1.150 817 857 866 760 849 
5060 Ctothing Allowance 1.170 956 647 770 669 730 930 
5081 Compensated Absences Payable 43 (1.937) 
5101 Office Supplies 696 800 736 500 467 500 500 
5102 Operating Supplies 2.409 1.750 2.549 2.000 1.590 2.000 2,000 
5103 Postage 3.130 100 2.548 1.700 1.685 2.400 2.400 
5104 Printing - Forms 504 200 584 125 103 465 465 
5105 Advertising 663 200 700 35 200 200 
5106 Promotionol 91 9 
5107 Memorial Pork Expense (135) 
5108 Streets 4 1.170 24 1.000 1.000 1.000 
5109 Chemicals 30.504 22.719 23.769 29.000 13.428 30.000 30.000 
5112 Legal 2.495 500 1.348 500 500 500 

5115 Contract/Professional Services 2.983 10.000 3.360 5.000 6.664 2.000 3.500 
5119 Sofety Supplies & Equipment 691 1.000 58 1.000 166 1.000 1.400 
5120 Cell Phones 4.152 4.500 1.577 3.500 1.224 
5121 Telephone - Pager 978 633 2.440 2,440 

5122 Training - Conference 90 1.350 1.639 1.350 45 1.350 1.350 
5123 Auto/Transportatlon - Public Works 582 250 1.090 500 500 500 
5125 Publications - Baoks 162 50 53 200 200 200 

5126 Dues & Memberships 965 800 301 1.000 279 1.000 1.000 
5127 Ucense 207 710 100 260 1,000 
5128 Employee Relations 50 50 50 SO 
5130 Rents - Leases 1.558 1.300 1.886 1.300 892 1.968 1.968 
5131 Records Maintenance 149 31 150 15 40 40 
5135 Maintenance - Repair 15.528 15.000 15.443 15.000 4.196 20.000 20.000 
5136 Porks Maintenance-Repair (431) 
5138 Office Equipment - P.w. 1.355 1.200 564 1.200 598 800 
5139 Equipment 5.189 3.000 6.407 4.500 2.460 4.500 

5141 General Uabllily Insurance 3.945 8.167 8.827 9.389 5.768 9.329 

5143 Property Insurance 915 1.836 1.728 2.083 1.092 1.827 

5144 Employee Practice Uab Insurance 223 647 132 692 1.089 832 

~ 

W ... 



...... 
W 
IV 

2016-2017 SEWER 

EXPENDITURES 
5148 Office Equipment 
5150 Eleclricily 
5151 Nalural Gas 
5152 Waler 
5153 Sewer 
5154 Garbage 
5162 Medical 
5164 Regulatory Fees 
5165 Proper1y Tax Assessment 
5171 ComputerSoHware 
5173 Computer Maintenance - Suppor1 
5174 Web Design Services 
5212Gas&OIl 
5213 Vehicle Repair 
5215 Public Works - Small Tools 
5217 Ucense 
5225 Public Works - Lab T esllng 
5227 Public Works - Equip. Repair 
5229 Public Works - Equlp. Rental 
5410 Interest Expense 
5430 Fines/Penalties 
5450 Miscellaneous Expense 
5514 Engineering 
5520 Improvements 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

6/30/1' 
Actual 

114 
118.656 

19.918 

105 
276 

12.004 

266 
869 

52 
9.491 
2.700 
5. 11 2 

36 
t2.908 
2.747 

25 

1.005 
416 

422.245 

6/30/1' 6/30/15 
Budget Actual 

55.1XXl 125.877 
7.500 17.078 

21.893 
169 

2.500 
250 40 

12.1XXl 7.863 
35 6.115 

t .1XXl 99 
50 740 

122 
8.200 3.195 
3.000 2.117 
2.646 987 

12.985 12.325 
2.750 6.976 
1.000 (23) 

3.1XXl 

I.IXXl 
I.IXXl 

363.460 436.534 

6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 / / 
Budget V-T-D Actuot Budget Proposed 

108.327 68.144 133.431 133,431 
2O.1XXl 11.244 22.566 23.243 
33.600 44.963 28.500 29.355 

50 
1.1XXl 17 

250 29 250 250 
15.1XXl 7.773 15.1XXl 15.000 

2.242 2.242 
500 2.027 500 500 
500 386 920 1.290 

65 51 75 175 
2.500 2.449 3.002 
3.000 2.125 2.500 
2.646 972 2.300 2.300 

12.500 5.72. 12.500 12.500 
2.750 3.934 2.750 2.750 
I.IXXl I.IXXl 1.000 

2.1XXl 2.1XXl 1.000 
32 

I.IXXl 126 I.IXXl 
1.000 1.1XXl 

435.588 299.977 461.698 

ALLOCATION BY POSITION • 
\A/"" ..................... Co , ........ 1 ..... ,.., ......... ""' .... . 
..................... ' c ... p ..... ' .. 0' ......... " 

Wastewater Superintendent Trainee 
Water and Roods Superintendent 
Utility Worker I (2) 
Wastewater Operator I 

-UlCl'i\\ 
100% 
20% 
10% 
50% 

/ / 
Requesls 



6/30/1. 6/30/1. 6/30/15 6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 I I / / 
2016-2017 WATER Actual Budget Actual Budget Y·T·O Actuol Budget Proposed Requesls 

EXPENDITURES 
5000 Full Time Salaries 75.901 B9.202 37.622 49.586 39.117 65.039 6l,606 
5030 Over1lme Solarles 2.879 2.8SO 2.853 1.612 1.425 3.368 l,5l0 
5035 Benent • ICMA City 457 7.771 9.798 4.763 6.192 3.905 6.945 6,870 
5040 Benefit - Health Insurance 20.404 16.883 10.020 10.376 6.984 14.000 15,052 
5042 Benefit - Ufe Insurance 266 271 188 171 78 202 2ll 
5044 Benefit - DenlollVl~on Insur 2.568 2.296 1.434 1.375 1.237 2.432 2,471 
5045 Worker Compensation Insurance 5.972 4.371 6.572 9.797 6.719 11.951 Il,527 
SOSOFICA 6.529 6.824 3.460 3.793 3.435 5.300 5,136 
5055 Unemployment Insurance 585 892 564 496 524 760 702 
5060 Clolhlng Allowance 894 741 690 461 463 5SO 728 
5OBO Hiring Cosls 190 
S081 Compensaled Absences Payable 29 (1.672) 
5101 Office Supplies 388 500 793 706 300 
5102 Operallng Supplies 3.450 1.500 1.069 4.000 1.575 4.000 
5103 Poslage 1.801 500 2.827 1.800 1.245 1.800 
5104 Printing - Forms 469 500 2.687 200 241 3.600 
5105 Adver1lslng 438 110 4SO 46 4SO 450 
5106 Promollonal 78 
5107 Memorial Park Expense (135) 
5108 Slreets 1.189 1.200 1.539 1.300 2.000 2,000 

5109 Chemicals 11.488 25.000 15.116 23.000 14.254 23.000 2l,000 
5112 Legal 3.730 4.000 12.689 20.000 6.483 10.000 10,000 
5115 Con1racI/Profe~onal Services 8.000 10.433 65.000 409 40.000 40,000 
5119 Sofety Supplies & EQulpmenl 429 1.000 63 505 221 505 905 
5120 Cell Phones 3.144 2.600 831 3,184 619 
5121 Telephone· Poger 1.902 790 3.184 3,184 
5122 Training - Conference 125 2.000 1.664 2.000 2.000 2,000 
5123 AulolTranspor1allon • PubliC Works 352 2SO 862 2SO 2SO 250 
5125 Publications - Books 23 100 51 100 100 
5126 Dues & Memberships 467 1.800 856 1.800 853 1.800 
5127 Ucense 205 700 220 350 
5128 Employee Relallons 60 60 60 60 
5130 Renls • Leases 1.076 1.000 1.810 1.000 890 2.000 2,000 
5131 Records Malnlenance 117 45 20 SO 50 
5135 Malnlenance - Repair 44.708 43.000 17.069 40.000 35.131 53.000 53,000 
5136 Porks Malnlenance·Repalr (431) 
5138 Office EQulpmenl- P.W. 273 1.200 1.775 1.500 606 1.500 
5139 EQulpmenl 4.086 3.000 2.500 4.000 7.091 4.000 
5141 General Uability Insurance 3.211 6.334 8.606 7.642 5.624 9.112 

5143 Property Insurance 745 1.424 1.685 1.695 1.064 1.784 

5144 Employee Practice Uab Insurance 181 502 129 563 1.062 813 
5148 Office EQulpmenl 75 

... 
W 
W 



..... 
Vol 
.p. 

2016-2017 WATER 

EXPENDITURES 
5150 Electricity 
5151 Natural Gas 
5152 Water 
5153 Sewer 
5154 Garbage 
5162 Medical 
5 I 64 Regulatory Fees 
5165 Property Tax Assessment 
5171 Computer Sot1ware 
5173 Computer Maintenance - SUpport 
5174 Web Design Services 
5175 Community Promotions 
5212Gos&OIl 
5213 Vehlcte Repair 
5215 Public Wo,ks - Smoll Tools 
5217 Ucense 
5225 Public Works - Lob Testing 
5227 PubliC Works - Equip. Repair 
5229 Public Works - Equip. Rental 
5410 Interest Expense 
5430 Fines/Penalties 
5450 Miscellaneous Expense 
5514 Engineering 
5520 Improvements 
6000 Fixed Asset - Equipment 

TOTAl EXPENDITURES 

6/30/14 
Actuol 

23.446 
104 

69 
235 

16.234 

176 
955 

42 

5.722 
2.337 
3.186 

24 
2.127 
2.750 

25 

1.168 
339 

264.910 

6/30/14 6/30/15 
Budget Actuol 

---

6O.!XXl 19.733 
2.!XXl 118 

277 
22.297 

100 
400 52 

13.!XXl 7.551 
30 

750 1 
1.!XXl 449 

20 119 
10 

6.!XXl 5.841 
5.500 1.694 
3.!XXl 615 

5.!XXl 3.449 
2.500 727 
1.500 375 

2.!XXl ---
1.!XXl 

7.078 
343.708 224.113 

6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 / / 
Budget V-I-D Actual Budget Proposed 

54.!XXl 11.720 20.147 20,751 
150 58 140 144 

83 380 
43.500 17.451 26.500 

100 22 100 
300 35 300 

5.!XXl 16.500 

450 95 450 450 
1.!XXl 380 500 750 

55 50 80 180 

5.!XXl 3.100 6.!XXl 6,000 
2.200 2.226 2.200 2,200 
2.500 1.175 2.500 2,500 

30 30 30 
3.500 3.642 10.!XXl 10,000 
2.800 632 2.800 2,800 

250 250 

43 
1.500 404 1.500 1,500 

388.993 184.156 366.582 375,712 

ALLOCATtON BY FUND 
Water Fund HX1% 375,712 

ALLOCATtON BY POSITION '1 

Water and Roads SUperintendent 
Utility Worke, t (2) 
Wastewater Operator t 

60% 
35% 
20% 

/ / 
Requests 



6/30/14 6/30/14 6/30/15 6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 / / / / 
2016-2017 BUILDINGS & GROUNDS Actual Budget Actual Budget Y-T-O Actual Budgel P,oposed Requests 

EXPENDITURES 
5000 Full TIme SOIarles 31.367 36.798 17.172 32.518 18,746 
5030 Ove~lme Salaries S02 1.612 137 1.683 1,040 
S035 Benefit- ICMA City 457 2.899 2.687 1.558 3.472 2,025 
5040 Benefit- Heollh Insurance 9.206 6.649 7.822 7.000 4,436 
5042 Benefit- ute Insurance 130 83 66 102 69 
5044 Benefll - Dentoi/Vision Insur 1.369 9()Q 1.458 1.217 728 
5045 Warker Compensation Insurance 5.635 4.693 2.907 5.976 3,986 

5050 FICA 2.551 2.057 1.467 2.651 1,514 
5055 Unemployment Insurance 321 268 257 381 207 
5060 Clothing Allowance 90 286 79 336 214 

510 I Office SUpplies 127 81 108 

5102 Operating SUpplies 281 151 118 365 365 

5103 Postage 20 16 16 

5104 Printing - Forms 60 30 68 68 

5106 Promotional 21 32 32 

5107 Memorial Park Expense S03 1.300 .-J.10L 1,101 

5109 Chemicals 175 16 

5112 Legal 29 
5115 Contract/Professional Services 7 
5119 Sofety SUpplies & Equipment 48 151 79 153 153 

5120 Cell Phones 889 248 1.100 1,100 

5121 Telephone - Pager 67 43 122 122 

5122 Training - Conference 5 
5123 Automobile - Trons~atlon 12 
5125 Publications - Books 15 11 11 
5126 Dues & Memberships 4 6 6 

5130 Rents - Leases 386 214 423 423 

5131 Records Maintenance 4 6 6 

5135 Maintenance - Repair 2.366 476 1.557 1,557 

5136 Parks MaIntenance - Repair 1.416 4.251 2.024 2,024 

5139 Equipment 2SO 800 799 799 
5141 General Uability Insurance 2.483 1.622 2.632 2,632 

5143 Property Insurance 486 307 514 514 
5144 Employee Practice Uability Insurance 37 306 234 455 

51SO Elechlclty 979 628 937 965 

5151 Natural Gas 34 17 42 43 

5152 Water 1.634 1.728 SOl 1,070 
5171 Computer Software 
51 73 Computer Maintenance - SUppof1 138 92 153 10, 

5174 Web Design Services 34 14 21 295 

5212Gos&OU 468 1.500 10 500 5()j 

5215 Public Works - Small Tools 756 1.000 298 184 18. 

..... 
W 
U1 



~ 

W 
0"1 

6/30/14 
2016-2017 BUILDINGS & GROUNDS Actual 

EXPENDITURES 
5227 Public WOIks - Equip. Repair 
5229 Public Works - Equip. Rental 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

6/30/14 6/30/15 
Budget Actual 

----

552 
234 

68.583 

6/30/15 2/24/16 6/30/16 / / 
Budget V-T-D Actual Budget Proposed 

851 258 799 799 
751 500 500 

68.525 37.787 70.136 48,996 

AllOCATION BY FUND ' 
General Fund 20% 9,799 
Streets Funds 10% 4,900 
Wastewater Fund 35% 17,149 
water Fund 35% 17,149 

100% 48,996 

AllOCATION BY POSITION .' 
Water and Roods Superintendent 
Uiliity Worker I (2) 
Wastewater Operator I 

5% 
20% 
10% 

/ / 
Requests 

21.140 



GENERAL FUND 
Parking Lot (Corry over 15/16) 

Belleview/Ogle (corry-over 15/16) 

Police Vehicles 

Streets Subsidy 

Council Chambers 

GEN FUND CAP PROJ 

WATER 
Wells projec t Prop 84 funding 

Wells project USDA ECWAG 

Wells project City match 

Ditch Witch Vactor Tra'ier 

Spot repa'rs 

Filter Recoating (Contractor) 

Old Ranch Road Repairs 

WATER FUND CAP PROJ 

SEWER 
Inflow and Infiltration (corry over) 

lift Station Pumps (2) 

Ditch Witch Vactor Trailer 

Sewerline Repairs 

Dixie and Second Streets 
Dixie and Third Streets 

SEWER CAP PROJ 

STREETS 
Ditch Witch Vactar Troller 

STREETS CAPITAL PROJECTS 

CDBGFUND 
CDBG ADA Entrance/Bathrooms 

CDBG CAP PROJ 

FY 2016-2017 
PROPOSED CAPITAL PROJECTS 

':0;;;\ 
~ 

DESCRIPTION 
6,132 Carried over from 2015/16 capitol projects 

45,000 Grant match for Belleview/Ogle street repairs 

40,000 City's matching funds for 2 Police Vehicles (USDA) 

80,000 SubSldy for Streets Malnt,and Repairs (see list) 

" , , " '=,""""""I~,500~=Floor electrical oullet 

172,632 

. .. . . . . 

.. . .. .. 

.... ... 

. . . .... 
, . . . . . . 
. ... . . . 
. . . .... 

591,794 Grant funding through PROP 84 

373,200 Grant funding through USDA ECWAG 

133,529 City match for the Metro, Well Project 

15,000 1/3 cost each between Water/Sewer/Streets 
20,000 Set aside funds for top priority water system repairs 
8,000 Recoatlng proJect 

35,000 Paid for out of Dinsmore Zone Revenues 

1,176,523 

15,000 Corry over from 2015/16 

30,000 Pumps are nearing the end of their useful lives 

15,000 1/3 cost each between Water/Sewer/Streets 

20,000 Top priority sewer line maintenance 

" " " '=~.,,;;.20~,000~=Top priority sewer line maintenance 

100,000 

" " " ,===;:===15~,000~_1/3 cost each between Water/Sewer/Streets 

15,000 

160,000 CDBG program Income upgrades 

160,000 

PROPOSED CAPITAL PROJECTS FY 2016-2017 1,624,155 

137 



MEMORANDUM 

THROUGH: KYLE J{J\!OPP, CITY i\L \ l'1.\GER 

/7~ 
FROM: BROOKE \X'OODCOX, FIl'1.-\NCE DJRECTOI~ 

GR.-\I 1.\1\[ HILl~ CHIEF OF POLlCE (~ 

SUBJECT: SUPPLEI\IENT.\RY INFORMATION 

P. \RT-TnIE 1\[10. \SURE Z POSITION 

DATE: JUN E 7, 2016 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

At the beginning of fiscal year 2015/16 the City was awarded $35,569 in Measure Z 
funds to provide clerical support in the Police Department. Staff determined that in 
order to save the City money Finance Department staff could be utilized to fill the 
position 24 hours per week. On November 3, 2015 the Finance Director reported to 
Council that staff would be re-evaluating staffing and may look Into hiring a part-time 
person In the Police Department. As the fiscal year further progressed it became 
apparent that a part-time employee outside of current staff would better fill the 
objectives set forth In the City's request for Measure Z funds. 

Following is a list of the Issues that surfaced: 

• There wasn't any continuity in scheduled hours in the Police Department. 
Finance Department staff have job tasks that are done during specific 
tlmeframes (i.e. utility billing and payroll) which meant that regularly scheduled 
assistance In the Police Department couldn't be maintained. This also meant 
that repetitive tasks with specific time frames within the pOlice department could 
not be assigned to finance staff because of schedule changes, which In many 
ways defeated the purpose of having additional help at the police department. 

• In addition to providing a better overall seNice provided by the pOlice 
department ,the Measure Z funding was also intended to be used to enhance 
code enforcement efforts. Because code enforcement was a priority. one day 
per week was dedicated to code enforcement only, limiting other police 
department duties that could have been accomplished. Currently, by utilizing a 
part time employee four days a week, code enforcement projects can be 
distributed throughout the work week, making the process more efficient. 

• The Finance Department workflow was continually being interrupted leading to 
less efficient work processes and procedures In the Finance Department; in 

Measure Z Funded Records Technician 
FY 2016·2017 

138 



addition, Finance Department staff was under pressure with the rushed time 
schedules which increased chances for error In their work, 

• For 2016/17 the Measure Z proposal. which has not been approved as of June 3, 
2016, is based on the hiring of a part-time employee; therefore the requested 
amount is less than the previous year because the position will not be funded to 
Include benefits. If Finance Department staff is used (which mayor may not be 
allowed under the current Measure Z application) in 2016/17 the Police 
Department will only have 22 hours per week of assistance; whereas a part-time 
employee will allow for 28 hours each week, as well as Includes a small amount 
for Indirect costs related to that position. 

• One of the most significant criticisms of the police department is citizens 
reporting they have a difficult time speaking with a person at the department. 
Officers are in the field a majority of the time and the front door to the police 
department is often locked. While there have been ways provided for citizens ta 
contact officers who are in the field, many citizens find It an inconvenience. 
While utilizing finance staff was certainly better than not having anyone at the 
front counter, we were not able to maintain consistency due to scheduling 
conflicts. and therefore not addressing Issues brought up by the public 
concerning the police department's availability. 

• It was determined that hiring a part-time employee to fill the position would 
provide additional hours of assistance in the police department. continuity of 
seNice, and free up Finance Department personnel to perform finance duties. 

In summary, having a consistent. part time employee In the police department will 
ultimately provide a better level of seNice to the public, both for the Police 
Department as well as the Finance Department. In addition, the police department 
will be able to focus additional efforts on Code Enforcement which has been 
Identified as a council priority and address community complaints of availability at 
our front counter. Likewise, availability and continuity of staff at City Hall will be more 
consistent In providing enhanced seNice to the community. 

Measure Z Funded Records Technician 
FY2016·2017 

139 



NOVEMBER 3, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 17 

Mayor Wilson explained the City Clerk has the process outlined for tabulating the protest votes 
and staff is set up to deal with any duplicate or invalid votes. 

Council member Games assured the public that any vote that comes in will not be ignored if it is 
deemed valid. 

City Manager Knopp said the message staff has received from the Council is very clear and will 
be followed. 

Mcllissa Marks said she owns several properties and supports the rate increase and asked if she 
can send in "yes" votes for those parcels since renters move on. She was told that only "No" 
protest votes count. 

Finance Director Woodcox provided a report of recent activities in the linance department and 
said she was re-evaluating staffing in her department and said having finance staff assist in the 
police department 3 days/week has become burdensome. As such, the) are exploring the idea of 
hiring a part-time person in the police department. 

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

( 

I 

Council member Johnson reported that he will be attending a Last Chance Grade Stakeholders 
meeting in Crescent City the following day and said the League of California Cities is ( 
sponsoring a workshop on Cannabis legislation on November 16,2015 at the Warfinger Building 
in Eureka and suggested no more than two Council members attend to avoid potential violation 
of the BrO\m Act. 

Mayor Wilson reported on his attendance at Redwood Region Economic Development 
Commission (RREDC) and said it was his tum to speak on a subject and he talked about the 
City's proposed rate increase. He said the board was extremely surprised to hear what the MHI 
is being reported for Rio Dell. 

ADJOURNMENT 

~otion was made by JohnsonlMarks to adjourn the meeting at 8:55 p.m. to,the November 17, 
2015 regular meeting. Motion carried 5-0. .; / / 7 

, . / --- /' / .,,/' 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 
Attest: 

I . 1 /:/ ,/ 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

140 



FEBRUARY 16, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 4 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson asked ifthe Chamber would be hiring someone to complete the tasks 
identified in the proposed scope of services. 

Nick Angeloff, Rio Dell-Scotia Chamber of Commerce President commented that for $2,000 they 
obviously would not be able to hire additional staff and said they currently have a staff person 
working one day a week who would likely be the person updating the website calendar. He 
indicated that a majority of the work would be done by Chamber volunteers. He added that he 
regularly attends economic development meetings and is already promoting Rio Dell; this will 
help to continue those efforts and result in a collaborative effort in the end. 

Councilmember Johnson questioned the billing/payment of the $2,000; assuming payment of 
$400.00 over the next five (5) months to the Chamber for their services. 

Nick Angeloff suggested a monthly or even a quarterly billing. 

City Manager Knopp commented that the agreement will expand over six (6) months so there 
will likely be six equal monthly payments. 

Motion was made by Johnson/Marks to approve the scope of services for the Chamber of 
Commerce and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement. Motion carried 4-0. 

Direction on Application for Measure Z Funding 
City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and said the City was successful last year in 
securing $35,569 in Measure Z grant funding for clerical support in the Police Department 
which has been a tremendous benefit to the City. He said the support, provided through the 
Finance Department, not only provided clerical support to the Police Department, it also 
focused on code enforcement, resulting in a more consistent enforcement of complaints 
received by the City. 

He said the deadline for submittal of applications for FY 2016-2017 Measure Z funding is 
Fe bruary 19, 2016. This year, staff is propOSing submission of two (2) funding requests. The 
first request is the extension of the current part-time clerical position in the police department 
fo r an estimated amount of $33,648.96; the second request is to fund a full-time Community 
Services Officer (CSO) position with full benefits in the amount of $73,324.92. He said the 
position will support police services and focus on code enforcement and animal control which 
will allow officers to spend more time in the field. The total request for the two proposals is 
$106,973.88. 

Staff commented that utilizing finance department staff in the police department is not a long 
term viable so lution so that arrangement will be terminating and the City is currently recruiting 
to fill that part-time position. 

141 



FEBRUARY 16, 2016 MINUTES 
Page 5 

City Manager Knopp pointed out that code enforcement is a direct tie to economic 
development and in order to be successful in promoting economic development, Rio Dell has to 
be an inviting place to want to live and/or invest in. As such, a Community Services Officer is a 
truciallink in making that happen. 

Other ideas included funding for vehicles or equipment or funds to clean up the illegal dumping 
site on Monument Road . 

Councilmember Thompson questioned the idea of funds for the illegal dumping and said 
Humboldt Waste Management Authority (HWMA) already paid $35,000 to clean up the illegal 
dumping on Monument Road. 

Regarding the Community Services Officer, he asked what the chances are of filling the position 
knowing that there is the possibility that the position may only be funded for one (1) year. 

City Manager Knopp noted that there is that risk and any potential candidate will need to be 
informed of that. He commented that he believes one of the local jurisdictions have downsized 
their CSO staff so there is the possibility of filling the position with a trained CSO. 

Mayor Pro Tem Johnson said he liked the application as proposed and said he would think the 
$35,000 would get approved because of the success with this year's program. 

Mayor Wilson asked how a eso compares to a regular sworn officer. 

Chief Hill explained the pay scale for a Community Services Officer is substantially less than a 
sworn police officer as well as the duties and responsibilities. He said they basically perform 
general duties in a non-sworn capacity of Police Department operations including community 
policing, records, front-desk and investigations. 

Motion was made by Johnson/Thompson to approve staff's recommendation and authorize the 
City Manager to submit the application for Measure Z funding to the Humboldt County Citizens' 
Advisory Committee. Motion carried 4-0. 

Approval of Proposed Website Redesign and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Services 
Agreement with Precision Intermedia for Development and Hosting of Proposed Website 
City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and said staff has been reviewing options for 
updating the City's website for several months and has come up with a Service Agreement with 
Precision Intermedia in Fortuna. He reviewed the proposal and said for an estimated cost 
between $2,375 and $3,135, it will include design, production, training and content migration 
from the existing website. 

142 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FINANCIAL CHARTS AND SUMMARY INFORMATION 

FUND BALANCE (Governmentol Funds) AND NET POSITION (Enterprise Funds) 

The difference between ossets minus lIobllities In occounting terms Is called -fund balance" for 
governmental funds (general fund, special revenue), and 'net posifton" for enterprise funds (water. sewer), 
Fund balance and net posifton refers to the residual amount leftover In each fund, which Is further broken 
down Into five different classifications as required by generally accepted accounhng prinCiples (GAAP) , 
These classifications are nan-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unass'gned The 
classifications are reported In the financial statements In the order from the most constrained to the least 
constrained. 

Non-spendable: amounts that are not In spendable form such as prepoid amounts. long-term 
receivables, tangible assets of property, plant and equipment, legally restricted amounts such as the 
prinCiple of an endowment, and contractually constrained amounts 

Restricted: amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, 
and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation 

Committed: Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using Its highest level of 
decision-making authOrity: to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other 
purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the 
constraint 

Assigned: amounts a government Intends to use for a speCific purpose: Intent can be expressed by the 
governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority. 

Unassigned: amounts that are available for any purpose: these amounts are reported only In the 
general fund. 

The objecHve of classifying fund balances In the governmental funds ollows userS to distinguish whether or 
not constraints have been placed on the use of resources within each fund Cash and amounts that can 
be easily turned Into cash (short-term assets) can fall under anyone of the classifications depending on 
constraint and/or fund type. Fixed assets such as property, plant. and eqUipment are classified as non
spendable: unless there Is Intent to sell an asset and use the proceeds for a specific purpose then an entity 
may change the classification 

The term reserves Is otlen used to describe cash amounts available Within a fund. This differs from 
unassigned fund balance and unrestricted net position In that reserves refer only to cash whereas 
unassigned fund balance and unrestricted net poslHan refer to cash and other Items In the financial 
statements that can be easily converted Into cash , 

As of April 30, 2016 City-wide reserves (total cash) totaled $3,695,034 . This amaunt Is shown on the bolance 
sheet as accounts 1000 thru 1099 (Aprll3Q, 2016 balance sheet attached). This amount can be broken 
down Into specific amounts that are tied to Individual funds Individual fund Information Is not given here 
since the preceding paragraphs are for informational purposes only, The Information given here Is for the 
purpose of the reader to better understand the basic concepts of governmental financial accounting. 

THE CITY'S FINANCIAl/NFOfIMAlION IS AUDITED By 
R J. Ricciordt Inc . CerMed Pubic Accountants 

MIchael O 'Connor CPA 
lCXXJ Fourth Street Suite 400 
Son Ro(oeI. Colifamio 94ro1 

(415)457-1215 

143 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FINANCIAL CHARTS AND SUMMARY INFORMATION 

BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING VERSUS GAAP 

The annual audit Is conducted In accordance with generally accepted accounfing principles (GAAP) and 
Government Auditing Standards (GAS) In comporlson. regulations that govern budgetary accounting 
(e.g .. laws or ordinances of the state. county. city or some other Jurisdiction) differ from GAAP. For example 
the budgetary basis of accounting does not require depreclafion expense be recorded In the budget. but 
GAAP requires that depreclafion be recognized In the audited financial statements. Fiscal yeor 2014/15 
audited financial statements showed the City·s depreciation expense of 5716.000. a significant Increase In 
expenditures when comparlng expenditures In the budget versus expenditures In the audit. This amount has 
a direct Impact on the fund balance amount reported In the audit versus the fund balance amount 
estimated In the budget. 

Budget accounting Is concerned with revenues and expenditures that will be transacted within the fiscal 
year. whereas GAAP Is concerned with recording revenues and expenditures outside of the fiscal yeor 
window. Accrued payroll Is one example of recording expenditures for GAAP purposes. For budgetary 
purposes payroll Is budgeted strictly based on the salary schedule adopted with the budget. 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS VERSUS ECONOMIC FOCUS OF ACCOUNTING 

Governmental funds use the measurement focus of accounfing. which Is based on current financial 
resources. or current resources available to meet current expenditures For accounting and budgetary 
purposes the measurement focus does not Include recording depreciable assets because It is not required: 
however for GAAP purposes depreciation Is noted In the financial statements. 

Proprietary funds of water and sewer use the economic focus. which Includes all of the economic 
resources available within the fund. From this approach. for example. a utility fund Is able to record 
receivables as revenue deSpite that cosh payments will not be received unfll a later dote. Still. receivables 
ore Included In the total unrestricted net posiflon because they can be easily converted to cash. In 
addition. the economic focus records depreciable assets In order to allow for lorger expenses to be 
expensed over time. This approach matches revenues with expendItures In a more equitable manner since 
the useful life of an asset can extend five or more yeors and contributes to revenues earned during that 
time period. Depreciation Is part of the expenditure amount that closes Into net position. thereby reducing 
at year-end the unrestricted net posifion. 

rHE ClrY S FINANCIAllNFORMAnON IS AUOITED BY 
R.J mcclardL Inc .. Certified Public Accountants 

Micf1ae1 O'Connor_ CPA 
1(XX) Fourth Street Sulfe 400 
Son /?ofOei Colrfomio 9490' 

(415)457· 1215 

144 



THE GENERAl FUND 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FINANCIAL CHARTS AND SUMMARY INFORMATION 

The general fund Is the Clly's only fund that Is utilized as a discretionary source to enact prlorily's set by 
Council as determined by the needs of the communlly. such as low enforcement. At the end of fiscal year 
2014/15 Ria Deli's general fund had an audited ending fund balance of SI.007.86\. This amount Is made up 
of S913.255 in unassigned fund balance (cash) and S94.6061n non-spendable fund balance (prepaid 
amounts). The following chart shows the general fund's unassigned fund balance as shown In the Cily's 
audited financial statements beginning In FY 2007/08 through 2014/15. 

1,400.000 

1.200,000 

1,000,000 

BOO,OOO 

600.000 

400.000 

200.000 

General Fund 
Year-end Unassigned Fund Balance 

Audited Financial Statements 

FV2007/08 FV 2008/09 FV 2009/10 FV2010/1l FV2011/12 FV 2012/13 FV 2013/14 FV 2014115 

- fUND 9IU.ANCE S56.20~ 586,411 4SS.~S l,OS9,013 1.159,676 1.230,966 1,098.041 1,007,861 

The general fund information was token from the City·s Annual Financial Reports which are prepored each yeor by the 
City·s Independent Auditor. Information for the cUffent fiscal year (20 15/ 16) will be presented at a later date when all 
accounting work for the year has been completed along with the audited financial statements. 

WASTEWATER FUNDS 

The Cily's wastewater treatment plant was completed In October of 2013 and a new rate struc ture was 
Implemented In August 2014 At June 30. 2015 the wastewater fund 's total net position was SIO.457.963; 
however the unrestricted amount was SI.712.009. The addrHanal amount ($8.745.954) Is mainly tied up In 
capitol assets and classified as non-spendable Depreciation expense for FY 2014/15 was $533,502 This 
amount Is not recorded In the budget. but for GAAF reporting the amount Is reported In the Clly's audited 
financial statements and decreases the wastewater fund 's net position 

At the end of each fiscal year revenues less expenditures. including depreciation. close Into the fund 's net 
position, which results in either on Increase or decrease In net position. If revenues exceed expenditures this 
amount is added to the prior year 's net position amount; If expenditures exceed revenues then this amount Is 
subtracted from the prior year's net position. 

Fiscal year 2014/15 audited financial statements show that the wastewater funds hod a dec rease In net 
position of $94.697. Total revenues were $1.250.762 (services $679.072. connectlan and late fees $37.677. 
capital S 180. 188. debt service $348.356. miscellaneous S5.469); total expenditures were S 1.345.459 

THE CITY 5 FINANCIAL INFORMA nON IS AUDITED BY 
f< J RicCJordl, Inc .. Certified Public Accountants 

MichaeIO'Connor, CPA 
IOCXJ Fourth Street SUite 400 

San Rafael. California 9490 I 
(415)457-1215 

145 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FINANCIAL CHARTS AND SUMMARY INFORMATION 

(operating $633.178. depreciation $533.502. Interest expense $178.779). The first debt service payment 
wasn·t due until October 31. 2015. therefore doesn·t show as on expense In 2014/15 since debt service Is 
recorded when pold. 

2,OOO.OOD 

1.500.000 

1.000.000 

500.000 

(5OD,ODO) 

(1.000.000) 

__ FUND BALANCE 

Wastewater Funds Audited Financial Statment 
Year-end Unrestricted Net Position 

FY 2007/08 FV2008/1B FY 2009/10 FV2010/1l FV2011/12 FV2012/13 FY 2013/14 FV2014/15 

203,910 138.649 222.030 (508.821) 1.256.083 946.037 1.478.636 1,712.009 

The wastewater fund information was token from the City·s Annual Financial Reports which are prepored eoch yeor by 
the City·s Independent Auditor. Information for the current fiscal year (20 15/ 16) will be presented at a later date when 011 
accounting work for the yeor has been completed along wilh the audited financial statements. 

WATER FUNDS 

The City's water system shows a net position at June 30.2015 of S6.958.355. Of this amount unrestricted net 
poslffon was $415.900. Overall net position Increased by S123.335In the water funds during FY 2014/15 
Revenues totaled $894.897 (operating S527.364. debt service $172.949. wells grant reimbursement $192.206. 
miscellaneous $2.378; and net transfers/capitol contribuffon of $85.066). The water operations capitol 
contribution was on approved budget amendment to transfer S83.137 from water capitol to cover 
estimated year-end operational costs. This amendment was made prior to billing for reimbursement of Prop 
84 expenses (Metropolitan Wells). Expenditures In the water funds totaled $856.628 (operating S651 .248. 
depreciation $205.344) 

The chart that follows for the water funds shows that unrestr cted net position hod gone down from 
$259.719 In 2009110 to $245.878 In 2013114. Iflhe Metropolitan well project hadn·t been approved and Prop 
84 funding hadn·t reimbursed the City for $192.206 In 2014/15 the fund balance would have further gone 
down to $223.694 (unrestJicted net position of $415.900 less reimbursement of Prop 84 funds $192.206) 

Prior to the Prop 84 and the water rate Increase adopted on December 1. 2015 the downward trend In 
unrestricted net poslfton In the water funds was continuing despite that public works was re-directing work 
to other departments In order to sove on spending. Exacerbating the lock of availoble reserves In the water 
funds water revenues were also declining due to the drought condiffons and city-wide water conservation 
efforts As the chart shows the unrestricted net poslffon was at risk of loSing Its holding place of on overage 
of $238.000 (FY 2009/10-2013/14). And. as the chart definiffvely shows funds for expenditures other than 

THE CITY'S FINANCIAL INFORMAnON IS AUDITED BY 
R J Ricciardi. Inc. Cef1ifled Public AccountOll/s 

Michael 0 COMOr. CPA 
lCXXJ Fourth Street Suite 400 

San RafaeL Ca/i(OfMIQ 9490 I 
(415) 457-1215 

146 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FINANCIAL CHARTS AND SUMMARY INFORMATION 

minimal operations and bare minimum maintenance and repairs were locking. As a matter of fact the 
water funds were depleted to the point that they were no longer In compliance with the City's minimum 
fund balance policy that requires unrestricted net posifton set-aside amounts of 30% of annual 
expenditures. With annual expenditures of operations ($676,000), minimum capitol repairs and 
maintenance ($64,000), and debt service ($136,000) the total minimum fund balance per the City's policy 
was $262,000. The water funds had less than three months of reserves necessary to meet normal costs for 
the water system. If a major repair hOd been necessory the water funds would not hOve been financially 
able to have fixed the problem If It were greater than the reserves on hand, as well as continued to have 
met normal water system expenditures. 

Although the preceding paragraph Is projective In nature, the audited financial statement Information 
shown below poses problems within the water funds and served to start the process towards a water rate 
Increase. Generally where revenues lack there are two options available: The first Is to c ut expenditures, 
and the second Is to Increase revenue. The former was already being done, while the latter was being 
brought to the forefront at City Hall through the months of May 2015 to December 201 5 In the form of a 
water rate Increase that passed by a small margin and was implemented In January 2016. With the 
adopted water rate Increase the unrestricted net pasitian Is antiCipated to Increase. This will allow for 
needed repairs and maintenance, and ultimately new equipment to replace the aging water system 
infrastructure. 

450,000 

400,000 

350,000 

300.000 

250,000 

200,000 

150,000 

100,000 

so,ooo 

Water Funds Audited Financial Statement 
Year-end Unrestricted Net Position 

fV 2001/08 fV 2oaJ/09 FV 2009/10 fY 2010/11 FY 1011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15 

- FUND BALANCE 363.114 170,951 259,719 210.605 233,909 240,814 246.818 415.900 

The water fund information lYO' taken from the City', Annual Financial Reparts which are prepared each year by tf1e 
City's Independent Auditor. Information for the current fiscal year (2OIS/16) will be presented ata later date when all 
accounting work for tf1e year has been completed along wlrh Ihe audi/ed financial slalements. 

rns repolf.s'Of Informational purposes and questions may be directed to stoff or Mr Michael O'Connor ot the phone numos, below Staff 
may neea to further consulr Mr 0 'Connor In order to answer any specific questIons regarding the Audited Financlol Statements. 

THE CITY 'S FrNANCIAL INFORMAnON IS AUDITED BY 
R J Riccardi Inc , Certified Public Accountants 

MIChael O'Connor, CPA 
1000 Fourth Street. Suite 400 
Son RafaeL CoIifomlO 94901 

(415)457-1215 

147 



Run: 6/0-'/2016 al /0: 16 AM 

Assets 
/011 Cash - General Checking 
1020 Cash - Petty Cash 
1030 Cash - Change Drawer 
1031 Cash - Change Drawer 2 
/032 Cash - Change Drawer 3 

1033 Cash - Change Drawer 4 

1050 Cash - Payroll Checking 
1060 Cash - Undeposiled Funds 
1075 Cash - US Bank CDBG Program Income 
1080 Inveslmenl - LAIF Savings 
1140 Prepaid 
1300 Due From Olher Funds 
1305 Inlerfund Loan Receivahle 
1320 Noles Receivable 
1400 AcclS Receivable 
1415 Sewer assessmenl Receivable 
1420 AcclS Receivable - Ulilily Bill. Disl 
1421 Sewer Lien Receivable 
1423 Aceounls Receivable CDBG 
1425 AcCIS Receivable - Planning 
1430 Claims on Cash 
1460 Granls Recei vahle 
1520 Pre Paid Worker Comp Insurance 
1530 Prepaid Insurance 
1535 Prepaid Dependenl Coverage 
1700 Machinery & Equipmenl, 
1701 Building and ImprovemenlS 
1702 Land and ImprovemenlS 
1703 Infraslruclure 
1705 Vehicles 
1708 Conslruclion in Progress 
1709 SlreelS 
1710 Accum Ocpr - Mach & Equip 
1740 Aceum Depr - Vehicles 
1750 Accum Depr - Bldg & Imprv 
1760 Accum Depr - InfraSiruclure 
1761 Accum Depr - Sireeis & Roads 

Total Assets 

Liabililies and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

20 I 0 Aeeounls Payable 
20 II Due 10 olher funds 
20 12 Sales Ta. Payahle 
2100 Accrued EE Dues Payable 
2120 Accrued Wages 
2222 Loan PayabIc·SWRCB WWTP Projeel 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
Comparative Balance Sheet 

As of April 3D, 2016 

This Year Lasl Year 

3 .533.9~5.61 2.789.232.87 
150.00 150.00 
250.00 250 .00 
250.00 250.00 
250.00 250.00 

250.00 250.00 

5.000.00 5.000.00 
587. 14 0.00 

1~9.547.95 172.706.24 
4,803.35 4,786. 13 

18.403.92 18.735.41 
23,174.11 0.00 

0.00 65.400.00 
1.244,570.76 1,255,463.36 

6,936.00 6.936.00 
85.000.00 110.000.00 

214.336.22 191.900.89 
10,899.84 0.00 
60.929.25 8,468.25 
(3,943.86) 279.39 

40.80 (6.39) 
9.605.93 103.499.02 

15.180.84 13.691.18 
13,010.40 12.773.10 

0.00 (0.06) 
1.473,429.00 1.466,351.00 

256.860.00 256.860.00 
1.135,804.00 1.135.804.00 

27.488,264.95 27.488.264.95 
256.195.35 256.195.35 
131.052.00 869,510.00 

1,80 1.888.00 1.053,442.00 
( 1.439,076.00) (1,430,407.00) 

(189,415.00) (168,272.00) 
( 166,635.00) (147.132.00) 

(2.341.827.00) ( 1.578,498.00) 
e 199.436.00) (163.398.00) 

33,600,282.56 33,798,735.69 

54.076.24 36.848.42 
23.174.11 0.00 

534.01 415.49 
24.00 28.00 

52.022.33 0.00 
6.282.845.30 6,444.0 I 0.46 

Change 

744.712.74 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
587.14 

(23.158.29) 
17.22 

(331,49) 
23,174.11 

(65.400.00) 
( /0,892.60) 

0.00 
(25,000.00) 
22.435.33 
10.899.84 
52,461.00 
(4.223.25) 

47.19 
(93,893.1l9) 

1.489.66 
237.30 

0.06 
7,078.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

(738,458.00) 
748,446.00 

(8,669.1)0) 
(21.143.00) 
( 19,503.1)0) 

(763.329.1){) 
(36.038.00) 

(198,453.13) 

17,227.82 
23.174.11 

118.52 
(4.00) 

52,022.33 
(161.165.16) 

148 



Run: 61031201601 10: 16 AM 

2233 Loan Payable 
2305 Interfund Loan Payable 
2310 Bond - Se"er Assessment 
2410 Deposit - Utility Customers 
2415 Customer Credits· U/B 
2600 Compensated absenses payable 
2700 Deferred Revenue 

Tolal Liabililies 

Fund Balance 

3005 Fund Balance · Restricted 
30 I 0 Fund Balance 
3020 Investment in Fixed Assets 
3110 Retained Earnings 
3210 Prior Period Adjustment 
3500 Residual Equity Transfer 

Change in Fund Balance 

Tolal Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
Comparative Balance Sheet 

As of April 30, 2016 

This Year Last Year 
1.836,000.00 1.972.000.00 

0.00 65,400.00 
85.000.00 110,000.00 
66,501.17 59,688.88 

2,771.21 3,617.39 
15,967.00 25,447.30 

1.244.570.76 1,255.46D6 

9,663,486.13 9,972,919,30 

302,822.00 302,822.00 
18,606,559.22 18.717,052.33 
4,417,685.35 4,527,521.35 

0.00 0 .00 
106.442.02 106.442.02 

0.00 0.00 
503,287.84 171,978.69 

23,936,796.43 23,825,816.39 

33,600,282.56 33.798,735.69 

Change 
( 136,000.00) 

(65,400.00) 
(25,000.00) 

6,812.29 
(846.18) 

(9,480.30) 
( 10,892.60) 

(309,433.17) 

0.00 
( I 10,493.11) 
(109,836.00) 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

DU09.15 

110,980.04 

( 198,453.13) 

149 



PROPOSED BUDGET 
City of Rio Dell 
FY 2016-2017 

BUDGET SUMMARY BY DEPARTMENT BY FUND 

IIlEVENUES II CITY OPE~ATIONS II PUSlIC W~KS OPE~ATIONS IIGRANTOPE~ATIONsll OTHE~ 
Tolol 8uIIc:ing5 PymI5 &. 

I IlESE~VES 
ChOngeln Esl End Min30% Est Beg 

fun<! Protected AdmIn &MIdng CUy General & Sewer Sllaels Wolef Solid Copllol Debl Confi'l· Total ReseNe Find ReseIve 
FUND NAME BoIonce Revenue Co Dept Council City Mgf Anonce Gov'I PlClf'IAng PoUce GtOU'lCb Fund Funds Dept. Reeye e Woste Protects SeMce gency Expendil lronslEifs Balance 80klnce BoIonce 

ADM AdrTWl Fund 6,591 2,100 1,250 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,250 1,550 a,'" 375 

SUI Bukting Fund 1'.698 32,901 - 57,068 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 57,468 15,8691 (18,6981 - 17.2.0 
-

CDSG CDSG Fund - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
CDSG CDSG ~~LF Fund 2114,605 12,000 - - - - - 6.642 - - - - - - - - 160.000 - - 166,642 (154,6421 .',963 -

-

I GF General Fund 1,012,190 879.765 . .. .. -, -5 .... 59.126 ._,._- 74.017 ,-,--- 23.5017 --, 67.all 552.371 9,799 't'· • 172.632 .. _,- 12.868 ._,--- 977,729 I 10,0551 (108.019) 9114.171 ,_ ..... 293.319 ---1--' 

MZ MeosureZ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - --
IlEC Recycling Fund 12,455 5,000 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 5,000 - 5,000 - 12,065 ~ 

RES Parks Fund 12, III - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 12,111 -- ~ 

J RES Realignment Gront Fund 14,115 5,500 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 10,000 lD,ooo - (4,500) 9,615 -
~ES SLESF Fund (15,028) 100,000 - - - - - - - .9,158 - - - - - - - - 89.158 (4,186) 15,02a - --
IlES Vehicle Abatement Fund 2,605 . · - · · - · - · - · · · · · - - - - · 2,605 · 
~ES Water· Prop 84 NCIRWMP - 591,79. - - - - · - - - - - · · · · 591 .79. - 591 ,19' · . · 
IlES Wate< -USDA ECWAG . 373,200 · - - · - · - - · - · · · · 373,200 · 373,200 · . · I 

sew Sewer Awnt District Fund ',"6 32.000 - · · · · - · · · · · · · 32.000 · 32,000 · 4,416 · 
SEW sewer Capitol Fund 166,621 99,388 - · · · · - · · · · · · · · 100.000 - · 100.000 (612) 166.009 30,000 

SEW Sewer Debt Service Fund 402,934 310,000 - - · · - - · · · · - - - · 310,000 · 310,000 · 402.934 93,000 

SEW Sewer Restricted Reserve 302,822 . - · · · · - - · · · · · · - · - · · · 302,822 --
SEW Sewer Operations Fund 319,676 715,432 - · 3,806 103,470 129,653 - · · 17.149 474,513 - - - · · · · 728,701 56.731 376,407 211,610 

SO Solid Waste Fund 44,726 9,000 · · · · · - - · · · · · - 10,973 - · · 10,973 • (1 ,973) .... 753 -
SP Spay & Neuter Fund 2.868 - · · - - - - - · · · - - - - - - 2,868 2,868 (2.868) - --
ST Gas Tax Fund (!lUTA) 205,356 74,339 - · 549 14,711 la,522 - · · 2,450 - 99,127 - - · 15,000 · · 150,430 (76,091) 129,265 45,129 --
ST IDA Fund 26,551 111,600 · · 549 14,781 11,522 - · · 2.450 - 27,637 - - - - 48,365 · 112,3114 (7114) 25,847 33,691 

ST RSTP Funds . 22,000 · · · - - · · · · - 22,000 - · · · · · 22,000 - - · 
WAT Water Capital Fund 117.763 194,051 · · · - - · · · - - - - · - 211.529 · · 211,529 (17,479) 100.285 63,459 

- - --
WAT Water Metra We .. Fund 5,296 11.697 · · · - - · · · - - · - · - - · · · 11 .697 16,993 ........; 

WAT Woter Dinsmore Zone 7,278 17,466 · · - - - · · - - - · - · - - · · - 17,.c66 24,744 · -- ----
WAT wate< Reslricled Reserve 136,000 - · · - - - · · · - · · · - - - · · · · 136,000 · 
WAT Weter Debt Service Fund 61,000 152.371 

WAT Wate< Operations Fund eo,ooo 697,745 

136,000 136,000 r 16,371 84,371 40,800 

629,890 67,855 147,855 188,967 3,806 103,470 129,653 17.149 375,772 

TOTAl FY 201 />02017 3.158.656 4.520.1148 1,250 57,468 14,279 295,629 370,437 30,189 67,811 641,529 41,996 474.583 148,764 375,772 10,973 1,624,155 Sl1,3M 2$,736 4,718,935 (198,887) 2,959.769 1,024,590 

51478.591 II 51 .048.115 II 510.973 II 52.181.256 

2,526,706 


	6.7.16RioDellCityCouncilAgendaPacketPart1
	6.7.16RioDellCityCouncilAgendaPacketPart2
	6.7.16RioDellCityCouncilAgendaPacketPart3

